Open Agenda
u hwa(K

southwark.gov.uk

Licensing Sub-Committee

Thursday 8 February 2024
10.00 am
Room GO06 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Sunny Lambe Councillor Margy Newens
Councillor Sandra Rhule
Councillor Kath Whittam

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda
as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your
children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a
claim form at the meeting.

Access

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on
building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the
council’s web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.

Contact
Andrew Weir by email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Althea Loderick [, 7
Chief Executive ‘
Date: 30 January 2024

PRINTED ON
RECYCLED PAPER


http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk

southwark.gov.uk

Licensing Sub-Committee

Thursday 8 February 2024
10.00 am
Room GO06 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.
PART A - OPEN BUSINESS
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR
To elect the chair for this meeting.
2. APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.
3. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting
members of the committee.

4. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an
agenda within five clear days of the meeting.

5. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any
item of business to be considered at this meeting.

6. LICENSING ACT 2003: PECKHAM FOOD AND WINE, 176 1-96
PECKHAM HIGH STREET, LONDON SE15 5EG



Item No. Title Page No.

7. LICENSING ACT 2003: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND 97 - 289
FLOORS, 516 OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if
the sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal
with reports revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7,
Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS
URGENT.

Date: 30 January 2024



Agenda Iltem 6

Item No. Classification: | Date: Meeting Name:
6. Open 8 February 2024 Licensing Sub-Committee
Report Title Licensing Act 2003: Peckham Food and Wine,
176 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5EG
Ward(s) of group(s) affected | Rye Lane
From Strategic Director of Environment, Neighbourhoods
and Growth
RECOMMENDATION
1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made by Muhammad

Baloch for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect
of the premises known as Peckham Food and Wine,176 Peckham High Street,
London SE15 5EG

a)

b)

d)

Notes:

This application forms a new application for a premises licence, submitted
under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to
representations from 2 responsible authorities and is therefore referred to the
sub-committee for determination.

Paragraphs 8 to 11 of this report provide a summary of the application under
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application is attached
as Appendix A.

Paragraphs 12 to 21 of this report deal with the representations submitted in
respect of the application. Copies of the representations submitted are
attached in Appendix B of this report. A map showing the location of the
premises is attached to this report as Appendix G.

A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee
in relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a
copy of the hearing procedure, has been circulated to all parties to the meeting.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

3.

The Licensing Act 2003 provides a licensing regime for:

The sale of and supply of alcohol
The provision of regulated entertainment
The provision of late night refreshment.

Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with
a view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:



e  The prevention of crime and disorder
e  The promotion of public safety

e  The prevention of nuisance

e  The protection of children from harm.

In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to:

e The Actitself

e  The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act

e  Secondary regulations issued under the Act

e  The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy

e The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the
application

o Relevant representations.

The premises licence application process involves the provision of all relevant
information required under the Act to the licensing authority with copies provided by
the applicant to the relevant responsible bodies under the Act. The application must
also be advertised at the premises and in the local press. The responsible authorities
and other persons within the local community may make representations on any part
of the application where relevant to the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

The premises licence application

8.

10.

On 14 December 2023, Muhammad Baloch applied for a premises licence to be
granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the premises known as Peckham
Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5EG. The premises and
purpose is described as follows:

‘A convenience store offering a range of groceries and goods in addition to the
sale of alcohol’.

The hours applied for are summarised as follows:
o The sale by retail of alcohol (off the premises):

o Monday to Sunday from 00:00 to 00:00 (24 hours)
o Opening hours:

o Monday to Sunday from 00:00 to 00:00 (24 hours).

The premises licence application form provides the applicant’s operating schedule.
Parts J, K, L, and M of the operating schedule set out the proposed licensable
activities, operating hours and operating control measures in full, with reference to
the four licensing objectives as stated in the Licensing Act 2003. Should a premises
licence be issued in respect of the application the information provided in part M of
the operating schedule will form the basis of conditions that will be attached to any
licence granted subsequent to the application. A copy of the application is attached
to this report in Appendix A.



Designated premises supervisor

11.

The proposed designated premises supervisor is Naseem Baluch who holds a
personal licence issued by Southwark Council.

Representations from responsible authorities

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Representations have been submitted by the Metropolitan Police Service and the
council’s licensing authority as a responsible authority.

The police representation states that the premises falls within the Peckham
cumulative impact area and the applicant has failed to address cumulative impact
within the application. Further to this police state that the hours applied for are
outside of that recommended in this area for an off licence/convenience store in the
Southwark statement of licensing policy

The police further contend that the area of the premises has a large problem with
street drinking and alcohol abuse and the associated crime and disorder

The police object to the granting of the premises licence as the venue is situated in
the Peckham cumulative impact area and the granting of such a licence would only
have a negative impact. It is also noted that the conditions offered are vague and do
not address the licensing objectives or the problems associated with late night
operations in particular the prevention of crime and disorder

The representation from the licensing authority as a responsible authority was
submitted regarding the prevention of crime and disorder; the prevention of public
nuisance, the protection of children from harm and public safety licensing objectives
and also provided extra supporting information.

The licensing authority as a responsible authority states that he premises fall within
Peckham major town centre area and within the Peckham cumulative impact area
and that the applicant has not demonstrated that the application will not, if granted,
further contribute to the negative local cumulative impact on any one or more of the
licensing objectives.

The licensing authority as a responsible authority contends that the prior operating
history of the premises under the applicant and proposed DPS regarding this
application is reason alone not to grant this application.

The licensing authority as a responsible authority recommends that the application
is refused.

The representations from responsible authorities can be found at Appendix B.

Representations from other persons.

21.

There are no representations received from other persons.



Application history

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

On 6 August 2006 a premises licence was issued in respect of the premises to
Muhammed Islam and Saima Shahzadi. The premises licence allowed for the sale
of alcohol 24 hours a day and 24 hours a day opening hours.

On 15 June 2009 the licence was transferred to Kiran Israr. Kiran Israr was also
specified as the designated premises supervisor on this date.

On 19 June 2017, an application was submitted by this council’s trading standards
service under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for the review of the premises
licence held by Kiran Israr in respect of the premises known as Peckham Food and
Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5EG.

On 27 June 2017 an application, to have immediate effect, was submitted to specify
Aamir Ali as the DPS of the premises. The application was granted and issued on
27 June 2017. The licensee remained Kiran Israr.

A licensing sub-committee hearing to determine the review application submitted in
respect of the premises on 19 June 2017 took place on 15 September 2017. At the
hearing the licensing sub-committee decided to revoke the premises licence issued
in respect of the premises.

On 4 September 2018 High Street Food Store Limited applied for a premises
licence. The application was then withdrawn on 3 October 2018.

On 25 April 2021 Mr. Abdul Aziz Umer applied to this council for the grant of a new
premises licence in respect of Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street,
Peckham, London SE15 5EG. Representations were received from the police,
trading standards, environmental protection team and licensing responsible
authorities. The application was refused as the applicant did not satisfactorily
address cumulative impact.

On 20 December 2021 Muhammad Baloch applied for the grant of a new premises
licence in respect of Peckham Food and Wine. Representations were received from
the police, trading standards, environmental protection team and licensing
responsible authorities.

The licensing sub-committee determined the application on 17 May 2022 and
granted the application with an amendment to change the start time for the sale of
alcohol from 07:00 to 09:00 and imposed eight conditions in addition to the
conditions in the application operating schedule. (876417)

On 8 December 2022 Muhammad Baloch applied for a new premises licence to be
granted under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Peckham Food and Wine, this
application was withdrawn on 10 June 2023.

On 28 August 2023 Muhammad Baloch applied to vary the premises licence no
876417. The application sought to remove Asif Ali name from condition 843 so that
it would read: "That all previous management involved in the premises are excluded
from the premises and take no part in the operation of the premises namely: Kiran
Israr, Saeeda Yasmeen, Shazia Imran Islam and Mohammad Islam".



33. Furthermore, the application stated that the current licence issued by the council had
no conditions attached at Annex 2 and as part of this application the premises
licence holder was agreeable to this being corrected and the other conditions offered
in the operating schedule when this application to vary the premises licence was
made being added onto the licence.

34. The application was subject to representations from two responsible authorities,
namely trading standards and the licensing authority as a responsible authority.

35. The licensing sub-committee determined the application on 31 October 2023 and
the application was granted. A copy of the notice of decision from that hearing can
be found at Appendix C.

36. The existing premises licence (880978) issued in respect of the premises allows the
following licensable activities:

e The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:
o Monday to Sunday: 09:00 to 23:00
e Opening hours:
o Monday to Sunday: 07:00 to 23:00.
37. A copy of the existing premises licence is attached to this report at Appendix D.
Temporary event notices
38. There have been 10 temporary event notices (TENs) submitted in respect of the
Eremises within the last year. A table of TENSs is attached to this report at Appendix

Compliance visits

39. Details of compliance visits to the premises by council licensing officers/police
working on the night time economy within the last year are provided in Appendix F.

Map

40. A map showing the location of the premises is attached to this report as Appendix
G. The following are a list of licensed premises shown on the map:

Peckham News, 133 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5SL licensed for:
o The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:

o Monday to Sunday: 09:00 to 23:00
o Opening hours:

o Monday to Sunday: 06:00 - 23:00



Binder Off Licence, 149 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5SL licensed for:
o The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises:
o Monday to Sunday: 10:00 to 00:00
o Opening hours:
o Monday to Sunday: 00:00 to 00:00 (24 hours)
The Prince of Peckham, 1 Clayton Road, London SE15 5JA licensed for:
. Films — indoors:

o Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 00:00
o  Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00

o Indoor sporting events

o  Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 00:00
o Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00

. Recorded music — indoors:

o  Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 00:00
o Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00

o Late night refreshment — indoors and outdoors:

o  Sunday to Thursday: 23:00 to 00:00
o Friday and Saturday: 23:00 to 02:00

o Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on and off premises:

o  Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 00:00
o  Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00

o Opening hours

o Sunday to Thursday: 08:00 to 00:30
o  Friday and Saturday: 08:00 to 02:30

The Copper Tap, 190-192 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5EG licensed
for:

° Live music — indoors:

o Friday and Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00



. Recorded music — indoors:
o Monday to Thursday: 12:00 to 23:00

o Friday and Saturday: 12:00 to 01:00
o Sunday 12:00 to 22:30

o Performance of dance — indoors
o Monday to Thursday: 12:00 to 23:00
o Friday and Saturday: 12:00 to 01:00
o Sunday 12:00 to 22:30
o Provisions similar to making music and dancing — indoors:
o  Friday and Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00
o Late night refreshment — indoors:
o  Friday and Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00
o Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises:
o Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:00
o  Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to 01:00
o Sunday 12:00 to 22:30
o Opening hours
o  Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30
o Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30
o  Sunday 10:00 to 23:00
Peckham Rooms Hotel, 2 Queens Road, London SE15 2PT licensed for:
o Late night refreshment — indoors:
o  Friday and Saturday: 23:00 to 01:00
o Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on and off premises
o Sunday to Thursday: 07:00 to 23;00
o  Friday and Saturday: 07:00 to 01:00
o The sale of alcohol to residents and bona fide guests will be permitted
with unrestricted hours.

Southwark Council statement of licensing policy

41. Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2021-2026
on 25 November 2020 and it came into effect on 1 January 2021.



42.

43.

44.

Sections of the statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to the
sub-committee’s consideration are:

o Section 3 — Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority relies in
determining licence applications.

o Section 5 — Determining applications for premises licenses and club premises
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition
setting.

o Section 6 — Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current
special policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply.
To be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the policy.

o Section 7 — Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises
and (planning) area classification.

o Section 8 — The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general
guidance on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

o Section 9 — Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of
the second licensing objective.

o Section 10 — The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on
the promotion of the third licensing objective.

o Section 11 — The protection of children from harm. This provides general
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to
applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the
applications. However, the sub-committee must always consider each application
on its own merits and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified
by the circumstances of the application.

Members should take into consideration both the Southwark statement of licensing
policy and the Section 182 Guidance when making decisions. The links for these
are below:

Southwark policy:

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-

licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy

Section 182 Guidance:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-

quidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003



https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

Cumulative impact area (CIA)
45. The premises falls within the Peckham cumulative impact area (CIA).
46. The types of premises that the CIA applies to are:

o Night clubs, public houses and bars, off-licences, supermarkets, grocers,
convenience stores and similar premises

47. The premises are also situated in Peckham major town centre.

48. Under the Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2021 - 2026 the following
closing times are recommended as appropriate within Peckham major town centre:

o Off-licenses and alcohol sales in grocers and supermarkets:
o Monday to Sunday: 00:00.
Climate change implications

49. Following council assembly on 14 July 2021, the council is committed to considering
the climate change implications of any decisions.

50. Climate change is not a legal factor in the consideration of a grant of a premises
license under the current licensing objectives, however members can make
enquiries and request an agreement from applicants to promote the reduction of the
impact of climate change that may be caused by the operation of the premises.

51. Examples of such an agreement may be:

o Not to use single use plastics, such as disposable plastic glasses, when selling
alcohol at the premises.

o Encourage patrons not to drive to venues by providing details of public
transport on their webpages/tickets.

52. The council’s climate change strategy is available at:

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-Strategy-July-
2021-.pdf

Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts
Community impact statement

53. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits
with all relevant matters taken into account.

Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement
54. This report does not result in a policy decision and each application is required to be

considered upon its own individual merits with all relevant matters taken into
account. In considering the recommendations of this report, due regard must be


https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-Strategy-July-2021-.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-Strategy-July-2021-.pdf

10

given to the public sector equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act
2010. This requires the council to consider all individuals when carrying out its
functions.

55. Importantly, the council must have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, or other prohibited conduct; advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people who have protected
characteristics and those who do not. The relevant protected characteristics are age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex, sexual orientation. The public sector equality duty also applies to marriage and
civil partnership, but only in relation to the need to eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation, or other prohibited conduct.

56. The equalities impact statement for licensing decisions is contained within the
Southwark statement of licensing policy 2021 — 2026 at:

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-
licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy

57. The equalities impact assessment is available at:

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92016/Appendix%20F%20-
%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment. pdf

Health impact statement

58. Health impacts cannot be considered by law when making decisions under the
Licensing Act 2003.

Resource implications

59. A fee of £190.00 has been paid by the applicant in respect of this application being
the statutory fee payable for premises within non-domestic rateable value B.

Consultation

60. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. A public notice was published in a local
newspaper and a similar notice was exhibited outside of the premises for a period
of 28 consecutive days.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Assistant Chief Executive — Governance and Assurance

61. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for a premises licence
under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

62. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.


https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy

11

Principles for making the determination

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for a premises licence
under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

The general principle is that applications for premises licence applications must be
granted unless relevant representations are received. This is subject to the proviso
that the applicant has complied with regulations in advertising and submitting the
application.

Relevant representations are those which:

o Are about the likely effect of the granting of the application on the promotion of
the licensing objectives

o Are made by an interested party or responsible authority

o Have not been withdrawn

o Are not, in the opinion of the relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious.

If relevant representations are received then the sub-committee must have regard
to them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the licensing
objectives to:

o To grant the licence subject to:

o  The conditions mentioned in section 18 (2)(a) modified to such extent as
the licensing authority considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives

o Any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the
licence.

o To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to
which the application relates.

o To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor.

o To reject the application.

Conditions

68.

69.

The sub-committee’s discretion is thus limited. It can only modify the conditions put
forward by the applicant, or refuse the application, if it is necessary to do so.
Conditions must be necessary and proportionate for the promotion of one of the four
licensing objectives, and not for any other reason. Conditions must also be within
the control of the licensee, and should be worded in a way which is clear, certain,
consistent and enforceable.

The four licensing objectives are:

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

The prevention of nuisance

The protection of children from harm.



70.

71.

72.

12

Members should note that each objective is of equal importance. There are no other
licensing objectives, and the four objectives are paramount considerations at all
times.

Conditions will not be necessary if they duplicate a statutory position. Conditions
relating to night café and take away aspect of the license must relate to the night
time operation of the premises and must not be used to impose conditions which
could not be imposed on day time operators.

Members are also referred to the Home Office Revised Guidance issued under
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 on conditions, specifically section 10.

Reasons

73.

If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to modify the conditions, or to
refuse the application for a premises licence application, it must give reasons for its
decision.

Hearing procedures

74.

Subiject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine
its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

o The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is
required for it to consider the representations.

o Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other
person appearing at the hearing.

o The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in
which to exercise their rights to:

o  Address the authority

o If given permission by the committee, question any other party.

o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require
clarification, give further information in support of their application.

o The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing
objectives.

o The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing,
taking place in private.

o In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.



75.

13

This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence
under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-
committee to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

76.

7.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to
consider the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as
the planning authority.

Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing
of the application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader
policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must
direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law,
guidance and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of
relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future
event, the occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee must
give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make
representations to them.

The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises
if they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same
to be relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to
declare personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when
considering licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members
are required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been
raised through representations from other persons and responsible authorities.
Interested parties must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a
case to case basis.

Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub-committee needs to consider the
balance between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the
application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under section
17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to prevent
crime and disorder in the borough.



14

83. Other persons, responsible authorities and the applicant have the right to appeal the
decision of the sub-committee to the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days
beginning with the day on which the applicant was notified by the licensing authority
of the decision to be appealed against.

Guidance

84. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office guidance in carrying out
the functions of licensing authority. However, guidance does not cover every
possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully
understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so. Full reasons
must be given if this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance

85. The head of regulatory services has confirmed that the costs of this process over
and above the application fee are borne by the service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact

Licensing Act 2003

Home Office Revised
Guidance to the Act

Secondary Regulations

Southwark statement of
licensing policy

Southwark Licensing,
C/O

Community Safety and
Enforcement, 160
Tooley Street,

London SE1 2QH

Mrs Kirty Read
Tel: 020 7525 5748

Case file

APPENDICES

Name Title

Appendix A | Application for a premises licence

Appendix B | Representations submitted by responsible authorities
Appendix C | Copy of notice of decision from 31 October 2023
Appendix D | Copy of existing licence

Appendix E | Table of temporary event notices

Appendix F | Log of night time economy team compliance visits
Appendix G | Map of the locality




AUDIT TRAIL

15

Lead Officer

Caroline  Bruce, Strategic Director of Environment,
Neighbourhoods and Growth

Report Author

Jayne Tear, Principal Licensing Officer

Version | Final
Dated | 23 January 2024
Key Decision? | No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought | Comments included
Assistant Chief Executive — Yes Yes
Governance and Assurance
Strategic Director of Finance Yes Yes
Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 26 January 2024




Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted.@nder the Licensing Act 2003

APPENDIX A

14/12/2023
Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
Ref No. 2142250

Name of Applicant

Please enter the name(s) who is applying for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003
and am making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the
Licensing Act 2003

‘ Muhammad Baloch

Notes for Guidance

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other
information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of

alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description
of where the place will be and its proximity to the premises.

2. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

. Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500.

. Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between

08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets
consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.

. Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
. Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of

Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines
boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather
than an indoor sporting event.

. Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o] a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

o} a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to
sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

0 a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

0 a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village

hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

o} a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential
premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not
exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

. Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

o] any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o} any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,

community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance
from a person who is responsible for the premises.

o] any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of
(i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

. Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

. Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:
0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is

provided by or on behalf of the local authority;
o} any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the



Business - Application for a premises licence to be 3jfinted under the Licensing Act 2003

entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o] any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and (b)
that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

3. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may include a
tent).
4. For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details,

for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

5. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer
months.
6. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g.

Christmas Eve.

7. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the week when
you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

8. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the premises’. If you
wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick ‘off the premises’.
If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’.

9. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the
premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to
have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age
groups or the presence of gaming machines.

10. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
11. The application form must be signed.
12. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have

actual authority to do so.

13. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent must sign the
application form.

14. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

15. Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications

from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:



Business - Application for a premises licence to be granted.&hder the Licensing Act 2003

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

. does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
. is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the
holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two
ways: 1) by providing with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do
not need to be certified), or 2) by providing their ‘share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry out a
check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

. An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of
the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

. An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the
passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a
European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to
the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

. A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to
stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.



Business - Application for a premises licence to be J8inted under the Licensing Act 2003

. A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in the
UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a
previous employer.

. A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

. A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently
allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying
on of a licensable activity.

. A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to
the holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

. A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European
Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights
or residence.

. A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the
holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is
not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or
20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a



Business - Application for a premises licence to be grante@{hder the Licensing Act 2003

European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

. Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in
the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

. Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or
Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in
exercising treaty rights in the UK including:

0 evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,

0 evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member — e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and

0 evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is
one of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:

® working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(i) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or

(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also
provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive
sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or
S3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(i) any page containing the holder’'s photograph;

(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;



Business - Application for a premises licence to be danted under the Licensing Act 2003

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in

the UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your
immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your
licence application will not be determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to
work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking
service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should
include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at
https://lwww.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the applicant’s date of birth (provided within this
application), will allow the licensing authority to carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to
work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration
status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what

information and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable
to obtain a share code from the service should submit copy documents as set out above.

Premises Details

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

Non-domestic rateable value of premises in order to see your rateable value click here (opens in new window)

£ |

Band D and E only applies to premises which uses exclusively or primarily for the
supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises

No

Premises trading name

Peckham Food and Wine




Business - Application for a premises licence to be grante@uhder the Licensing Act 2003

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Do you have a
Southwark
postcode?

Yes

Address Line 1

176 PECKHAM HIGH STREET

Address Line 2

Town

LONDON

Post code

SE15 5EG

Ordnance survey
map reference

Description of the
location

Telephone number

Applicant Details

Please select whether you are applying for a premises licence as

An individual or individuals

If you are applying as an individual or non-individual please select one of the following:-

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the
<br>premises for licensable activities

Details of Individual Applicant

Personal Details

Title Mr

If other, please

specify

Surname Baloch
Forenames Muhammad
Date of birth [
lam 18 years old or | Yes

over

Nationality

Current Address

Street number or
Building name

Street Description

Town




Business - Application for a premises licence to be gdinted under the Licensing Act 2003

County

Post code

Contact Details

Daytime contact
telephone number

I
Email Address | I

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service),
the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see guidance below)

Please enter ‘

Note 15: Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications
from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be issued to an individual or an individual in a partnership which is not a limited liability
partnership who is resident in the UK who: does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or is subjectto a
condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

Any licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have the right to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

They do this in one of two ways:by providing with this application, copies or scanned copies of the documents
which an applicant has provided, to demonstrate their entittement to work in the UK (which do not need to be
certified) as per information published on gov.uk and in guidance.by providing their ‘share code’ to enable the
licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).
Home Office online right to work checking service.

As an alternative to providing a copy of original documents, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should
include in this application their share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at
https://lwww.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the applicant’s date of birth, will allow the licensing
authority to carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to
work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration
status that can be shared digitally. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what
information and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable
to obtain a share code from the service should submit copies of documents as set out above.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your

immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your
licence application will not be determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Do you wish to add a second individual applicant?

No

Operating Schedule



Business - Application for a premises licence to be grante®@éhder the Licensing Act 2003

When do you want the premises licence to start?

12/01/2024

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you want it to end?

General description of premises ( see guidance note 1)

A convenience store offering a range of groceries and goods in addition to the sale of
alcohol

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time please use the drop down below
to select the number.

Less than 5000

Note 1
Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other
information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of

alcohol and you intend to provide a place of consumption of these off-supplies of alcohol, you must include a
description of where the place will be and its proximity to the premises.

Operating Schedule part 2

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and schedule 1 and 2 of the
Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (Please read guidance note 2)

Provision of late night refreshment



Business - Application for a premises licence to be gfanted under the Licensing Act 2003

Supply of alcohol

| j) Supply of alcohol

In all cases please complete boxes K, L and M.

J - Supply of Alcohol

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption ( Please read guidance note 8)

Off the premises

Standard days and timings for Supply of alcohol ( Please read guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish
Mon 00:00 00:00
Tues 00:00 00:00
Wed 00:00 00:00
Thur 00:00 00:00
Fri 00:00 00:00
Sat 00:00 00:00
Sun 00:00 00:00

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol ( Please read guidance 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to
those listed. Please list, ( Please read guidance note 6 )

Please download and then upload the consent form completed by the designated proposed premises
supervisor

[

5. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

6. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g.
Christmas Eve.

7. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week when you



Business - Application for a premises licence to be grante@fnder the Licensing Act 2003

intend the premises to be used for the activity.
8. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the premises’.

If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick ‘off the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’.

Premises Supervisor

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as the designated
premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the check list at the end of the
form)

Full name of proposed designated premises supervisor

First names Naseem
Surname Baluch
DOB

Date Of Birth |

Address of proposed designated premises supervisor

Street number or
Building name

Street Description

Town

County

Post code

Personal licence number of proposed designated premises supervisor, if any,

Personal licence
number ( if known )

Issuing authority ( if
known )

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children ( Please read guidance note 9)

There is no activity of this nature

9. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the
premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to
have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age
groups or the presence of gaming machines.



Business - Application for a premises licence to be §rénted under the Licensing Act 2003

L - Hours premises are open to public

5. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

6. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g.
Christmas Eve.

7. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week when you

intend
the premises to be used for the activity.

Hours premises are open to the public ( standard timings Please read guidance note 7 )

Day Start Finish
Mon 00:00 00:00
Tues 00:00 00:00
Wed 00:00 00:00
Thur 00:00 00:00
Fri 00:00 00:00
Sat 00:00 00:00
Sun 00:00 00:00

State any seasonal variations ( Please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the public at different times from
those listed. Please list, ( Please read guidance note 6 )

M - Steps to promote four licencing objectives

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) ( Please read guidance note 10)

PROPOSED SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

The premises licence holder is a responsible operator who is aware of the 4 Licensing
objectives, the Council's licensing policy and their esponsibilities under the Licensing
Act 2003. The business is run lawfully and in accordance with good business practice
and offers the following conditions to be attached to the premises licence.

All health & safety, fire and other legal commitments will be complied with under the
relevant legislation.

1. A CCTV recording system shall be installed that is compliant with, and capable of,
capturing an image of evidential standards. The system shall continually record whilst
the venue is open for licensable activity and/or when customers are present on the
premises. All CCTV recordings shall be time- & date-stamped and maintained for a
minimum of thirty-one (31) days. Cameras shall be installed so as to cover both internal
and external areas of the premises. At least one camera shall cover ingress/egress
points.

2. Staff shall be fully trained in the operation of the CCTV system and there shall be at
least one member of staff on duty during trading hours who is able to provide copies of
CCTV recordings to the Police and authorised officers of the Local Authority. Such




Business - Application for a premises licence to be grante@&hder the Licensing Act 2003

copies shall, in any event, be provided within forty-eight (48) hours.

3. The “Challenge 25"/“Think 25" proof of age scheme shall be operated at the
premises. All customers who appear under the age of 25 will be challenged to prove
that they are over 18 when attempting to purchase alcohol. Acceptable forms of ID
include a photo driving licence, passport, or home office approved identity card bearing
the holographic ‘PASS’ mark. If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce an
acceptable form of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol shall be made to or for
that person.

4. All relevant staff shall be trained in the law about the sale of alcohol. Such training
will include challenging every individual who appears to be under 25 years of age and
refusing service where individuals cannot produce acceptable means of identification,
acceptable forms of ID, and using the refusal register. Such training (including any
refresher training) will be logged and ongoing.

5. The premises licence holder shall ensure that notices shall be displayed in the
premises, advising;

« CCTV is in operation

« a ‘Challenge 25’ scheme operates in the premises

* ‘No proof of age — no Sale’

« Patrons should respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly

6. A refusals log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on
request to the police or an authorised person. The refusals log is to be inspected on a
monthly basis by the DPS and noted in the log and a record made in the log of any
actions that appear to be needed to protect young people from harm. The log must
record all refused sales of alcohol and include the following:

a) the identity of the member of staff who refused the sale;

b) the date and time of the refusal;

c) the alcohol requested and reason for refusal;

d) description of the person refused alcohol

7. Alcohol shall only be purchased for sale within the premises from reputable sources
and not from door-to-door sellers. The premises licence holder shall ensure all receipts
for goods brought include the following details:

i. Seller's name and address

ii. Seller's company details, if applicable

iii. Seller's VAT details, if applicable

Such receipts are to be made available to officers of the local authority or police service
upon reasonable request.

8. The area immediately outside the premises shall be monitored to ensure that any
litter generated by the premises and/or its customers is regularly cleared.

9. Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or consumed on the premises.

10. No alcohol will be stored or displayed within 2-metres of the entrance/exit unless
behind the staff counter.

11. No beers / ciders in single cans, bottles or multi-packs with an ABV of above 6.5%
will be displayed / sold or offered for sale from the premises.

12. When the premises are open to the public and the licence is not in operation, all
alcohol shall be stored in a locked cabinet/cooler, behind a lockable blind or behind the
counter.

13. Alcohol is displayed as set out in the plan submitted with the application.

14. An electronic point of sale system (EPOS or POS) is installed and operated at the
premises.

15. A written dispersal policy is kept at the premises with the licence and made
available for inspection by authorised council officers or the police. All relevant staff
shall be trained in the implementation of the dispersal policy.

16. All previous management involved in the premises are excluded from the premises
and take no part in the operation of the premises namely: That all previous
management involved in the premises are excluded from the premises and take no part
in the operation of the premises namely: Kiran Israr, Saeeda Yasmeen, Shazia Imran
Islam and Mohammad Islam.

17. Alcohol sales made between the hours of 00:00 and 06:00 will be via the hatch at
the front of the premises (marked on the plan). There will be no self service of alcohol
between these times.

b) the prevention of crime and disorder

Please see box a above

c) public safety




Business - Application for a premises licence to be 48inted under the Licensing Act 2003

Please see box a above

d) the prevention of public nuisance

Please see box a above

e) the protection of children from harm

Please see box a above

Guidance note 10

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

Please upload a plan of the premises

Please upload any additional information i.e. risk assessments

Checklist

I have enclosed the plan of the premises.

| understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application<br> will
be rejected.

I understand that | must now advertise my application (In the local paper within 14 days

of applying

Home Office Declaration

Please tick to indicate agreement

| am not a company or limited liability partnership

Proof of Entitlement to work in the UK

Please upload your proof of entitlement to work in the UK or share code issued by the Home Office online right
to work checking service. (Please see guidance below)

Note 15: Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications
from partnerships which are not limited liability



Business - Application for a premises licence to be grante@{hder the Licensing Act 2003

partnerships:

A licence may not be issued to an individual or an individual in a partnership which is not a limited liability
partnership who is resident in the UK who: does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or is subject to a
condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

Any licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have the right to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

They do this in one of two ways:by providing with this application, copies or scanned copies of the documents
which an applicant has provided, to demonstrate their entittement to work in the UK (which do not need to be
certified) as per information published on gov.uk and in guidance.by providing their ‘share code’ to enable the
licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).
Home Office online right to work checking service.

As an alternative to providing a copy of original documents, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should
include in this application their share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at
https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the applicant’s date of birth, will allow the licensing
authority to carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to
work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration
status that can be shared digitally. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what
information and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable
to obtain a share code from the service should submit copies of documents as set out above.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your
immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your
licence application will not be determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Declaration

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability
partnership]

| understand | am not entitled to be issued with a licence if | do not have the entitlement to live and work in the
UK (or if | am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity) and that my licence will become invalid if | cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK.

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing
him or her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and | have seen a copy of his or her proof of

entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to work check using the Home Office online right to work
checking service which confirmed their right to work.

I/'We hereby declare the information provided is true and accurate.

| agree to the above statement

Yes

PaymentDescription | ||| GG




Business - Application for a premises licence to be 3thnted under the Licensing Act 2003

PaymentAmountinM
inorUnits

AuthCode

LicenceReference

PaymentContactEmail

Please provide name of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant's solicitor or other duly
authorised agent (please read guidance note 12). If completing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what
capacity.

Fullname I
Date 14/12/2023
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Capacity Applicant's Solicitor

Where the premises licence is jointly held, enter the 2nd applicant (the current premises licence holder) or 2nd
applicant's solicitor or other authorised agent (guidance note 13). If completing on behalf of the applicant state
in what capacity

Full name .
Date 14/12/2023
(DD/MM/YYYY)

Capacity .

Contact name (where not previously given) an address for correspondence associated with this application
(please read guidance note 14)

Contact name and
address for
correspondence

Telephone No.

If you prefer us to
correspond with you
by e-mail, your email
address (optional)

GUIDANCE NOTES

12. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have actual
authority to do so.

13. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents must sign the
application form.

14. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

IT 1S AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE
STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE
STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK
WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED
FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT



Business - Application for a premises licence to be grante@uahder the Licensing Act 2003

WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A
CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND
PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO
SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS
DISQUALIFIED.

Once you complete form you will be redirected to payments and won't be able to return back.

The information you provide will be used fairly and lawfully and Southwark Council will not knowingly do
anything which may lead to a breach of the Data Protection Act 1998.



33

APPENDIX B
METROPOLITAN
POLICE

The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service
Floor 3 Licensing Office
160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station,
London 323 Borough High Street,
SE1 2QH LONDON,

SE1 1JL

Tel: 020 7232 6756
Email: SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk

Our reference: MD/21

Date: 09/01/2024

Dear Sir/Madam

Re:- Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, London SES SEG

Police are in possession of an application from the above premises for a full variation
to the premises licence to extend the opening hours and supply of alcohol to 24hrs.
The premises operates as an off licence/convenience store and the hours requested
far exceed those recommended in the Southwark Statement of licensing policy. The
hours requested are

Opening to the public

Mon-Sun-24hrs

Supply of alcohol off sales
Mon-Sun-24hrs

The hours are excessively outside the hours recommended within the Southwark
Statement of licensing Policy and it is noted the venue is situated within The
Peckham Cumulative Impact Area as designated by Southwark Council.

The High Court approval of Cumulative impact policies came in Westminster City
Council v Middlesex Crown Court. In brief, it stated ‘A licence could be refused on
the sole ground that the area was already saturated with licensed premises”

Peckham has a considerable amount of licensed premises including a high number
of off licence style premises. The area has a large problem with street drinking and

alcohol abuse and the associated crime and disorder, this forms part of the reason

their being a designated cumulative impact zone

The applicant has failed to address the cumulative impact in any way within the
application and the conditions mentioned in the application are repetitious of those
already on the current licence with the exception of condition 17 ’ Alcohol sales made
between the hours of 00:00 and 06:00 will be via the hatch at

the front of the premises (marked on the plan). There will be no self-service of
alcohol between these times’.

Working for a safer Southwark



34

This Condition is vague in that it does not state if the premises will be closed to the
public between the hours of 00:00 and 06:00 and if not closed to the public will only
lead to conflict with customers.

The metropolitan police object to the granting of the Premises Licence as the venue
is situated in the Peckham Cumulative Impact Area and the granting of such a
licence would only have a negative impact, it is also noted that the conditions offered
are vague and do not address the licensing objectives or the problems associated
with late night operations in particular the Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

Submitted for your consideration.
Yours Sincerely

Mark Lynch Pc 2246AS

Central South BCU — Southwark | Licensing Team
Southwark Police Station

305 Borough High Street, SE1 1JH
SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk

Working for a safer Southwark



35

Tear, Jayne

From: McArthur, Wesley

Sent: 11 January 2024 23:53

To: Regen, Licensing

Cc: Tear, Jayne; _

Subject: Application for a premises licence: Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High
Street, Peckham, London, SE15 5EG (our ref:881982) - Loc ID:172186 - Rye Lane
ward

Attachments: Peckham Food and Wine NEW (881982) - LRA's rep' v1.pdf

Importance: High

Dear Licensing,
Please find attached a representation regarding the above application.
Regards,

Wesley McArthur

Principal Enforcement Officer - Licensing Unit

London Borough of Southwark

E-mail: wesley.mcarthur@southwark.gov.uk

General: licensing@southwark.qov.uk

Phone: 020 7525 5779

Switchboard: 020 7525 5000

Website: www.southwark.gov.uk

Address: Licensing, Health & Safety, Hub 1, 3rd Floor, 160 Tooley Street, SE1 2QH

TOGETHER WE

tn chane Qniitl




36

To: From: Date:

Licensing Unit Wesley McArthur 11 January 2024
wesley.mcarthur@southwark.gov.uk
020 7525 5779

(on behalf of the Licensing Unit in its
role as a responsible authority)

Subject: Representation

Act: The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act)

Premises: Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, Peckham,
London, SE15 5EG

Ref’: 881982

We object to the grant of a premises licence application, submitted by Mr Muhammad Baloch
under The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act), in respect of the premises known as Peckham Food
and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, Peckham, London, SE15 5EG.

1. The application

The application is to allow for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises as follows -
e Monday - Sunday: 00:00 hours — 00:00 hours (24 hour sale of alcohol)

The proposed opening hours of the premises are:
e Monday - Sunday: 00:00 hours - 00:00 hours

The premises, and its intended operation, are described in the application as (verbatim):

e “A convenience store offering a range of groceries and goods in addition to the sale of
alcohol.”

2. The Locale

The premises are located on Peckham High Street, which is a major thoroughfare and bus
transport hub. It is a densely urbanised road with various commercial premises and residential
properties. There are 14 premises licensed for the off sale of alcohol on Peckham High Street
itself, including & that could be described as off-licences, grocers, supermarkets or
convenience stores. All of these premises are listed in table 1 as below (off-licences, grocers,
supermarkets and convenience stores are high-lit in yellow).

Table 1.
No. Licence | Name Address

number
1 832753 | Pricecutter 12 Peckham High Street
2 7818 Kam Foh 19 Peckham High Street
3 840937 | Tiwa'n'Tiwa 34 Peckham High Street
4 872440 | Tola 56 Peckham High Street
5 843557 | Little Hut 59 Peckham High Street
6 881617 | Vaalee 66 Peckham High Street
7 876239 | The Kentish Drovers 71-79 Peckham High Street
8 876834 | The Greyhound 109 Peckham High Street
9 878084 | Abbeville Café & Bites 111 Peckham High Street
10 877710 | The Red Bull 116 Peckham High Street




37

11 881133 | Tigella 119 Peckham High Street
12 875277 | Peckham News 133 Peckham High Street
13 876936 | Binder Off Licence 149 Peckham High Street
14 876933 | The Copper Tap 190-192 Peckham High Street

There are also another 9 premises in the wider locale which could be described as off-licences,
grocers, supermarkets, convenience stores. All of these premises are listed in table 2 as below.

Table 2.
No. | Licence | Name Address
number
1 881835 | Lidl Unit 3, Bellenden Road Retail Park
2 878561 | Morrisons Unit 3, The Aylesham Centre
3 875442 | Tesco 34 Rye Lane
= 881341 | Iceland 87-95 Rye Lane
5 855255 | Bims 102 Rye Lane
6 872844 | Rye Express 137 Rye Lane
7 880481 | A Family Convenience Store | 161 Rye Lane
8 877864 | Jaffa 168 Rye Lane
9 881458 | Tesco 265 Rye Lane

In addition to the above licensed premises, there are other licensed premises of varying
description (e.g. pubs, bars, clubs and restaurants) that are licensed for the off sale of alcohol
in the wider locale.

A map of the area the premises are locate in is attached as appendix 1.

2. Extant premises licence

The premises already benefits from a premises licence (number 880978), which is issued to
the applicant regarding this application (Mr Muhammad Baloch). The designated premises
supervisor (DPS) in regards to premises licence number 880978 (Mr Naseem Baluch) is also
the DPS proposed in respect of this application.

Premises licence number 880978 allows for alcohol off sales to take place between 09:00
hours and 23:00 hours and for the premises to open between 07:00 hours and 23:00 hours.

Therefore this application, whilst for a new premises licence, would have the effect of varying
the existing operating hours to allow for the 24 hour sale of alcohol.

A copy of premises licence number 880978 is attached as appendix 2.

Please note that whenever a premises licence is amended or varied the premises licence
number changes and premises licence number 880978 was previously premises licence
number 876417 (with the same licensee and DPS).

3. The Southwark Statement of Licencing Policy (SoLP)

The premises fall within Peckham Major Town Centre Area and within the Peckham
Cumulative Impact Area (CIA).

The following closing times are recommended in our SoLP in respect of the type of licensed
premises located in Peckham Major Town Centre Area as follows —



38

Off licences and alcohol sales in grocers and supermarkets:

Monday — Sunday: 00:00 (midnight)
Full details of the statement of licensing policy are available via:

Premises licence (Licensing Act 2003) - Southwark Council

4. Qur objection

Our objection relates to all of the licensing objectives.

The premises fall within, and are subject to, the Peckham Cumulative Impact Area (Peckham
CIA).

Paragraph 131 the SoLP 2021 — 2026 states —

e “Applications made within specified Cumulative Impact Areas (CIAs) are deemed likely
to add to the potential impact the policy is intended to avoid. There is therefore an
automatic presumption that such applications will be refused, however each
application will be judged on its own merits.”

Paragraph 156 of the SoLP stipulates regarding the Peckham CIA that —

e “The classes of premises to which the policy applies is defined as follows — night clubs;
pubs and bars; off-licences, grocers, supermarkets, convenience stores; and similar
premises.”

Therefore, the above premises is of a type of premises that is subject to the Peckham CIA.

As per paragraph 156 of the SoLP, the council has found that certain types of premises are
likely to increase the negative cumulative impact in the Peckham CIA of licensed premises in
that area.

We are in agreement with this stance and are therefore of the opinion that the
application be refused.

Paragraph 132 of the SoLP states that —

e ‘It is normally the case that a representation citing a relevant CIA will have to be
determined at a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing.”

We further note that section 136 of the SoLP states —

e “The effect of publishing a cumulative impact assessment is to create a rebuttable
presumption that applications for new premises licences or club premises certificates
or variations that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be
refused or subject to certain limitations, following relevant representations. In such
circumstances, it is for the Applicant to demonstrate that the application will not, if
granted, further contribute to the negative local cumulative impact on any one or more
of the licensing objectives.”

In our opinion, the applicant has not demonstrated that the application will not, if granted,
further contribute to the negative local cumulative impact on any one or more of the licensing
objectives.



39

Further, we contend that granting the application will further contribute to the negative local
cumulative impact of licensed premises in the Peckham CIA.

As stated previously this application is, in effect, a variation to existing operating hours at the
premises to allow for the 24 hour sale of alcohol.

We say that the 24 hour sale of alcohol is likely to have a negative effect on the promotion of
all of the licensing objectives and be detrimental to the quality of life for local residents.

Premises selling alcohol late at night, or into the early morning, have increased risk factors.
We do not think it is appropriate at all to allow premises to sell alcohol 24 hours in a
cumulative impact area.

We also refer to R (on the application of Westminster City Council) -v- Middlesex Crown Court
[2002] EWHC 1104 in which HHJ Baker adjudicated

“Notwithstanding the applicant being a fit and proper person and the premises would be well
run a licence could be refused on the sole ground that the area was already saturated with
licence premises....and the cumulative effect of the existing premises was impacting
adversely on the area to an unacceptable level.”

This means that the above application can be refused on the sole basis that it is subject to a
cumulative impact area.

In addition to the above, it is clear that there are already a large number of off-licensed
premises to provide an offering to the local area. We contend that the area is saturated with
premises that allow for the off sale of alcohol and that granting any extension of hours for the
sale of alcohol at any licensed premises would add to the already considerable problems
caused by licensed premises in the locale.

We further add that the full council assembly approved the current version of the SoLP and
have maintained the Peckham CIA four times in a row, showing that the problems related to
licensed premises in the locale (including off-licences, grocers, supermarkets, convenience
stores) are longstanding and ongoing.

5. Previous operatring history of the premises

On 24 February 2023 the premises were inspected by council licensing officer Barry
O’Callaghan. A number of breaches of the existing premises licence were noted as follows:

1. Premises open beyond terminal hour.

2. Condition 343 (training records not available).

3. Condition 841 (ASPAL Premier Cru cider alcohol and Henry Weston’s Cloudy Vontage
Cider with alcohol by volume (ABV) of above 6.5% on sale.

4. Condition 842 (alcohol to be in a locked cabinet/cooler when the premises are open to
the public and the licence is not in operation).

The following day (25 February 2023) PC Maria O’Mahoney attended the premises and there
was non-compliance with conditions 340 and 341 (installation, operation and training
concerning CCTV).

PC O’Mahoney returned the next day (26 February 2023) and was informed by the member
of staff working that the CCTV still wasn’t working, again in breach of conditions 340 and 341.
The same member of staff also stated that the EPOS system wasn’t working meaning none
of the alcohol or cigarettes were being scanned (in breach of condition 845).



40

On 06 February 2023 PC Maria O’Mahoney visited the premises and observed breaches of
the following licence conditions:

340, 341, 343, 842, 845 and 846 (dispersal policy). During this visit the person in charge of
the premises refused to provide their details to PC O’Mahoney.

We contend that the prior operating history of the premises under the applicant and proposed
DPS regarding this application is reason alone not to grant this application.

Witness statements and a notification of alleged offence regarding the above are attached as
appendix 3.

6. Additional information

Evidence and data regarding the negative cumulative impact that licensed premises have in
the locale has already been analysed by council officers and the full licensing committee,
which is why the Peckham CIA was introduced, and why it has been maintained after every
review of the Peckham CIA.

In addition to this, however, | would also add that my experience (as a licensing officer for 16
years) is that off-licenses that allow for the 24 hour sale of alcohol often attract problem
drinkers (e.qg. alcoholics, street drinkers and / or people with substance abuse problems), post
club / late night venue attendees who wish to consume alcohol further (to ‘carry the party on’)
after the venues they have attended have shut, and also people from outside the area who
wish to purchase alcohol because their locale does not have premises selling alcohol 24
hours a day.

It is worth noting that there are a number of late night bar / club venues in the locale (indeed,
the premises are locate next to a late night bar venue).

The immediate locale is a known hotspot for the sale and use of drugs, for street drinkers,
prostitution (around Peckham Square) and for general street crime. Allowing for the 24 hour
sale of alcohol at the premises will inevitably feed into these existing extremely serious
problems.

In my experience off-licences allowing for the 24 hour sale of alcohol often become a hub for
irresponsible alcohol consumers and often contribute disproportionately to crime and disorder
in the area that they are located in.

We therefore refer this application to the council’s Licensing Sub-Committee and recommend
that the application be refused.

Notwithstanding the above, we note that the applicant has offered various control measures
in the operating schedule of the application, which would form the basis of enforceable licence
conditions (should a premise licence be issued subsequent to this application).

If the Licensing Sub-Committee is minded to grant this application, we would seek preferred
wording for some of the proposed conditions to ensure that they are practicable and
enforceable. We will be happy to provide the applicant and Licensing Sub-Committee with a
schedule of suitably worded conditions at the hearing to determine the application however,
we strongly re-iterate that it is our opinion that this application be refused.

Yours sincerely,



Wesley McArthur
Principal Enforcement Officer

41



42

Tear, Jayne

From: McArthur, Wesley

Sent: 12 January 2024 10:10

To: Regen, Licensing

Cc: Tear, Jayne

Subject: RE: Application for a premises licence: Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High
Street, Peckham, London, SE15 5EG (our ref:881982) - Loc ID:172186 - Rye Lane
ward

Attachments: Peckham Food and Wine NEW (881982) - LRA's rep' v2 - redacted.pdf

Importance: High

Dear Licensing,

Corrections were required regarding the representation sent as per the email below. An amended
version is attached.

Please replace the version previously sent with the version attached to this email (v2 -
redacted).

For clarity the corrections / amendments are as follows:

The last paragraph of section 2 has been amended to include the following sentence: ‘The
premises are identified by a pin on the map and the written address ‘176 Peckham High
Street’”’

The title of part 5 has been amended to state ‘operating’ instead of ‘operatring’.
Part 5 now refers to Henry Weston’s Vintage Cider instead of ‘vontage cider'.

Part 5 now refers to a visit to the premises on 06 November 2023 instead of 06 February
2023.

The map has been amended to show Peckham Square and part of Rye Lane, both of
which are referred to on the representation. The map now also includes the written address
‘176 Peckham High Street’ next to where the premises are located on the map.

To ensure compliance with GDPR redactions have been made to the police withess
statement in appendix 3.

The rest of the representation remains as previously sent.

Regards,

Wesley McArthur

Principal Enforcement Officer - Licensing Unit
London Borough of Southwark

E-mail: wesley.mcarthur@southwark.qov.uk
General: licensing@southwark.qov.uk
Phone: 020 7525 5779

Switchboard: 020 7525 5000




43

Website: www.southwark.gov.uk
Address: Licensing, Health & Safety, Hub 1, 3rd Floor, 160 Tooley Street, SE1 2QH

From: McArthur, Wesley

Sent: Thursday, January 11, 2024 11:53 PM

To: Regen, Licensing <Licensing.Regen@southwark.gov.uk>

Cc: Tear, Jayne <Jayne.Tear@SOUTHWARK.GOV.UK>;

Subject: Application for a premises licence: Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, Peckham, London,
SE15 5EG (our ref':881982) - Loc ID:172186 - Rye Lane ward

Importance: High

Dear Licensing,
Please find attached a representation regarding the above application.
Regards,

Wesley McArthur

Principal Enforcement Officer - Licensing Unit

London Borough of Southwark

E-mail: wesley.mcarthur@southwark.qov.uk

General: licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Phone: 020 7525 5779

Switchboard: 020 7525 5000

Website: www.southwark.qgov.uk

Address: Licensing, Health & Safety, Hub 1, 3rd Floor, 160 Tooley Street, SE1 2QH




a4

To: From: Date:

Licensing Unit Wesley McArthur 11 January 2024
wesley.mcarthur@southwark.gov.uk
020 7525 5779

(on behalf of the Licensing Unit in its
role as a responsible authority)

Subject: Representation

Act: The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act)

Premises: Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, Peckham,
London, SE15 5EG

Ref’: 881982

We object to the grant of a premises licence application, submitted by Mr Muhammad Baloch
under The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act), in respect of the premises known as Peckham Food
and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, Peckham, London, SE15 5EG.

1. The application

The application is to allow for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises as follows -
e Monday - Sunday: 00:00 hours — 00:00 hours (24 hour sale of alcohol)

The proposed opening hours of the premises are:
e Monday - Sunday: 00:00 hours - 00:00 hours

The premises, and its intended operation, are described in the application as (verbatim):

e “A convenience store offering a range of groceries and goods in addition to the sale of
alcohol.”

2. The Locale

The premises are located on Peckham High Street, which is a major thoroughfare and bus
transport hub. It is a densely urbanised road with various commercial premises and residential
properties. There are 14 premises licensed for the off sale of alcohol on Peckham High Street
itself, including § that could be described as off-licences, grocers, supermarkets or
convenience stores. All of these premises are listed in table 1 as below (off-licences, grocers,
supermarkets and convenience stores are highlighted in yellow).

Table 1.
No. Licence | Name Address

number
1 832753 | Pricecutter 12 Peckham High Street
2 7818 Kam Foh 19 Peckham High Street
3 840937 | Tiwa'n'Tiwa 34 Peckham High Street
4 872440 | Tola 56 Peckham High Street
5 843557 | Little Hut 59 Peckham High Street
6 881617 | Vaalee 66 Peckham High Street
7 876239 | The Kentish Drovers 71-79 Peckham High Street
8 876834 | The Greyhound 109 Peckham High Street
9 878084 | Abbeville Café & Bites 111 Peckham High Street
10 877710 | The Red Bull 116 Peckham High Street




45

11 881133 | Tigella 119 Peckham High Street
12 875277 | Peckham News 133 Peckham High Street
13 876936 | Binder Off Licence 149 Peckham High Street
14 876933 | The Copper Tap 190-192 Peckham High Street

There are also another 9 premises in the wider locale that could be described as off-licences,
grocers, supermarkets, convenience stores. All of these premises are listed in table 2 as below.

Table 2.
No. | Licence | Name Address
number
1 881835 | Lidl Unit 3, Bellenden Road Retail Park
2 878561 | Morrisons Unit 3, The Aylesham Centre
3 875442 | Tesco 34 Rye Lane
- 881341 | Iceland 87-95 Rye Lane
5 855255 | Bims 102 Rye Lane
6 872844 | Rye Express 137 Rye Lane
7 880481 | A Family Convenience Store | 161 Rye Lane
8 877864 | Jaffa 168 Rye Lane
9 881458 | Tesco 265 Rye Lane

In addition to the above licensed premises, there are other licensed premises of varying
description (e.g. pubs, bars, clubs and restaurants) that are licensed for the off sale of alcohol
in the wider locale.

A map of the area the premises are locate in is attached as appendix 1. The premises are
identified by a pin on the map and the written address ‘176 Peckham High Street’.

2. Extant premises licence

The premises already benefits from a premises licence (number 880978), which is issued to
the applicant regarding this application (Mr Muhammad Baloch). The designated premises
supervisor (DPS) in regards to premises licence number 880978 (Mr Naseem Baluch) is also
the DPS proposed in respect of this application.

Premises licence number 880978 allows for alcohol off sales to take place between 09:00
hours and 23:00 hours and for the premises to open between 07:00 hours and 23:00 hours.

Therefore, this application, whilst for a new premises licence, would have the effect of varying
the existing operating hours to allow for the 24-hour sale of alcohol.

A copy of premises licence number 880978 is attached as appendix 2.
Please note that whenever a premises licence is amended or varied the premises licence
number changes and premises licence number 880978 was previously premises licence

number 876417 (with the same licensee and DPS).

3. The Southwark Statement of Licencing Policy (SoLP)

The premises fall within Peckham Major Town Centre Area and within the Peckham
Cumulative Impact Area (CIA).

The following closing times are recommended in our SoLP in respect of the type of licensed



46

premises located in Peckham Major Town Centre Area as follows —

Off licences and alcohol sales in grocers and supermarkets:

Monday — Sunday: 00:00 (midnight)
Full details of the statement of licensing policy are available via:

Premises licence (Licensing Act 2003) - Southwark Council

4. Qur objection

Our objection relates to all of the licensing objectives.

The premises fall within, and are subject to, the Peckham Cumulative Impact Area (Peckham
CIA).

Paragraph 131 the SoLP 2021 — 2026 states —

e “Applications made within specified Cumulative Impact Areas (CIAs) are deemed likely
to add to the potential impact the policy is intended to avoid. There is therefore an
automatic presumption that such applications will be refused, however each
application will be judged on its own merits.”

Paragraph 156 of the SoLP stipulates regarding the Peckham CIA that —

e “The classes of premises to which the policy applies is defined as follows — night clubs;
pubs and bars; off-licences, grocers, supermarkets, convenience stores; and similar
premises.”

Therefore, the above premises is of a type of premises that is subject to the Peckham CIA.

As per paragraph 156 of the SoLP, the council has found that certain types of premises are
likely to increase the negative cumulative impact in the Peckham CIA of licensed premises in
that area.

We are in agreement with this stance and are therefore of the opinion that the
application be refused.

Paragraph 132 of the SoLP states that —

e ‘It is normally the case that a representation citing a relevant CIA will have to be
determined at a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing.”

We further note that section 136 of the SoLP states —

e “The effect of publishing a cumulative impact assessment is to create a rebuttable
presumption that applications for new premises licences or club premises certificates
or variations that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be
refused or subject to certain limitations, following relevant representations. In such
circumstances, it is for the Applicant to demonstrate that the application will not, if
granted, further contribute to the negative local cumulative impact on any one or more
of the licensing objectives.”



47

In our opinion, the applicant has not demonstrated that the application will not, if granted,
further contribute to the negative local cumulative impact on any one or more of the licensing
objectives.

Further, we contend that granting the application will further contribute to the negative local
cumulative impact of licensed premises in the Peckham CIA.

As stated previously this application is, in effect, a variation to existing operating hours at the
premises to allow for the 24-hour sale of alcohol.

We say that the 24-hour sale of alcohol is likely to have a negative effect on the promotion of
all of the licensing objectives and be detrimental to the quality of life for local residents.

Premises selling alcohol late at night, or into the early morning, have increased risk factors.
We do not think it is appropriate at all to allow premises to sell alcohol 24 hours in a
cumulative impact area.

We also refer to R (on the application of Westminster City Council) -v- Middlesex Crown Court
[2002] EWHC 1104 in which HHJ Baker adjudicated

“Notwithstanding the applicant being a fit and proper person and the premises would be well
run a licence could be refused on the sole ground that the area was already saturated with
licence premises....and the cumulative effect of the existing premises was impacting
adversely on the area to an unacceptable level.”

This means that the above application can be refused on the sole basis that it is subject to a
cumulative impact area.

In addition to the above, it is clear that there are already a large number of off-licensed
premises to provide an offering to the local area. We contend that the area is saturated with
premises that allow for the off sale of alcohol and that granting any extension of hours for the
sale of alcohol at any licensed premises would add to the already considerable problems
caused by licensed premises in the locale.

We further add that the full council assembly approved the current version of the SoLP and
have maintained the Peckham CIA four times in a row, showing that the problems related to
licensed premises in the locale (including off-licences, grocers, supermarkets, convenience
stores) are longstanding and ongoing.

5. Previous operating history of the premises

On 24 February 2023 the premises were inspected by council licensing officer Barry
O’Callaghan. A number of breaches of the existing premises licence were noted as follows:

1. Premises open beyond terminal hour.

2. Condition 343 (training records not available).

3. Condition 841 (ASPAL Premier Cru cider alcohol and Henry Weston’s Cloudy Vintage
Cider with alcohol by volume (ABV) of above 6.5% on sale.

4. Condition 842 (alcohol to be in a locked cabinet / cooler when the premises are open
to the public and the licence is not in operation).

The following day (25 February 2023) PC Maria O’Mahoney attended the premises and there
was non-compliance with conditions 340 and 341 (installation, operation and training
concerning CCTV).



48

PC O’Mahoney returned the next day (26 February 2023) and was informed by the member
of staff working that the CCTV still wasn’t working, again in breach of conditions 340 and 341.
The same member of staff also stated that the EPOS system wasn’t working meaning none
of the alcohol or cigarettes were being scanned (in breach of condition 845).

On 06 November 2023 PC Maria O’Mahoney visited the premises and observed breaches of
the following licence conditions:

340, 341, 343, 842, 845 and 846 (dispersal policy). During this visit, the person in charge of
the premises refused to provide their details to PC O’Mahoney.

We contend that the prior operating history of the premises under the applicant and proposed
DPS regarding this application is reason alone not to grant this application.

Witness statements and a notification of alleged offence regarding the above are attached as
appendix 3.

6. Additional information

Evidence and data regarding the negative cumulative impact that licensed premises have in
the locale has already been analysed by council officers and the full licensing committee,
which is why the Peckham CIA was introduced, and why it has been maintained after every
review of the Peckham CIA.

In addition to this, however, | would also add that my experience (as a licensing officer for 16
years) is that off-licenses that allow for the 24 hour sale of alcohol often attract problem
drinkers (e.g. alcoholics, street drinkers and / or people with substance abuse problems), post
club / late night venue attendees who wish to consume alcohol further (to ‘carry the party on’)
after the venues they have attended have shut, and also people from outside the area who
wish to purchase alcohol because their locale does not have premises selling alcohol 24
hours a day.

It is worth noting that there are a number of late night bar / club venues in the locale (indeed,
the premises are locate next to a late night bar venue).

The immediate locale is a known hotspot for the sale and use of drugs, for street drinkers,
prostitution (around Peckham Square) and for general street crime. Allowing for the 24-hour
sale of alcohol at the premises will inevitably feed into these existing extremely serious
problems.

In my experience, off-licences allowing for the 24-hour sale of alcohol often become a hub for
irresponsible alcohol consumers and often contribute disproportionately to crime and disorder
in the areas that they are located in.

We therefore refer this application to the council’s Licensing Sub-Committee and recommend
that the application be refused.

Notwithstanding the above, we note that the applicant has offered various control measures
in the operating schedule of the application, which would form the basis of enforceable licence
conditions (should a premise licence be issued subsequent to this application).

If the Licensing Sub-Committee were minded to grant this application, we would seek
preferred wording for some of the proposed conditions to ensure that they are practicable and
enforceable. We will be happy to provide the applicant and Licensing Sub-Committee with a



49

schedule of suitably worded conditions at the hearing to determine the application however,
we strongly re-iterate that it is our opinion that this application be refused.

Yours sincerely,

Wesley McArthur
Principal Enforcement Officer



-
ot

]

S =t
U .‘nr&g{;;&' 3

|.’I The @S{i_es_hai_v Centre

\ ]

1
&euenden Road
Retail Park

|
|
18116 14

-

18083

I |
|
|

’"':——"r"‘: 3 ———e ]

- [ s

—T X |
Ordnance Survey ;Q:_ooooaos_1 167Lan

- \

1 D‘J_ u:\gt_ﬂ)_,_
L_,:——-"C"1,gcas

.'-—‘—'-'-

I ~
‘im I )
'3 1
P
ge ([ !
gl
e |
o J
[—’g i |‘-
I Ry
'g : : Shelt:
e |
|
|
!

Mckerrell Rd

Car Park

L

7 ‘ LTEDS aormen . ',‘\ 1 | ' ) | @
Re?ﬁyﬁ;ex data is subject to Crown copyright and is ret’}( ugce t}tm% pekm te\*écﬂb E

Vs a0
i 5 AN ey
0

176 Peckham High Street

11039
_ Lambrook House

Lambrook Hous

arnﬁ’&eldk




Appendix 2 51

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Regulatory Services

Licensing Unit

Hub 1, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London. SE1P 5LX

Premises licence number | 880978

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Peckham Food and Wine
176 Peckham High Street

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable): 534464176745

Post town Post code
London SE15 5EG
Telephone number

| I

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises

The opening hours of the premises
For any non standard timings see Annex 2

Monday 07:00 - 23:00
Tuesday 07:00 - 23:00
Wednesday 07:00 - 23:00
Thursday 07:00 - 23:00
Friday 07:00 - 23:00
Saturday 07:00 - 23:00
Sunday 07:00 - 23:00

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premise

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises

Monday 09:00 - 23:00
Tuesday 09:00 - 23:00
Wednesday 09:00 - 23:00
Thursday 09:00 - 23:00
Friday 09:00 - 23:00
Saturday 09:00 - 23:00

Sunday 09:00 - 23:00




52

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises

licence
Muhammad Baloch

| Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) |

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Naseem Baluch

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence No. N
Authority:

Licence Issue date: 28/11/2023

Head of Regulatory Services
Hub 1, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London, SE1P 5LX

020 7525 5748
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Page 2 of 9



53

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal
Licence is suspended.

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who
holds a Personal Licence.

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises —

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals
to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public
or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase
and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person
is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where
it is reasonably available.

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of
alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

Page 3 of 9



54

(a) a holographic mark; or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

489 The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint;

(i) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the
customer is made aware that these measures are available,

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula

P=D+ (DxV),

where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(ii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence —
() the holder of the premises licence:

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.
3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be
a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

Page 4 of 9



55

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax;

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take
place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 5 of 9



56

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

340 A CCTV recording system shall be installed that is compliant with, and capable of, capturing an image
of evidential standards. The system shall continually record whilst the venue is open for licensable activity
and/or when customers are present on the premises. All CCTV recordings shall be time- & date-stamped
and maintained for a minimum of thirty-one (31) days. Cameras shall be installed so as to over both internal
and external areas of the premises. At least one camera shall cover ingress/egress points.

341 Staff shall be fully trained in the operation of the CCTV system and there shall be at least one member
of staff on duty during trading hours who is able to provide copies of CCTV recordings to the Police and
authorised officers of the Local Authority. Such copies shall, in any event, be provided within forty-eight (48)
hours.

342 The “Challenge 25”/“Think 25” proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises. All customers
who appear under the age of 25 will be challenged to prove that they are over 18 when attempting to
purchase alcohol. Acceptable forms of ID include a photo driving licence, passport, or home office approved
identity card bearing the holographic ‘PASS’ mark. If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce an
acceptable form of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol shall be made to or for that person.

343 All relevant staff shall be trained in the law about the sale of alcohol. Such training will include
challenging every individual who appears to be under 25 years of age and refusing service where individuals
cannot produce acceptable means of identification, acceptable forms of ID, and using the refusal register.
Such training (including any refresher training) will be logged and ongoing.

344 The premises licence holder shall ensure that notices shall be displayed in the premises, advising;

* CCTV is in operation

* a ‘Challenge 25’ scheme operates in the premises

* ‘No proof of age — no Sale’

+ Patrons should respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly

345 A refusals log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to the police or
an authorised person. The refusals log is to be inspected on a monthly basis by the DPS and noted in the
log and a record made in the log of any actions that appear to be needed to protect young people from
harm. The log must record all refused sales of alcohol and include the following:

a) the identity of the member of staff who refused the sale;

b) the date and time of the refusal,

c) the alcohol requested and reason for refusal;

d) description of the person refused alcohol

346 Alcohol shall only be purchased for sale within the premises from reputable sources and not from door-
to-door sellers. The premises licence holder shall ensure all receipts for goods brought include the following
details:

i. Seller's name and address

ii. Seller's company details, if applicable

Page 6 of 9



57

iii. Seller's VAT details, if applicable

Such receipts are to be made available to officers of the local

authority or police service upon reasonable request.

347 The area immediately outside the premises shall be monitored to ensure that any litter generated by the
premises and/or its customers is regularly cleared.

348 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or consumed on the premises.

Page 7 of 9



58

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

840 That no alcohol will be stored or displayed within 2-metres of the entrance/exit unless behind the staff
counter.

841 That no beers / ciders in single cans, bottles or multi-packs with an ABV of above 6.5% will be displayed
/ sold or offered for sale from the premises.

842 That when the premises are open to the public and the licence is not in operation, all alcohol shall be
stored in a locked cabernet/cooler, behind a lockable blind or behind the counter.

844 That alcohol is displayed as set out in the plan submitted with the application.

845 That an electronic point of sale system (EPOS or POS) is installed and operated at the premises.

846 A written dispersal policy is kept at the premises with the licence and made available for inspection by
authorised council officers or the police. All relevant staff shall be trained in the implementation of the
dispersal policy.

847 That all previous management involved in the premises are excluded from the premises and take no
part in the operation of the premises namely: That all previous management involved in the premises are
excluded from the premises and take no part in the operation of the premises namely: Kiran Israr, Saeeda

Yasmeen, Shazia Imran Islam and Mohammad Islam.

Page 8 of 9



59

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached
Licence No. 880978

Plan No. N/A
Plan Date N/A

Page 9 of 9



Appendix 3

60



61



62



63



BOC/1 64

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Regulatory Services
Licensing Unit

Hub 1, 3rd Floor
PO Box 64529
London. SE1P 5LX

Premises licence number | 876417

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Peckham Food and Wine
176 Peckham High Street
London

SE15 5EG

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable),
534464176745

Post town Post code
London SE15 5EG

Telephone number

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises

The opening hours of the premises
For any non standard timings see Annex 2

Monday 07:00 - 23:00
Tuesday 07:00 - 23:00
Wednesday 07:00 - 23:00
Thursday 07:00 - 23:00
Friday 07:00 - 23:00
Saturday 07:00 - 23:00
Sunday 07:00 - 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises




65

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises

Monday 09:00 - 23:00
Tuesday 09:00 - 23:00
Wednesday 09:00 - 23:00
Thursday 09:00 - 23:00
Friday 09:00 - 23:00
Saturday 09:00 - 23:00
Sunday 09:00 - 23:00

Page 2 of 10



66

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence
Muhammad Baloch

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Naseem Baluch

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence No.

Authority

Licence Issue date 17/05/2022

Head of Regulatory Services
Hub 1, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London, SE1P 5LX

020 7525 5748
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Page 3 of 10



67

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -
(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or
(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal

Licence is suspended.

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who

holds a Personal Licence.

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises —

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals
to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public
or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase
and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person

is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where

it is reasonably available.

Page 4 of 10



68

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of
alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

(a) a holographic mark; or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

489 The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint;

(i) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the

customer is made aware that these measures are available,

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula

P=D+(DxV),

where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(ii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence —
(i) the holder of the premises licence:

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or

Page 5 of 10



69

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(iv) "relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be
a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day") as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax;

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 6 of 10



70

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

340 A CCTV recording system shall be installed that is compliant with, and capable of, capturing an image
of evidential standards. The system shall continually record whilst the venue is open for licensable activity
and/or when customers are present on the premises. All CCTV recordings shall be time- & date-stamped
and maintained for a minimum of thirty-one (31) days. Cameras shall be installed so as to over both internal

and external areas of the premises. At least one camera shall cover ingress/egress points.

341 Staff shall be fully trained in the operation of the CCTV system and there shall be at least one member
of staff on duty during trading hours who is able to provide copies of CCTV recordings to the Police and
authorised officers of the Local Authority. Such copies shall, in any event, be provided within forty-eight (48)

hours.

342 The “Challenge 25”/“Think 25” proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises. All customers
who appear under the age of 25 will be challenged to prove that they are over 18 when attempting to
purchase alcohol. Acceptable forms of ID include a photo driving licence, passport, or home office approved
identity card bearing the holographic ‘PASS’ mark. If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce an

acceptable form of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol shall be made to or for that person.

343 All relevant staff shall be trained in the law about the sale of alcohol. Such training will include
challenging every individual who appears to be under 25 years of age and refusing service where individuals
cannot produce acceptable means of identification, acceptable forms of ID, and using the refusal register.

Such training (including any refresher training) will be logged and ongoing.

344 The premises licence holder shall ensure that notices shall be displayed in the premises, advising;
* CCTV is in operation

* a ‘Challenge 25’ scheme operates in the premises

* ‘No proof of age — no Sale’

« Patrons should respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly

345 A refusals log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to the police or
an authorised person. The refusals log is to be inspected on a monthly basis by the DPS and noted in the
log and a record made in the log of any actions that appear to be needed to protect young people from
harm. The log must record all refused sales of alcohol and include the following:

a) the identity of the member of staff who refused the sale;

b) the date and time of the refusal;

c) the alcohol requested and reason for refusal;

d) description of the person refused alcohol

Page 7 of 10



71

346 Alcohol shall only be purchased for sale within the premises from reputable sources and not from door-
to-door sellers. The premises licence holder shall ensure all receipts for goods brought include the following
details:

i. Seller's name and address

ii. Seller's company details, if applicable

iii. Seller's VAT details, if applicable

Such receipts are to be made available to officers of the local authority or police service upon reasonable
request.

347 The area immediately outside the premises shall be monitored to ensure that any litter generated by the
premises and/or its customers is regularly cleared.

348 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or consumed on the premises.

Page 8 of 10



12

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

840 That no alcohol will be stored or displayed within 2-metres of the entrance/exit unless behind the staff

counter.

841 That no beers / ciders in single cans, bottles or multi-packs with an ABV of above 6.5% will be displayed

/ sold or offered for sale from the premises.

842 That when the premises are open to the public and the licence is not in operation, all alcohol shall be

stored in a locked cabernet/cooler, behind a lockable blind or behind the counter.

843 That all previous management involved in the premises are excluded from the premises and take no
part in the operation of the premises namely: Asif Ali, Kiran Israr, Saeeda Yasmeen and Shazia Imran Islam
and Mohammad Islam

844 That alcohol is displayed as set out in the plan submitted with the application.

845 That an electronic point of sale system (EPOS or POS) is installed and operated at the premises.

846 A written dispersal policy is kept at the premises with the licence and made available for inspection by

authorised council officers or the police. All relevant staff shall be trained in the implementation of the

dispersal policy.

Page 9 of 10



73

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached

Licence No. 876417

Plan No. N/A
Plan Date N/A

Page 10 of 10



74

74
Cyderwitha
floral aroma. |
ESTR 1728




BOC/3

TAGE 202!

LOOK Ughty Do | o
JROMA Fresh & Fosd
FINTSH Full Bebed

TASTE: Madiom 8

MEDIUM DRY

UDY VINTAGE

o8 rRUITY A

75

=Wy

WYLD WO
. ORGAN!

MEDIUM DRY SPARKING®

wapilin oey

. CLOUDYLVINTAC

et
i3 tuii-sooinp agauiTY <44




76

BE R R RRE RN RESTRICTED (when complete) B R B R B

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B
URN

Statement of: PC Maria O'MAHONEY 2321AS
Age if under 18: Over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18)  Occupation: Police Officer

This statement (consisting of 2 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and
| make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it
anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

WINESS SIgNatUre: .. ..o Date: 28/02/2023

Before writing this statement | have viewed my BWYV footage which | exhibit as MVO/1 and
MVO/2.

| am a Police Officer attached to the Night Time Economy Team and part of my duties are
checking that licensed premises adhere to their licence conditions. On Saturday the 25"
February 2023 | was on duty in plain clothes in the company of PC Lorena HAUGHEY
2737AS.

At 23:45 hours | was driving along PECKHAM HIGH STREET when | notice that PECKHAM
FOOD AND WINE 176 PECKHAM HIGH STRET SE15 5EG was open. | decided to do an
inspection as | was aware that their opening hours were 07:00 hours to 23:00 hours and their
granted licensable activities were 09:00 hours to 23:00 hours. At 23:50 hours we
approached the shop and | could see a male serving customers through a hatch. | now
know this male to be Illlllldate of birth |l who gave an address of || G
I | identified myself to Mr [lllas Police Officer showing him my warrant
card and asked to come in so | could do a licensing inspection.

We entered the shop and | asked Mr [JJljif he was the DPS and he said no but he was a
Personal Licence holder. | asked to see his Personal Licence but Mr lllsaid that he didn’t
have it as he had sent it back to Havering Council to have his address changed. | asked him
was he still selling alcohol and he said no that he had stopped at 23:00 hours. On checking
the Premises Licence | noticed that condition:-

843 - That all previous management involved in the premises are excluded from the
premises and take no part in the operation of the premises namely: |||l

| asked Mr -had he previously had any dealings or worked at PECKHAM FOOD AND
WINE. Mrlllreplied “Never had | worked here”. He confirmed that it was him named on
condition 843 of the Premises Licence. He then said that he could work there as staff but
not management. | pointed out to Mr [lllthat the condition stated that he was “excluded
from the premises and to take no part in the operation”. He then said that “as the boss told
me as a management you can’t work but as staff you can”. He then said the brother of the
owner Mr BALOCH was on holiday and asked him to come in and help. He then said that he
thought he was allowed to work there after 23:00 hours when the Premises was no longer
allowed to sell alcohol. He also stated that he had never had anything to do with PECKHAM

L (g TS (o | o F= 0 (= SRS

Page 1 of 3

EEREHEE RESTRICTED (when complete) EEEEEEHR




‘B EREEERE RESTRICTED (when complete) EEEER

Continuation of Statement of:
FOOD AND WINE and that this condition was from a previous Off Licence he had worked in

which was PRESCO FOOD AND WINE SOUTHAMPTON WAY where he had received a
caution for selling counterfeit alcohol.

| asked Mr -if he could show me the CCTV. Mrlllclaimed that the CCTV was locked in
another room and the boss had left with the key at 23:00 hours. This is a breach of
conditions:-

340 - A CCTV recording system shall be installed that is compliant with, and capable of,
capturing an image of evidential standards. The system shall continually record whilst the
venue is open for licensable activity and/or when customers are present on the premises. All
CCTV recordings shall be time- & date-stamped and maintained for a minimum of thirty-one
(31) days. Cameras shall be installed so as to over both internal and external areas of the
premises. At least one camera shall cover ingress/egress points.

341 - Staff shall be fully trained in the operation of the CCTV system and there shall be at
least one member of staff on duty during trading hours who is able to provide copies of
CCTV recordings to the Police and authorised officers of the Local Authority. Such copies
shall, in any event, be provided within forty-eight (48) hours.

As | was leaving | told Mr [Jjijto let Mr BALUCH know that | would be returning Sunday night
before 23:00 hours to view the CCTV.

On Sunday the 26™ February 2023 at 22:15 hours myself and PC HAUGHEY returned to
PECKHAM FOOD AND WINE. Working behind the counter was a female who gave her
name as [ G -t< of birth IIE-nd resides at TN
I < identified ourselves as Police Officers and explained that we were there to
carry out a licensing inspection. Ms | 2s unable to produce any ID to verify her
details but her name appeared on the training records and the authority letter stating she had
been authorised by the DPS to sell alcohol. | asked her how long she had worked at
PECKHAM FOOD AND WINE and she said she was training and had only been there for
two weeks. | asked to view the CCTV and Ms | 'aimed it wasn’'t working as there
was a problem with the hard drive. Ms | lvas extremely nervous and | had to tell
her to calm down and to contact her boss. Ms s aid he was upstairs in the flats
above the shop where he lives. | asked her to phone him to come down so we could carry
out the inspection with him. She got Mr BALUCH on the phone and he refused to come
down as he was eating dinner with his family. As Ms |IINIEElll vas on the phone a
customer came in and | noticed that she did not use the till to ring in the sale but was using a
calculator to work out the price. | picked up a can of Tyskie beer and asked Ms [ I NI
to demonstrate the EPOS or POS sale system. Ms [l them explained that the
EPOS sale system wasn’t working so that none of the alcohol or cigarettes were being
scanned. This was a breach of condition:-

845 - That an electronic point of sale system (EPOS or POS) is installed and operated at the
premises.

Ms I 25 still on the phone to Mr BALUCH so | asked her to put him on the phone
to me as | was concerned that she had only been working there two weeks and was still

L (g TS (o | o F= 0 (= SRS

Page 2 of 3

H B EREBER RESTRICTED (when complete) ' BB EEREBE




‘B EREEERE RESTRICTED (when complete) EEEER

Continuation of Statement of:

training. There were a number of breaches of the Premises Licence and | would be issuing

a Notification of Offences. Ms || lllllasked Mr BULACH to speak to me on the phone
so the issues could be addressed but he refused requesting that | email him. | asked Ms |}
I o t<!l Mr BULACH that | would be making a note that he refused to speak to me. |
also asked her to ask him why he had Mr |JJlillworking in the shop when there is a
condition on the Premises Licence that he is not allowed to be involved with the premises.

Ms |l <'ayed this to Mr BULACH who replied that because Mr [Jjwas in there
after 23:00 hours the Premises licence conditions are no longer enforceable.

As Mr BULACH refused to either come downstairs or speak to me on the phone | issued the
Notification of Offences to ||| | | o signed acknowledging receipt of the form
before leaving the premises.

L (g TS (o | o F= 0 (= SRS

Page 3 of 3

H B EREBER RESTRICTED (when complete) ' BB EEREBE




79

POLICE ‘ Police Copy

Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003

Venue Name: | REF: (CAD/CRIS etc.)

Address: | ! : . e\ CoACA o . A AN
wDate: . LA Lo oTimen kD ko K5

Details of person in charge at the relevant time: ... i e s e i PR s ot

DPS [ ] Personal Licence Holder [_]

Summary of alleged offences identified

[ ] section 57(4) Failure to secure premises licence or a certified copy at the premises or to prominently display a
summary of the Licence.

[]section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises licence or a certified copy. i

[_] Section 109 (4) Failure to secure that a copy of the Temporary Event Notice (TEN) is prominently displayed at the
premises or secure that a copy of the TEN is in the custody of an appropriate person.

D Section" 109 (8) Failure to produce a TEN to a police officer.
D Section 135 (4) Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer.

D Section 136 (1) Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise and in
accordance with an authorisatation or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be carried on. (Sec19 issued Y[ JNo[])

() Section 137 (1) Exposing alcohol for retail without an authorisation. (Sec19 issued Y [} No D )

D Section 138 (1) Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale. (Sec19 issued Y 5] No [])
(] section 140 (1) Knowingly allowing disorderly conduct on a licensed premises.

[_] section 141 (1) Knowingly selling or attempting or allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk.

[_]Section 144 (1) Knowingly keeping or allowing non duty paid goods or unlawfully imported goods to be kept on
premises.

D Section 145 (1) Allowing an unaccompanied child on a premises (used primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol).
[_] section 146 (1) Selling alcohol to an individual aged under 18.

[ Section 147 (1) Knowingly allowing the sale of alcohol to an individual under 18.

[_] section 153 (1) knowingly allowing an individual under 18 to make a an unsupervised sale of alcohol.

(] section 179 (4) Intentionally obstructing any authorised person exercising a power of entry under section 179.

Details of alleged offence(s) including relevant Cad and Crime report details:

./'

Issuing officer: /- ....... LAl .. Print AAA £
| acknowledge receipt of this form: (venue) ..o Lot

The purpose of this notice is to inform you that the failure to comply with the Licensing Act 2003 may result in the
police initiating criminal proceedings against the DPS, premises licence holder, or both. This notice may also be
used in evidence to support a review of the premises licence pursuant to section 51 Licensing Act 2003 and/or an
application for a closure order under section 20 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001




80 APPENDIX C

southwark.gov.uk

NOTICE OF DECISION
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 31 OCTOBER 2023

SECTION 34 LICENSING ACT 2003: PECKHAM FOOD AND WINE, 176 PECKHAM
HIGH STREET, LONDON SE15 5EG

Decision

That the application made by Muhammad Baloch for a premises licence to be varied
under Section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the premises known as Peckham
Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5EG be granted.

Reasons

This was an application made by Muhammad Baloch for the variation of the premises
licence in respect of the premises known as Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham
High Street, London SE15 5EG

The licensing sub-committee heard from the applicant’s representative who advised that
there had been no breach of condition 843 because Asif Ali had never been a member of
management of the premises; he was a paid member of staff. His name had been included
to the condition erroneously, having been involved in another premises in Southwark. It was
accepted that he had received a caution for trading standards offences, but it was
disproportionate and unreasonable for an individual to be banned from working at all licensed
premises indefinitely within in the borough for transgressions, nine years ago. Further, neither
the police nor had any resident objected to the application.

The licensing sub-committee heard from the officer representing licensing as a
responsible authority who objected to the application based on all four licensing
objectives. The officer explained that the removal of Asif Ali's name from the condition
843 was an attempt to subvert the decision of the licensing sub-committee and employ a
person who has previously been found unable to promote the licensing objectives.

Reference was made to the witness statement of Barry O’Callahan who advised that the
applicant had employed Asif Ali at the premises in the full knowledge that it would be a
breach of the condition when on 24 February 2023, he had been found to be working at
the premises. A number of other breaches of the licence were noted including:

i Open beyond terminal hour.

ii.  Condition 343 (training records not available).

iii. Condition 841 (ASPAL Premier Cru cider alcohol (with alcohol of above
6.8% volume) on display).

iv. Condition 842 (alcohol to be in a locked cabinet/cooler when the premises are
open to the public and the licence is not in operation).

v. Condition 843 (Asif Ali had not been excluded from the premises).

NOTICE OF DECISION — LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 31 OCTOBER 2023



81

The following day (25 February 2023) PC Maria O’Mahoney attended the premises and
again, found Asif Ali working at the premises, in breach of condition 843. There was also
non-compliance with conditions 340 and 341 (installation operation and training
concerning CCTV).

The officer returned the next day (26 February 2023) and was informed by the member
of staff working that the CCTV in breach of wasn’t working, again in breach of conditions
340 and 341. The same member of staff also stated that the EPOS system wasn’t
working meaning none of the alcohol or cigarettes were being scanned (in breach of
condition 845).

The licensing sub-committee heard from The trading standards officer, who advised that
he had objected to the applications under all of the licensing objectives. The officer
advised he had attended 176 Peckham High Street on 9 March 2023 and found that Asif
Ali had been authorised to sell alcohol, he had signed the premises training records and
made entries in the refusals register. It was explained that condition 843 had been
imposed following the new premises licence application previously made, when Asif Ali
had been named as the designated premises supervisor (DPS).

The officer confirmed that Asif Ali had not previously been associated with Peckham Food
and Wine, but another premises within Southwark, which had its premises licence
revoked for a number of issues including allegations of modern day slavery and other
breaches of the licence. This resulted in Asif Ali accepting a caution. Concerning the
Applicant’s legal representative argument that condition 843 had not been breached
(because Asif Ali was not a previous member of management), the officer suggested in
passing that arguably, Asif Ali had been a member of management when he was the
proposed DPS.

The premises is located in the Peckham cumulative impact area (CIA) which applies to
off-licences and alcohol sales in grocers and supermarkets. The Peckham CIA was
introduced to address serious problems of alcohol fuelled nuisance and disorder arising
in the area, including street drinking.

The sub-committee also took into account Westminster City Council v Middlesex Crown
Court [2002] EWHC 1104 which confirmed that a premises licence could be refused on
the sole ground that the area was already saturated with licensed premises.

The licensing sub-committee had regard to the Home Office Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (July 2023). Paragraph 2.1 provides:

“Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on
crime and disorder”.

The sub-committee noted that the police had not submitted an objection opposing the

application, suggesting that there the removal of Asif Ali's name from condition 843 would

not undermine the licensing objectives.

The applicant’s legal representative also referred to paragraph 2.5 which provides:
“‘Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises

supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally
be the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the

NOTICE OF DECISION - LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 31 OCTOBER 2023



82

licensing authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are
competent and appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key
person who will usually be responsible for the day to day management of the
premises by the premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A
condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances
where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular
premises, poor management competency could give rise to issues of crime and
disorder and public safety”.

The legal representative for the applicant stated that Paragraph 2.5 was equally
applicable to the appointment of managers and that it was the Applicant as the employer
and licensee to ensure that the manager appointed was competent and appropriately
trained. The exclusion condition was only justified in rare circumstances, which this was
not.

The sub-committee also had regard to the Ministry of Justice Guidance on the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 and The Exceptions Order 1975 (31 October
2023) that provides the rehabilitation period for a caution starts from the date the
caution penalty was imposed. Regardless, it is deemed spent immediately.

Overall, the licensing sub-committee took the view that this was a case where it could
make an exception not to apply the CIA policy. The caution that Mr Ali accepted was
historic and in any event, it had long since been spent. The sub-committee makes no
finding on the interpretation of “previous management” and condition 843 and agrees
that it is unreasonable to hold Asif Ali to this condition any further.

There has been a questionable history of regulatory compliance at the premises, albeit
when it was under a different licensee. This is mentioned due to the non-compliance
with conditions 340, 241, 343, 841, 842 and 845 (detailed above). The premises being
in a CIA means it deal with the most challenging of customers in terms of crime and disorder.
This sub-committee therefore expects complete compliance with the premises licence
forthwith.

Appeal rights

The applicant may appeal against any decision to modify the conditions of the licence;
and:

Any person who made relevant representations in relation to the application who desire
to contend that:

a) The variation ought not to be been granted; or
b)  That, when varying the licence, the licensing authority ought not to have modified
the conditions of the licence, or ought to have modified them in a different way

may appeal against the decision.

Any appeal must be made to the Magistrates’ Court for the area in which the premises
are situated. Any appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the
appellant to the justices’ clerk for the Magistrates’ Court within the period of 21 days
beginning with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of
the decision appealed against.

NOTICE OF DECISION - LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 31 OCTOBER 2023



83

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Assistant Chief Executive —
Governance and Assurance

Date: 7 November 2023

NOTICE OF DECISION - LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 31 OCTOBER 2023



84 APPENDIX D

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Regulatory Services
Licensing Unit

Hub 1, 3rd Floor
PO Box 64529
London. SE1P 5LX

Premises licence number | 880978

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Peckham Food and Wine
176 Peckham High Street
London

SE15 5EG

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable),
534464176745

Post town Post code
London SE15 5EG

Telephone number

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises

The opening hours of the premises
For any non standard timings see Annex 2

Monday 07:00 - 23:00
Tuesday 07:00 - 23:00
Wednesday 07:00 - 23:00
Thursday 07:00 - 23:00
Friday 07:00 - 23:00
Saturday 07:00 - 23:00
Sunday 07:00 - 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises




85

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises

Monday 09:00 - 23:00
Tuesday 09:00 - 23:00
Wednesday 09:00 - 23:00
Thursday 09:00 - 23:00
Friday 09:00 - 23:00
Saturday 09:00 - 23:00
Sunday 09:00 - 23:00

Page 2 of 10



86

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence
Muhammad Baloch

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Naseem Baluch

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence No.
Authority

Licence Issue date 28/11/2023

Head of Regulatory Services
Hub 1, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London, SE1P 5LX

020 7525 5748
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Page 3 of 10



87

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -
(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or
(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal

Licence is suspended.

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who

holds a Personal Licence.

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises —

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals
to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public
or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase
and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person

is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where

it is reasonably available.

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification

Page 4 of 10



88

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

(a) a holographic mark; or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

489 The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint;

(i) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the

customer is made aware that these measures are available,

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula

P=D+([DxV),

where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were

Page 5 of 10



89

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence —
(i) the holder of the premises licence:

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be
a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax;

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take
place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 6 of 10



90

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

340 A CCTV recording system shall be installed that is compliant with, and capable of, capturing an image
of evidential standards. The system shall continually record whilst the venue is open for licensable activity
and/or when customers are present on the premises. All CCTV recordings shall be time- & date-stamped
and maintained for a minimum of thirty-one (31) days. Cameras shall be installed so as to over both internal

and external areas of the premises. At least one camera shall cover ingress/egress points.

341 Staff shall be fully trained in the operation of the CCTV system and there shall be at least one member
of staff on duty during trading hours who is able to provide copies of CCTV recordings to the Police and
authorised officers of the Local Authority. Such copies shall, in any event, be provided within forty-eight (48)

hours.

342 The “Challenge 25”/“Think 25” proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises. All customers
who appear under the age of 25 will be challenged to prove that they are over 18 when attempting to
purchase alcohol. Acceptable forms of ID include a photo driving licence, passport, or home office approved
identity card bearing the holographic ‘PASS’ mark. If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce an

acceptable form of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol shall be made to or for that person.

343 All relevant staff shall be trained in the law about the sale of alcohol. Such training will include
challenging every individual who appears to be under 25 years of age and refusing service where individuals
cannot produce acceptable means of identification, acceptable forms of ID, and using the refusal register.
Such training (including any refresher training) will be logged and ongoing.

344 The premises licence holder shall ensure that notices shall be displayed in the premises, advising;
* CCTV is in operation

* a ‘Challenge 25’ scheme operates in the premises

* ‘No proof of age — no Sale’

« Patrons should respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly

345 A refusals log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to the police or
an authorised person. The refusals log is to be inspected on a monthly basis by the DPS and noted in the
log and a record made in the log of any actions that appear to be needed to protect young people from
harm. The log must record all refused sales of alcohol and include the following:

a) the identity of the member of staff who refused the sale;

b) the date and time of the refusal;

c) the alcohol requested and reason for refusal;

d) description of the person refused alcohol

Page 7 of 10



91

346 Alcohol shall only be purchased for sale within the premises from reputable sources and not from door-
to-door sellers. The premises licence holder shall ensure all receipts for goods brought include the following
details:

i. Seller's name and address

ii. Seller's company details, if applicable

iii. Seller's VAT details, if applicable

Such receipts are to be made available to officers of the local

authority or police service upon reasonable request.

347 The area immediately outside the premises shall be monitored to ensure that any litter generated by the

premises and/or its customers is regularly cleared.

348 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or consumed on the premises.

Page 8 of 10



92

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

840 That no alcohol will be stored or displayed within 2-metres of the entrance/exit unless behind the staff

counter.

841 That no beers / ciders in single cans, bottles or multi-packs with an ABV of above 6.5% will be displayed

/ sold or offered for sale from the premises.

842 That when the premises are open to the public and the licence is not in operation, all alcohol shall be

stored in a locked cabernet/cooler, behind a lockable blind or behind the counter.

844 That alcohol is displayed as set out in the plan submitted with the application.

845 That an electronic point of sale system (EPOS or POS) is installed and operated at the premises.

846 A written dispersal policy is kept at the premises with the licence and made available for inspection by
authorised council officers or the police. All relevant staff shall be trained in the implementation of the
dispersal policy.

847 That all previous management involved in the premises are excluded from the premises and take no
part in the operation of the premises namely: That all previous management involved in the premises are

excluded from the premises and take no part in the operation of the premises namely: Kiran Israr, Saeeda

Yasmeen, Shazia Imran Islam and Mohammad Islam.

Page 9 of 10



93

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached

Licence No. 880978

Plan No. N/A
Plan Date N/A

Page 10 of 10



Peckham Food & Wine - TENs

APPENDIX E

refno start_date | end_date |times max sale of | for police_obj | ept_obj | desc1
no alcohol | consumption
people
879110 | 20/12/2022 | 26/12/2022 | 23pm - 09am 5| Yes Off No No REJECTED, NO
daily Premises DEDUCTIONS MADE
879120 | 23/12/2022 | 25/12/2022 | 23pm - End 51 Yes Off No No
09am daily Premises
879107 | 27/12/2022 | 02/01/2023 | 23pm - End 51 Yes Off No No deduct 2 days from
09am) daily Premises 2023
879106 | 04/01/2023 | 11/01/2023 | 23pm - End 51 Yes Off No No rejected to many days
09am) daily Premises no deductions made
881785 | 09/12/2023 | 13/12/2023 | 12:01am - 51 Yes Off No No
23:59pm daily Premises
881784 | 15/12/2023 | 20/12/2023 | 12:01am - 51 Yes Off No No
23:59pm daily Premises
881783 | 22/12/2023 | 27/12/2023 | 12:01am - 51 Yes Off No No
23:59pm daily Premises
881782 | 29/12/2023 | 03/01/2024 | 12:01am - 51 Yes Off No No
23:59pm daily Premises
882058 | 20/01/2024 | 25/01/2024 | 12:01am - 51 Yes Off No No
23:59pm daily Premises
882057 | 27/01/2024 | 01/02/2024 | 12:01am - 51 Yes Off No No
23:59pm daily Premises

v6



NTE Visits — Peckham Food & Wine

APPENDIX F

adate desc aofficer | sourceno | adtext

16/12/2022 | 20:50 NTE Visit RM 877678 | 20/12/2022 9:49 RXM Visit wrt application for a full variation to
increase hours to 24/7.Copy of license not available... training records
available from recent application for a license etc. Left notice 3160 wrt
non availability of license.

16/12/2022 | 20:50 NTE Visit RM 879093 | 20/12/2022 9:52 RXM Full copy of premises license not available.

24/02/2023 | NTE Visit BOC 879093 | premises open at 23:45 and high ABV cider on display No training
records available

26/02/2023 | NTE Visit by Police 876417 | Notification of Offences

09/03/2023 | Police Visit - 876417 | Notification of Offences

12/05/2023 | 23:57hrs NTE Visit | RK 876417 | Visit to premises with Clarissa O’Toole (ASB Management
Officer).Test purchase attempted and no sale of alcohol provided.

10/11/2023 | 18:45hrs NTE Visit | RK A10354 | Visit to premises with Ken Andrews (Principal Environmental Health

Officer). Full Inspection completed with manager of the store/personal
licence holder Mr Asif Ali — || ] il Premises compliant at time
of inspection. The premises was also inspected in light of Police
Section 19 served at the premises on the 6/11/2023.All breaches
identified via the Police Section 19 have been rectified and the
premises was compliant at the time of inspection.

G6



.__ _I, ™ _ % 1 3 L] ¢ Jﬁo _ _ | ﬁ. B, o 5 , W : 'S _mo_or yoa| edoung Aq passisewsl buiddew
1 SO u__ dew aseq Fa Fﬂ “Aiys _mmmuv:m._ ﬂ_:tra ay) ypm vmoduo m..mcm. lAdoo™u Im. E BmE:m m__ wwmu xw_‘r \5@ vcm._ 9 Ebbwoow uﬂq m>; S 9oueupl ybu wmmnﬁmu pue 1ybuAdods umoi) @
1 0 [ _ ||||||| e = ! o]
G ] , _ | - lllmlﬁl.._ﬂm_u_ _ ml { 1 W “ PP Ty
=l Cuge T | PR Aol d A
1 - E—— |||L_ o | 8 WE IL_ EBM _.—H,:ﬂ—w
a:wEr 3Ie3S W = | | 1
i 7 = o I _ |
= o _ _ " 1 | | |_ ‘B E— | | [ fr_.“_ |
I ; | L _ _H H ]| — ~ _,
! E _ " “ [ aJenbs | J i [ s !
= L m_ ] ST | Ty
. _ ; ¥ _ __ J.ﬂ.--ll.,f ! [ | L L |
. m - B = —— | ._ I
=T &L _ﬁ — | ===l
o 3 M- I._.l), o= W ~| — .: Y i - !
.mﬂ _",." = : = — 55 A N e Y S =7 |
.I_ 1 _ [ _tl. T — N |,_ ﬁ 1] e _
n| | ! _ y - 2 —  Juiog |; _ [l 1 L [ . \
hﬂ __U_ 7 “_ . [ ,u@m_._%ﬁ_g a_mu : 3 n_r ! ) T o
o 3 - J— " m i i r g ~ | ar
. - hu _ ] _. = N I | SQ | . | L !
- u_ _ e o _|_ - T BPRE] 3! ey feld |t
= 18] I " | s i ozl | | 3 :
[y H._ 7 : o e . ,“.I., ﬂ_ ; el r,w.@y L%Hﬂ, ” |
2| 15 | el Il § 20 Zwvionad 1L/
2 n e aesl ! |
! I _ =
| r _KL — L I|_ “‘ wnd | . “ E | % "__ ..,
= | THd T S R - {
A IS ] - |} L, ___SSNoH jooiquie —5 ) 1 A o __
qall | e 1 \FL_! Hd el [ | @snol yoolqueT 1 | i __
; Sy < | , ] BE 01 | |____ a [ - [1 | Uonels sng __
5 . : . b = _| , 17610 188§ ____ | . __r WP _
. T 1 e 8 0 R E——— b_——/4
.-;ILIILQ P (Z0o2Y) 1S HOIH WYHXD3d e
A . et e e = — e — - — o= e
==t e l,,.wu — Mtl_.._ﬂ.ln.ll =
T
e e - N :_E_uI._ %
|||l,« | en——— ) RTZT |._.|__..:._ e ~ t__ 9] [ 1 =3 (4"
A e e .h_r_: i | 691 91 151 8| r-; __._H_Q‘_ \ Y [
- — - ~ - - _ | \ Mn ——
N 7 FSN0K ALDLINED P _ _ _ _i = _, R :._
| R ] | SN LI B ey ey
sesiw —= (| _ _ o ,, ,_E__“MM |
aid ||y - sesiwaid pasuadi < cmw_,u_mum_m U ..|4/ ‘m; \paega L—@
she : ,,/_ | _/ .n... , , _II_.IIL___.\
Meaye] - sesiwald pasuaol < ﬁ_ __ , , -.wn..nnnﬁwm.
=T \ -
18410 - sesiwalid pasuaai < _%» M_wm..nad._ .|__ \__ | = ,_ !
s8 Ay L : _ 7 i
# les-4O - sasiwaid pasuadl < N 4 \ L_ _ _ __ i
4oy | e
s /) ]
A | I
al|le] - sesiwald pasusol] ‘ Sy H h.. m _ _ _ / ..I. - H
._lk.. ¢ _ _ ’ u... —a i
_ m._mJ_

sjuswysijgeis3 b DEEEEE

upul mmm_EO._Q aSU30| ‘ i : F, -
i pos 936 4i4s/NOGNON L333LS HE F G171 SINIM 2.50004 z,%_:ow% )

sasiwaid pasuaai e !
| &S



> Agenda Iltem 7

Item No. Classification: | Date: Meeting Name
7. Open 8 February 2024 Licensing Sub-Committee
Report title: Licensing Act 2003: Club 701, Basement and Ground
Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA
Ward(s) or groups affected: | Old Kent Road
From: Strategic Director of Environment, Neighbourhoods
and Growth
RECOMMENDATION:

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made under Section
53CA of the Licensing Act 2003 by the Chief of Police for the Metropolitan Police
area, of the premises licences issued in respect of the premises known as the Club

701,

Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA.

2. Notes:

a)

b)

c)

d)

A copy of the current premises licence issued in respect of the premises are
attached to this report as Appendix A.

The grounds for the review are stated in paragraphs 12 to 25 of this report. A
copy of the full application and certificate are provided as Appendix B.

Copies of documentation concerning the history of the premises are contained
within Appendices D to H.

A copy of the notice of decision from the previous Interim Steps Hearing of 19
January 2024, as well as the reasons, can be found in Appendix I.

A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee
in relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a
copy of the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the
meeting.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003:

3. The Licensing Act 2003 provides a licensing regime for:

e The sale of and supply of alcohol
e The provision of regulated entertainment
e The provision of late night refreshment.

4.  Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.




98

5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with
a view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

The prevention of crime and disorder
The promotion of public safety

The prevention of nuisance

The protection of children from harm.

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to:

The Act itself

The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act

Secondary regulations issued under the Act

The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy

The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the
application

o Relevant representations.

7. The summary review powers under sections 53A to 53C of the Act allow the police
to trigger a fast track process to review a premises licence where the police consider
that the premises are associated with serious crime or serious disorder (or both);
and the licensing authority to respond by taking interim steps quickly, where
appropriate, pending a full review.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
The Premises Licence:

8. The premises licence issued in respect of the premises known as Club 701,
Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London, SE1 5BA allows
licensable activities as follows:

o Plays, films, live music, recorded music, performances of dance, entertainment
similar to live or recorded music, the sale of alcohol to be consumed on the
premises:

o  Wednesday: 22:00 to 02:00.
o  Thursday to Saturday: 22:00 to 04:00.
o Sunday: 22:00 to 01:00.

o Late night refreshment (indoors):
o  Wednesday: 23:00 to 02:00.

o Thursday to Saturday: 23:00 to 04:00.
o  Sunday: 23:00 to 01:00.

o Opening hours:
o Wednesday: 22:00 to 03:00
o  Thursday to Saturday: 22:00 to 05:00
o Sunday: 22:00 to 02:00.

9. A copy of the current premises licence is attached as Appendix A.



99

Designated Premises Supervisor:

10.

The designated premises supervisor (DPS) is Mr George Omozejele.

The Review Application and Certificate:

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

On 17 January 2024, the Metropolitan Police Service applied to this licensing
authority for a summary review of the premises licence issued in respect of the
premises known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road,
London SE1 5BA.

Also, on 17 January 2024, a Superintendent for the Metropolitan Police Service
certified that, in their opinion, the premises are associated with serious crime,
serious disorder or both.

The application is concerned with allegations of a serious incident that took place at
the premises on 2 January 2024 between 02:15 and 02.45 when the premises
should have been closed.

Police stated that they would provide details of the report Ref: 3001447/24 to
both Interim Steps and Expedited Review Hearings if requested by the licensing
sub-committee. The investigation into this offence is ongoing and, at the time of
submitting this report, no arrests have been made.

At the time of the alleged offence police say that the premise was open to the
public and here is no provision on licence 870760 that permits this premises to
be open and providing licensable activities on a Tuesday. There was no other
authorisation in place such a temporary event notice or non-standard timings.

The police indicated that this took place at a time when the premises were not being
operated in accordance with an authorisation permitted by the Licensing Act 2003.
The police add that, if the premises had been closed in accordance with the
conditions of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises, the incident
could have been avoided.

Police also stated that in November 2019, there was a serious assault inside the
premises. At the time of this offence, the premises was again operating without
the correct authorisation and was in breach of the premises licence conditions.
As a result of a summary review, the premises licence was suspended.
Following the full review hearing, the premises licence was suspended for a
period of three months and modifications made including a change of DPS and
additional control measures.

In December 2022, the premises was again found to be operating without any
authorisation provided by way of a premises licence or temporary event notice.
A notification of offences was issued by the police.

On the 3 January 2024, the police received credible information that an event
being held at Club 701 would be attended 'by individuals associated with gangs
and would commit serious violence’. After a number of conversations with the
premises licence holder, the event was cancelled on voluntary basis, although
a closure notice was also issued at the time.



20.

100

In submitting their request for the review (which can be found at Appendix B), the
police stated that they had no confidence in the management of the premises and
recommend that the licence is suspended until such time that the full licensing
review is determined.

Operating History:

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

On 19 February 2016, a premises licence was issued in respect of the premises to
Erico Entertainment Limited. The licence number was 851424. For reference, a copy
of the licence is attached to this report at Appendix C.

On 8 July 2016, a licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the premises.
At the induction, the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, as were
the role and remit of the licensing unit. A copy of an induction checklist signed by
the DPS is attached to the report at Appendix D.

On 13 August 2016, the police issued a closure notice under section 19 of the
Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding alleged breaches of licence
conditions 297, 341, 342 and 297. A copy of the closure notice is attached at
Appendix D.

On 10 September 2016, the police issued a closure notice under Section 19 of the
Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 over alleged breaches of licence conditions
289, 341 and 342. A copy of the closure notice is attached at Appendix D.

On 23 October 2016 the police issued a closure notice under Section 19 of the
Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding an alleged breach of licence
condition 359. A copy of this notice can also be found in Appendix D.

On 26 November 2016, a second licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS
of the premises. At the induction, the terms and conditions of the licence were
explained, as were the role and remit of the licensing unit. A copy of an induction
checklist signed by the DPS is also attached at Appendix D.

On 2 September 2017, a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken. The
premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 288, 307, 344,
345, 349, 353, 357, 379, 392, 4Al and 793 of the premises licence issued in respect
of the premises.

On 14 October 2017, an application to vary the premises licence was submitted.

On 11 November 2017, a licensing re-inspection of the premises was undertaken.
The premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 289, 307,
341, 342, 364, 377 and 793.

On 19 November 2017, the police visited the premises. The premises were found
to be being operated in breach of conditions 289 and 373 of the premises licence.

On 11 January 2018, following the variation submitted on 14 October 2017, and
following a subsequent licensing sub-committee hearing, an amended premises
licence was issued to Erico Entertainment Limited. A copy of this licence number
860699 is also attached to this report at Appendix C.



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

101

On 6 July 2018, the DPS of the premises accepted a simple caution regarding
offences under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 2
September and 11 and 19 November 2017. A copy of the caution is attached at
Appendix D.

On 28 August 2018, the police issued a Notification of Alleged Offence under the
Licensing Act 2003 relating to the unauthorised operation of the premises on 28
August 2018. A copy of the notification is attached at Appendix D.

On 11 June 2019, the DPS of the premises accepted a simple caution regarding
offences under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 28 August
2018. A copy of the caution is attached at Appendix D.

On 11 June 2019, a third licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the
premises. At the induction, the terms and conditions of the licence were explained,
as were the role and remit of the Licensing Unit. A copy of an induction checklist
signed by the DPS is attached at Appendix D.

On 5 November 2019 an application for a summary review was made under Section
53A of the Licensing Act 2003 by the chief of police for the metropolitan police. A
copy of the application is attached to the report at Appendix E.

The licensing sub-committee hearing to consider interim measures was held on 7
November 2019. A copy of the notice of decision for interim measures is attached
at Appendix E.

The final licensing sub-committee hearing, to consider the review of the premises,
was held on 28 November 2019. A copy of the notice of decision from that hearing
is attached at Appendix E. Members should note that, due to an administrative error,
the clause referring to Eric Doe having no operational involvement in the premises
was omitted from the revised licence issued thereafter.

Details of any complaints received since the existing licence 870760 was issued are
attached at Appendix F.

Details of night time visits to the premises by council licensing officers since the
existing licence was issued are provided at Appendix G.

Details of temporary event notices (TENSs) submitted in respect of the premises from
the date of the existing licence are attached at Appendix H.

Members should also note that, since the Police’s original review application of 17
January 2024, the following temporary event notice (TEN) application was also
declined (and a counter notice served):

Application Received Date: 18 January 2024

Start and End Dates: 24 to 25 January 2024

Start and End Times: 10:00 to 03:30

Number of Persons: 200

Licensable Activities: Sale by retail of alcohol (on the premises), provision of
regulated entertainment and late night refreshment.

o Reasons for Refusal: Late TEN declined by the police.



102

Review procedure and interim steps hearing of 19 January 2024

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

When an application for an expedited summary review is received from the police,
under Section 53a of the Licensing Act 2003, the council’s licensing authority has a
statutory duty to hold a hearing within 48 hours from receipt of the application to
consider interim steps that may be placed on the premises licence until such time
as the application can be fully determined. In this case this case, the interim steps
hearing took place on 19 January 2024, and the expedited review hearing will be
taking place on 8 February 2024.

The request from the police that the premises licence be suspended pending an
expedited review was considered by the licensing sub-committee at an interim steps
hearing on 19 January 2024. A link to the papers for this meeting can be found at:

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=172&MId=7897&
Ver=4.

Having heard all relevant parties, and considered all of the evidence presented, the
sub-committee took the decision to suspend the premises licence (pending the
holding of the expedited review hearing on 8 February 2024).

On 22 January 2024, one working day after the Interim Steps Hearing, the Notice of
Decision from the Hearing of 19 January 2024 was issued to all parties. On 23
January 2024, two working days after the hearing, the full list of reasons for that
decision was also sent to all parties. Both documents can be found at Appendix I.

The review is also currently being consulted on and a public notice is advertised at
the premises for 10 days. Responsible authorities and any other persons may make
representations that will then be considered at the full expedited review hearing of
8 February 2024.

All parties should note that the interim steps reached by the licensing sub-committee
on 19 January 2024 will cease to have effect on 8 February 2024 once the review
has been determined.

Representations from responsible authorities

49.

50.

The Police have indicated they intend to send further documentation in support of
their application, at this time, there is a supporting letter dated 25 January 2024
advising of a subsequent visit to the premises, attached to the application for review
at Appendix B.

Licensing, as a responsible authority, have submitted a representation in support of
the review application, asking that the premises licence be revoked, stating the
following:

“... [we] have no confidence in the ability of the licensee or premises’
management to operate the premises in accordance with the license
objectives, and indeed it has been proven that the premises has previously
been operated with little regard to promoting the licensing objectives...


https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=172&MId=7897&Ver=4
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=172&MId=7897&Ver=4

103

... [taking] into account the seriousness of the alleged offence regarding this review
application, the long history of non-compliance in respect of the premises licence
issued in respect of the premises, the previous enforcement action that has had to
be undertaken regarding the premises and the history of residual complaints, we
reiterate our request that the licensing sub-committee revokes the premises licence
issued in respect of the premises...”

51. The representation from licensing can be found at Appendix J.

Representations from other persons

52. At the time of writing this report, no representations have been received from any
other persons.

The Local Area:

53. A map of the local area is attached at Appendix K and the following premises are
within the immediate vicinity of the premises in question:

Asda, 464-500 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5AS:
o Late night refreshment - Indoors:
o Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 05:00
o Sale by retail of alcohol (to be consumed off premises):
o  Monday to Sunday: 00:00 to 00:00
o Opening hours:
o Monday to Sunday: 00:00 to 00:00
K-CHE VIP Latin Club, First Floor, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA:
o Live music —indoors:
o Sunday to Tuesday: 11:00 to 01:30
o  Wednesday and Thursday: 11:00 to 02:30
o Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 04:30
o Recorded music —indoors:
o  Sunday to Tuesday: 11:00 to 01:30
o Wednesday and Thursday: 11:00 to 02:30
o  Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 04:30
o Late night refreshment — indoors:
o  Sunday to Tuesday: 11:00 to 01:30

o  Wednesday and Thursday: 11:00 to 02:30
o Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 04:30



104

o Sale by retail of alcohol (to be consumed on premises):
o Sunday to Tuesday: 11:00 to 01:30
o  Wednesday and Thursday: 11:00 to 02:30
o  Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 04:30
o Opening hours:
o Sunday to Tuesday: 11:00 to 02:00
o  Wednesday and Thursday: 11:00 to 03:00
o Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 05:00
McDonalds Restaurant, 518 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA:
o Late night refreshment - indoors:
o  Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 05:00

o Opening hours:

o Monday to Sunday: 23:00 to 05:00.

Southwark Council statement of licensing policy:

54.

55.

Council assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing policy 2021 - 2026
on 25 November 2020. The policy came into effect on 1 January 2021.

Sections of the statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to the
sub-committee’s consideration are:

o Section 3 — Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four licensing
objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority relies in
determining licence applications.

o Section 5 — Determining applications for premises licences and club premises
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition
setting.

o Section 6 — Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current
special policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. To
be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the policy.

o Section 7 — Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises
and (planning) area classification.

o Section 8 — The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general
guidance on the promotion of the first licensing objective.

o Section 9 — Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of
the second licensing objective.



56.

S57.

105

e Section 10 — The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on the
promotion of the third licensing objective.

e Section 11 — The protection of children from harm. This provides general
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective.

The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to
applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the
applications. However, the sub-committee must always consider each application
on its own merits and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are justified
by the circumstances of the application.

Members should take into consideration both the Southwark statement of licensing
policy and the Section 182 Guidance when making decisions. The links for these
are below:

o Southwark Policy:

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-
licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy

. Section 182 Guidance:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-
revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

Cumulative impact area (CIA)

58.

59.

The premises is not situated within a CIA.

Under the Southwark statement of licensing policy 2021 - 2026 the following closing
times apply to the following premises:

e Restaurants, public houses, wine bars or other drinking establishments, off-
licences, cinemas, qualifying members have a closing time of 23:00 Monday to
Sunday.

e Hotels have no restrictions in this case.

e Takeaways and nightclubs are not considered appropriate for this area.

Climate change implications

60.

61.

Following council assembly on 14 July 2021, the council is committed to considering
the climate change implications of any decisions.

Climate change is not a legal factor in the consideration of a grant of a premises
license under the current licensing objectives, however members can make
enquiries and request an agreement from applicants to promote the reduction of the
impact of climate change that may be caused by the operation of the premises.


https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

62.

63.

106

Examples of such agreements may be:

o Not use single use plastics, such as disposable plastic glasses, when selling
alcohol at the premises.

o Encourage patrons not to drive to venues by providing details of public
transport on their webpages/tickets.

The council’s climate change strategy is available online at

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-Strategy-July-

2021-.pdf

Community, equalities (including Socio-Economic) and Health Impacts:

Community impact statement:

64.

Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits
with all relevant matters taken into account.

Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement:

65.

66.

67.

68.

This report does not result in a policy decision and each application is required to
be considered upon its own individual merits with all relevant matters taken into
account. In considering the recommendations of this report, due regard must be
given to the public sector equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act
2010. This requires the Council to consider all individuals when carrying out its
functions.

Importantly, the council must have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, or other prohibited conduct; advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people who have
protected characteristics and those who do not. The relevant protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. The public sector equality duty also
applies to marriage and civil partnership, but only in relation to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, or other prohibited conduct.

The equalities impact statement for licensing decisions is contained within the
Southwark statement of licensing policy 2021 — 2026 at:

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-
licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy

The equalities impact assessment is available at:

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92016/Appendix%20F%20-
%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf



https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-Strategy-July-2021-.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-Strategy-July-2021-.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy

107

Health impact statement:

69. Health impacts cannot be considered by law when making decisions under the
Licensing Act 2003.

Resource Implications:

70. There is no fee associated with this type of application.

Consultation:

71. The premises licence holder has been informed of the application for review and of
the details of both the Interim Steps and Expedited Review Hearings of 19 January
2024 and 8 February 2024, respectively.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Assistant Chief Executive — Governance and Assurance

72. The sub-committee is asked to consider interim steps following an application to
review the premises licence under Section 53A of the licensing act 2003.

73. The principles, which sub-committee members must apply, are set out below.
Principles for making the determination:

74. The licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider interim steps within 48 hours
of receiving an application for review of a premises licence where.

o The application is properly made in accordance with Section 53A of the Act.
o The licensing authority has considered the ground(s) of review to be relevant
to the licensing objective for prevention of crime and disorder.

75. The four licensing objectives are:

The prevention of crime and disorder
The protection of public safety

The prevention of nuisance

The protection of children from harm.

76. Each objective must be considered to be of equal importance. The authority must,
having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of the
following steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives. The steps are to:

o Modify the conditions of the licence by altering, omitting or adding any
condition

o Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

o Remove the designated premises supervisor

o Suspend the premises licence.

77. The steps will remain in place until the review application is determined at a full
hearing of the licensing sub-committee.



78.

79.

80.

108

The authority may decide to take no action is if it finds no interim steps are
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

In deciding what remedial action if any it should take, the authority must direct its
mind to the causes or concerns that the representations identify. The remedial
action should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more
than an appropriate and proportionate response.

It is of particular importance that any detrimental financial impact that may result
from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the
promotion of the licensing objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the
application for review.

Reasons:

81.

Where the authority takes interim steps an application for review it must notify the
determination and reasons why for making it to:

o The holder of the licence
o The chief officer of police for the area (or each police area) in which the
premises are situated.

Hearing Procedures:

82.

Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may determine
its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

o The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is
required for it to consider the representations.

o Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other
person appearing at the hearing.

o The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in
which to exercise their rights to:

o  Address the authority

o If given permission by the committee, question any other party

o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require
clarification, give further information in support of their application.

o The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not
relevant:

o To the particular application before the committee
o  Tothe licensing objectives.

o The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the public
from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in doing
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing,
taking place in private.



109

o In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in
support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

o This matter relates to the review of the premises licence under section 53A of
the Licensing Act 2003.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council has
multiple roles. Council officers from various departments have been asked to
consider the application from the perspective of the council as authority responsible
respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and safety and as
the planning authority.

Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impatrtially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing
of the application. In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader
policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must
direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law,
guidance and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the
application on its merits. The sub-committee must take into account only relevant
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, that
is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence of
relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future
event, the occurrence of which would be relevant. The licensing sub-committee
must give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make
representations to them.

The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises
if they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open. The
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same
to be relevant. However, if such events are not properly attributable to the premises
being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. Guidance is
that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities
taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, living, working or
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to
declare personal and prejudicial interests. The code applies to members when
considering licensing applications. In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members
are required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been
raised through representations from interested parties and responsible authorities.
Interested parties must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be decided on a
case to case basis.



89.

110

Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub committee needs to consider the
balance between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to the
application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under
section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to
prevent crime and disorder in the borough.

90. There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court against the licensing authority’s
decision regarding the setting of interim steps at this stage.

Guidance:

91. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in

carrying out the functions of licensing authority. However, guidance does not cover
every possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully
understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so. Full reasons
must be given if this is the case.

Strategic Director of Finance

92.

The head of community safety and enforcement has confirmed that the costs of this
process are borne by the service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Licensing Act 2003 Southwark Licensing, Mrs Kirty Read
C/O Tel: 020 7525 5748

Home Office Revised
Guidance to the Act

Secondary Regulations

Southwark statement of
licensing policy

Case file

Community Safety and
Enforcement, 160
Tooley Street,

London SE1 2QH




111

APPENDICES
Name Title
Appendix A Current premises licence
Appendix B Review application and certificate and letter from the police
Appendix C Previous premises licences
Appendix D Operating history documents
Appendix E Previous review application
Appendix F Log of complaints received
Appendix G Night time economy team visits
Appendix H Temporary event notice applications
Appendix | Notice of decision and reasons from 19 and 23 January 2024
Appendix J Licensing representation
Appendix K Premises location map
AUDIT TRAIL

Neighbourhoods and Growth

Lead Officer | Caroline Bruce, Strategic Director of Environment,

Report Author | Matt Tucker, Principal Licensing Officer

Version | Final

Dated | 25 January 2024

Key Decision? | No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought | Comments included
Assistant  Chief  Executive — Yes Yes
Governance and Assurance
Strategic Director of Finance Yes Yes
Cabinet Member No No

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team

26 January 2024




Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

112

APPENDIX A

Regulatory Services
Licensing Unit

Hub 1, 3rd Floor
PO Box 64529
London. SE1P 5LX

Premises licence number | 870760

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Club 701
Basement and Ground Floors
516 Old Kent Road

Post town Post code
London SE1 5BA

Telephone number

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Plays - Indoors

Films - Indoors

Live Music - Indoors

Recorded Music - Indoors

Performance of Dance - Indoors

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The opening hours of the premises. For any non standard timings see Annex 2

Wednesday 22:00 - 03:00

Thursday 22:00 - 05:00
Friday 22:00 - 05:00
Saturday 22:00 - 05:00
Sunday 22:00 - 02:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence

Plays - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00

Sunday 22:00 - 01:00




113

Films - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00

Live Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00

Recorded Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00

Performance of Dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00

Late Night Refreshment - Indoors
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00

Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00

Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00

Page 2 of 17




114

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Erico Entertainment Limited

516 Old Kent Road

London

SE1 5BA

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
09977040

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

George Omozejele

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence No.:
Authority.:

Licence Issue date: 19/03/2020

Head of Regulatory Services
Hub 1, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London, SE1P 5LX

020 7525 5748
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Page 3 of 17



115

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal
Licence is suspended.

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who
holds a Personal Licence.

102 The admission of children to films given under this licence must be restricted in accordance with the
recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification or of the licensing authority itself.

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals
to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public
or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase
and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person
is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where
it is reasonably available.

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

Page 4 of 17



116

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

(a) a holographic mark; or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

489 The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint;

(i) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the
customer is made aware that these measures are available,

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula

P=D+ (DxV),

where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence:

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be

Page 5 of 17



117

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually
given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax;

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 6 of 17



118

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during
licensed entertainment.

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will
record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial
image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the
bar and smoking areas. The premises shall not be open at any time when the CCTV is not operating
correctly.

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately
available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request.

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use
at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation.

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as
soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is
practicable to do so.

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the
premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once
completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed
on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire.
305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting that patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to
neighbours.

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be
made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be
responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to
ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has
been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy.

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of
volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the ampilification
system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most
exposed noise sensitive premises.

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music
is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises will be
gradually increased until the premises are fully lit.

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating

liquor is supplied.

Page 7 of 17



119

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is
trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving
footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers.

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be
installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about
banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be
able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system must be operating
correctly at all times when the premises are open and will be used to record the details of all persons
entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the
premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's
details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system.

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one
member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve
data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers.

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light
and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened.

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be
permitted in the public areas of the venue.

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as
soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book.
This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on
request.

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed
to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from the
premises.

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound
escape from the premises.

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen
extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the
external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise
sensitive premises.

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time.

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time.

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside.

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all

times by door supervisors

Page 8 of 17



120

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur
between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs.

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all
staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at
the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or
police on request.

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises' closing hours.

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after
02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose
of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises.
362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst
working at the premises.

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft.

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the
following occurrences at the premises:

* Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour

* Violence

+ Calls to the police or fire brigade

» Abuse of staff and / or customers

* Ejections of people from the premises

* Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade

* Refused sales of alcohol

» Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises

* Any other relevant incidents

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each
incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of
the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises
at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to
officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request.

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises.

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the
search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club.

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry.

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be

requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises.

Page 9 of 17



121

Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at
the premises.

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that
suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No
attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person
must be taken and be provided to the police In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a
detailed note shall be made in the incident log.

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the
premises.

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on
during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person
being ejected.

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the
venue.

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue.

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot.

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or
refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without
explanation.

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff
employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the
premises.

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the
cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings
in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music
Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises.

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the
premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident log.
380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the
premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary.
Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and
regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff.

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants
or any other staff employed at the premises.

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-

entry to the premises.

Page 10 of 17



122

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.
Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers
stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in
such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents.

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises.

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be
encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner
when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such
behaviour.

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable
transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi
controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member
and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their
taxi.

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and
shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities.

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of
any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers
whilst they move away from the premises.

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional
materials, including the premises' website.

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats /
possessions to customers.

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made
available to customers on request.

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701" as submitted on application for this licence
shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence.

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted
opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on
these days.

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external
areas shall remain closed.

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises
between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs.

Page 11 of 17



123

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol
request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol,
provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid
photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and any
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card.

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if
a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area.

Page 12 of 17



124

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the
running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place.

841 That a minimum of 3 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises if the premises
open before 00:00 hours, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will be
employed each night that the premises are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the stated
opening time of 22:00; after 00:00 hours, a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be
employed, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. At least two will be
provided with, and will use, electronic search wands. The electronic search wands shall be used at all times
that the premises are open in respect of the search of all persons who wish to enter the premises. This
includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment

842 That the premises will be closed on Wednesdays.

843 That the measures set out in the licensing compliance plan submitted by the premises licence holder
shall be implemented in full prior to the reopening of the premises.

Licensing Compliance Plan

The proposal is in five parts; (1) set up the policies and procedures,(2) provide staff training, (3) conduct
regular licensing audits to measure performance and provide due diligence evidence, (4) to provide ongoing
advice, support and to review any incidents / issues that arise & (5) conclusions.

1. Policies and Procedures

I. A qualified licensing consultant shall undertake a full review of the operation of the premises and produce
a comprehensive licensing Operational Manual which would contain licensing policies and procedures. The
manual would demonstrate best practice in all areas. It would also form part of induction for new members of
staff and the ongoing training of existing staff.

Il. The Operational Manual will set out the premises minimum operating standards and the policies and
procedures to be followed by all staff.

Ill. The Operational Manual shall be a 'living' document and will be reviewed regularly to ensure current best
practice and that any changes at the premises or to licensing laws are addressed.

IV. The Operational Manual shall include, but not be limited to, the following policies and procedures.

» Customer Vetting and Terms of Entry

* Young People

*» Searching and Seizure of Prohibited Items

* Preventing and Dealing with Intoxication

* Drugs

* Crime Prevention and Intervention

» Guest Welfare

* Ejections

* Security Roles, Responsibilities and Code of Conduct

Page 13 of 17



125

* Security Code of Conduct

* Dealing with Serious Incidents

» Sexual Assaults

* Crime Scene Preservation

* Theft Prevention

» Staff Behaviour and Code of Conduct

* Events & Private Hire

* Management of Outside & Dispersal

* Smoking

* Incident Reporting & Due Diligence Records

* CCTV, Body Worn Cameras and ldentity Scanning Systems

2. Staff Training

V. All serving staff will participate in the RASPFLO on-line training course (Responsible Alcohol Sales and
Promoting the Four Licensing Objectives -www.raspflo.co.uk). This is specifically aimed at serving staff, with
a focus on the practicalities of their work role and responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003.

VI. Each member of staff will complete RASPFLO training every year with a six month refresher session.
VII. A written record will be kept of all staff training and be available for inspection by the statutory
authorities.

VIII. The RASPFLO course covers the following areas:

Unit 1 - An Introduction to the Licensing Act 2003

» Understanding the importance of compliance and protecting your Licence.

* The requirements for having a Licence

* The difference between a personal and a premises Licence

» Mandatory and venue specific conditions

» The penalties for breaching conditions

Unit 2 - The Four Licensing Objectives

* The importance of promoting the objectives at all times

* The meaning and significance of each objective

* Learning methods to promote the objectives.

Unit 3 — Intoxication

» The dangers intoxication poses, the requirements of the law and the tools to deal with the issue effectively.
* The effects of alcohol on the body

* How to identify and deal with intoxicated guests

» The best methods to prevent intoxication.

Unit 4 — Age

* The law in relation to children

* How to check IDs

Page 14 of 17



126

* Recognising valid forms of ID

» [dentifying invalid IDs.

Unit 5 - Crime Scene Preservation

* When a crime scene should be preserved

» Actions to take following a serious incident

» How to ensure the preservation of a crime scene.

Unit 6 - Factors that Affect Drinking Behaviour

* The factors that affect irresponsible alcohol consumption

* How to promote a safe and responsible environment

* How to positively influence a responsible and safe drinking culture.

IX. All managers, and staff involved in a supervisory role, will undergo RASPFLO managers training, and
advanced version of the course.

X. The managers' version of RASPFLO also includes the six units in the staff course and also covers the
following areas:

* Closure Powers

* Preventing Drug Use / Dealing

+ Crime Prevention and Intervention

» Guest Welfare

* Ejections

» Conflict Management

* Dealing with Serious Incidents

* Incident Reporting

* Daily Due Diligence Records

XI. A qualified licensing consultant shall also be supplementary bespoke training for staff and managers on
the Operational Manual. This training will use the incident of 31st October 2019 as an example of the
dangers that can arise as well as the lessons learnt and procedures implemented to prevent further issues
following that incident.

3. Licensing Audits

XIl. Comprehensive licensing audits of the premises would be conducted by a qualified licensing consultant
to ensure compliance with the Licensing Act 2003, the promotion of the four licensing objectives and any
specific conditions attached to the premises licence.

XIII. The audits will measure the success and effectiveness of operational procedures and aim to build a
body of positive due diligence evidence for the premises. They also serve as a management tool; giving
confidence that the premises is compliant and acts as an early warning system if issues are identified.
XIV. The audits would cover the following areas:

* Licences and Signage

* Licence Compliance

Page 15 of 17



127

* Door Supervisors

*» Outside Management

* Fire Safety

* Record Keeping

* Internal Management

* Toilets

* CCTV & ID Scanning Equipment

XV. The audits would be conducted twice a month for the first 6 months after the premises re-opens.

XVI. The audits would be unannounced and be carried out whilst the venue was trading at peak times.

4. Ongoing Support

XVII. A qualified licensing consultant shall regularly re-evaluate the compliance regime at the premises,
taking into account shifting circumstances, changes in legislation, best practice and current guidance from
the authorities.

XVIII. A qualified licensing consultant shall review all incident reports and provide an assessment of the
incident, giving recommendations, advice and support as applicable. This may include reviewing CCTV,
writing additional policies / action plans and providing additional staff training plans.

XIX. A qualified licensing consultant shall provide record books regarding licensing due diligence compliance
(refusals, clicker counts, pre-opening checks etc.). The record books shall provide a comprehensive system
that is simple to use.

5. Conclusions

XX. The measures detailed in this plan have proven highly effective and successful at many busy late
licensed clubs and bars.

XXI. The compliance plan requires a clear commitment from the leadership of the business. The licensee
has assured the licensing sub-committee that the licensee is fully committed to implementing and following
the compliance plan.

844 That there shall be no shisha smoking equipment on the premises at any time.

845 That all security staff at the premises shall be supplied by an SIA approved contractor.

Page 16 of 17



128

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached
Licence No. 870760

Plan No. 01
Plan Date 11.12.13

Page 17 of 17



8 APPENDIXB

PROTECTIVE MARKING

ARSI TOTAL POLICING

Form for Applying for a Summary Licence Review

Application for the review of a premises licence under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003
(premises associated with serious crime, serious disorder or both)

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing the [form by
hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in

black ink.
Use additional sheets if necessary.

Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number:

Name: London Borough Of Southwark Licensing Authority
Addreés:

3rd Floor 160 Tooley Street ]
Post town: ;| Southwark Post code: SE1 2QH
Ref. No.:

I Police Constable lan Clements

on behalf of the chief officer of police for the Metropolitan Police area apply for the review of a premi:ses
licence under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003.

1. Premises details -
| Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description: |

Club 201, 516 Old Kent Road

Post t : Post code: ‘
ost town | Southwark ostEn ' SE15BA

2. Premises licence details -
Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known):
Erico Entertianment Limited

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known):

870760

3. Certificate under section 53A(1)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Please read guidance note 1)

1 confirm that a certificate has been given by a senior member of the police force for the police area above
that in his opinion the above premises are associated with serious crime or serious disorder or both. and the
certificate accompanies this application.

Please tick the box to confirm: E




130



131



132

The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service
Floor 3 Licensing Office
160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station,
London 323 Borough High Street,
SE1 2QH LONDON,
SE1 1JL
Tel:
Email: SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk
Our reference: MD/24/64
Date:07 25/01/2024

Dear Sir/Madam

Re: Club 701 Basement & Ground Floor 516 Old Kent Road SE1 5BA

Review of the above premises licence under Section 53a of the licensing act 2003.

Following the application to review the above premises, | provide the following
additional information.

The investigation into the offence that triggered the summary review is very much still
under investigation. The victim has provided a video recorded statement detailing the
incident in full to the investigating officers.

Following this statement the suspect for the offence has been circulated as being
wanted and arrestable for the offence.

Due to the sensitivity of this case, at the time of writing this additional information |
am unable disclose further detail regarding the offence or suspect.

I can confirm that PC Clements and | attended club 701 in an attempt to view and
retrieve CCTV evidence. It has been established that the premises were operating at
the time of the offence and licensable activities provided. We can therefore confirm
the premises were in operation without authorisation by way of a premises licence
and or Temporary event notice.

There are a number of issues with the CCTV recordings, | have detailed this in an
additional statement exhibit (MAL 13)

Condition 843 of the current premises licence relates to the premises compliance
plan and continuous training

Working for a safer Southwark



133

843 - That the measures set out in the licensing compliance plan submitted by the premises
licence holder shall be implemented in full prior to the reopening of the premises. Licensing
Compliance Plan The proposal is in five parts; (1) set up the policies and procedures,(2) provide
staff training, (3) conduct regular licensing audits to measure performance and provide due
diligence evidence, (4) to provide ongoing advice, support and to review any incidents / issues
that arise & (5) conclusions. 1. Policies and Procedures I. A qualified licensing consultant shall
undertake a full review of the operation of the premises and produce a comprehensive licensing
Operational Manual which would contain licensing policies and procedures. The manual would
demonstrate best practice in all areas. It would also form part of induction for new members of
staff and the ongoing training of existing staff. Il. The Operational Manual will set out the
premises minimum operating standards and the policies and procedures to be followed by all
staff. Ill. The Operational Manual shall be a 'living' document and will be reviewed regularly to
ensure current best practice and that any changes at the premises or to licensing laws are
addressed. IV. The Operational Manual shall include, but not be limited to, the following policies
and procedures. € Customer Vetting and Terms of Entry €Young People € Searching and
Seizure of Prohibited ltems € Preventing and Dealing with Intoxication € Drugs € Crime
Prevention and Intervention € Guest Welfare € Ejections € Security Roles, Responsibilities
and Code of Conduct € Security Code of Conduct € Dealing with Serious Incidents € Sexual
Assaults €p Crime Scene Preservation € Theft Prevention € Staff Behaviour and Code of
Conduct € Events & Private Hire € Management of Outside & Dispersal € Smoking € Incident
Reporting & Due Diligence Records € CCTV, Body Worn Cameras and Identity Scanning
Systems 2. Staff Training V. All serving staff will participate in the RASPFLO on-line training
course (Responsible Alcohol Sales and Promoting the Four Licensing Objectives -
www.raspflo.co.uk). This is specifically aimed at serving staff, with a focus on the practicalities of
their work role and responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. VI. Each member of staff will
complete RASPFLO training every year with a six month refresher session. VII. A written record
will be kept of all staff training and be available for inspection by the statutory authorities. VIII.
The RASPFLO course covers the following areas: Unit 1 - An Introduction to the Licensing Act
2003 € Understanding the importance of compliance and protecting your Licence. € The
requirements for having a Licence € The difference between a personal and a premises Licence
€ Mandatory and venue specific conditions € The penalties for breaching conditions

This condition was placed on the premises licence following the previous summary
review in 2019. | have requested details and documented proof from the premises

licence holder that this training has taken place and is updated every 6 months as

per the condition.

Condition 845 of the premises licence

845 - That all security staff at the premises shall be supplied by an SIA approved contractor.

| have asked the premises licence holder for the details of the SIA company that
provided security for the venue.

It could be said that any breach of these conditions would be irrelevant in this case
as there was no authorisation in place at the time of the incident that triggered these
review proceedings. We do know that the premises have been operating since the
2019 review, any breach of the above conditions are relevant to the overall
compliance of the premises. | await a response from the premises licence holder.

There are a number of addition enquiries to be made and any evidence of further

breaches or evidence to support this review will be submitted prior to the full review
hearing on the 8" February 2024.

Working for a safer Southwark



134

Yours Sincerely
PC Mark Lynch

Southwark Police Licensing Unit

Tel:

Working for a safer Southwark



135
APPENDIX C

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Regulatory Services
Licensing Unit

Hub 1, 3rd Floor
PO Box 64529
London. SE1P 5LX

Premises licence number | 860699 |

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Club 701

Basement And Ground Floors
516 Old Kent Road

London

SE1 5BA

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable),

177968534180

Post town Post code
London SE1 5BA
Telephone number

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Plays - Indoors

Films - Indoors

Live Music - Indoors

Recorded Music - Indoors

Performance of Dance - Indoors

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The opening hours of the premises
For any non standard timings see Annex 2

Wednesday 22:00 - 03:00

Thursday 22:00 - 05:00
Friday 22:00 - 05:00
Saturday 22:00 - 05:00

Sunday 22:00 - 02:00




136

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence

Plays - Indoors

Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Films - Indoors

Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Live Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Recorded Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Performance of Dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00
Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00

Page 2 of 15




137

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00
Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00

Page 3 of 15




138

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Erico Entertainment Limited

516 Old Kent Road

London

SE1 5BA

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
09977040

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Alfred Mansaray

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence No.
Authority

Licence Issue date 11/01/2018

Head of Regulatory Services
Hub 1, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London, SE1P 5LX

020 7525 5748
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Page 4 of 15



139

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal
Licence is suspended.

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who
holds a Personal Licence.

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals
to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public
or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase
and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person
is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where

it is reasonably available.

Page 5 of 15



140

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of
alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

(a) a holographic mark; or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

489 The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint;

(i) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the
customer is made aware that these measures are available,

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (D x V), where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence:

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the

member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

Page 6 of 15



141

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be
a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually
given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax;

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 7 of 15



142

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during
licensed entertainment.

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will
record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial
image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the
bar and smoking areas.

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately
available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request.

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use
at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation.

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as
soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is
practicable to do so.

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the
premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once
completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed
on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire.
305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting that patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to
neighbours.

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be
made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be
responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to
ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has
been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy.

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of
volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the ampilification
system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most
exposed noise sensitive premises.

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music
is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises will be
gradually increased until the premises are fully lit.

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating

liquor is supplied.

Page 8 of 15



143

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is
trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving
footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers.

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be
installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about
banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be
able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system will be in operation at all
times after 22:00 when the premises are in operation and will be used to record the details of all persons
entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the
premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's
details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system.

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one
member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve
data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers.

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light
and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened.

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be
permitted in the public areas of the venue.

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as
soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book.
This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on
request.

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed
to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from the
premises.

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound
escape from the premises.

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen
extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the
external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise
sensitive premises.

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time.

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time.

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside.

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all

times by door supervisors

Page 9 of 15



144

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur
between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs.

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all
staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at
the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or
police on request.

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises' closing hours.

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after
02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose
of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises.
362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst
working at the premises.

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft.

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the
following occurrences at the premises:

* Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour

* Violence

+ Calls to the police or fire brigade

» Abuse of staff and / or customers

* Ejections of people from the premises

* Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade

* Refused sales of alcohol

» Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises

* Any other relevant incidents

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each
incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of
the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises
at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to
officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request.

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises.

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the
search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club.

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry.

Page 10 of 15



145

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be
requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises.
Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at
the premises.

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that
suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No
attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person
must be taken and be provided to the police In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a
detailed note shall be made in the incident log.

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the
premises.

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on
during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person
being ejected.

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the
venue.

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue.

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot.

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or
refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without
explanation.

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff
employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the
premises.

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the
cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings
in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music
Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises.

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the
premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident log.
380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the
premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary.
Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and
regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff.

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants

or any other staff employed at the premises.

Page 11 of 15



146

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-
entry to the premises.

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.
Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers
stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in
such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents.

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises.

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be
encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner
when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such
behaviour.

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable
transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi
controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member
and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their
taxi.

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and
shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities.

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of
any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers
whilst they move away from the premises.

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional
materials, including the premises' website.

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats /
possessions to customers.

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made
available to customers on request.

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701" as submitted on application for this licence
shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence.

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted
opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on
these days.

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external
areas shall remain closed.

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises
between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs.

Page 12 of 15



147

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol
request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol,
provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid
photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and any
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card.

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if
a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area.

Page 13 of 15



148

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the
running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place.

841 That a minimum of 3 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises if the premises
open before 00:00 hours, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will
be employed each night that the premises are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the
stated opening time of 22:00; after 00:00 hours, a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be
employed, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. At least two will be
provided with, and will use, electronic search wands. The electronic search wands shall be used at all times
that the premises are open in respect of the search of all persons who wish to enter the premises. This

includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment

Page 14 of 15



149

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached

Licence No. 860699

Plan No. 01
Plan Date 11.12.13

Page 15 of 15



150

Licensing Act 2003 suthwrorK
Premises Licence —

Council

Regulatory Services
Licensing Unit

Hub 1, 3rd Floor
PO Box 64529
London, SE1P 5LX

Premises licence number | 851424 |

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Club 701

Basement And Ground Floors

516 Old Kent Road

Post town: London | Post code: SE1 5BA
Telephone number

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Plays - Indoors

Films - Indoors

Live Music - Indoors

Recorded Music - Indoors

Performance of Dance - Indoors

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The opening hours of the premises
For any non standard timings see Annex 2

Wednesday 22:00 - 03:00

Thursday 22:00 - 05:00
Friday 22:00 - 05:00
Saturday 22:00 - 05:00
Sunday 22:00 - 02:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence

Plays - Indoors

Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00

Page 1 of 15



151

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Films - Indoors

Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Live Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Recorded Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Performance of Dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00
Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00
Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00

Page 2 of 15




152

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Erico Entertainment Limited

801 Caliifornia Building

Deals Gateway

London

SE13 7SF

[ |

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
09977040

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Alfred Mansaray

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence No.
Authority:

Licence Issue date: 08/06/2016

Head of Regulatory Services
Hub 2, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London, SE1P 5LX

020 7525 5748
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Page 3 of 15



153

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal
Licence is suspended.

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who
holds a Personal Licence.

107 Any individual carrying out security activities at the premises must be.

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001;
or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals
to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public
or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase
and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person
is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where
it is reasonably available.

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of

Page 4 of 15



154

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

(a) a holographic mark; or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

489 The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint;

(i) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the
customer is made aware that these measures are available,

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P =D + (D x V), where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence:

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually

Page 5 of 15



155

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax;

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 6 of 15



156

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during
licensed entertainment.

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will
record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial
image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the
bar and smoking areas.

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately
available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request.

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use
at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation.

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as
soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is
practicable to do so.

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the
premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once
completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed
on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire.
305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting that patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to
neighbours.

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be
made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be
responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to
ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has
been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy.

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of
volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the ampilification
system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most
exposed noise sensitive premises.

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music
is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises

will be gradually increased until the premises are fully lit.

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating

liquor is supplied.

Page 7 of 15



157

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is
trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving
footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers.

341 That a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises, one of whom
shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will be employed each night that the premises
are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the stated opening time of 22:00. At least two will
be provided with, and will use, electronic search wands in respect of the search of all persons who wish to
enter the premises. This includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment.

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be
installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about
banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be
able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system will be in operation at

all times after 22:00 when the premises are in operation and will be used to record the details of all persons
entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the
premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's
details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system.

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one
member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve
data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers.

344 That all staff concerned in the sale or supply of intoxicating liquor shall undertake a recognised training
scheme for such duties. Records of such training should be kept at the premises and made available for
inspection to police, council or other authorised officers on request.

345 That no beverages will be consumed in the smoking area. Patrons will be encouraged to leave this area
as soon as practicable. At least one member of SIA staff will be situated in the smoking area at all times

the premises are in operation.

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light
and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened.

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be
permitted in the public areas of the venue.

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as
soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book.
This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on
request.

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed
to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from

the premises.

Page 8 of 15



158

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound
escape from the premises.

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen
extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the
external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise
sensitive premises.

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time.

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time.

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside.

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all
times by door supervisors

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur
between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs.

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all
staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at
the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or
police on request.

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises’ closing hours.

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after
02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose
of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises.
360 That customers permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises to smoke must be
restricted to a designated smoking area. No more than 7 customers will be permitted to remain in the
designated smoking area at any one time.

361 That all security staff employed at the premises will hold a current valid SIA license.

362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst
working at the premises.

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by

customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft.

Page 9 of 15



159

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the
following occurrences at the premises:

* Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour

* Violence

+ Calls to the police or fire brigade

* Abuse of staff and / or customers

* Ejections of people from the premises

* Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade

* Refused sales of alcohol

» Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises

* Any other relevant incidents

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each
incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of
the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises
at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to
officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request.

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises.

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the
search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club.

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry.

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be
requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises.
Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at
the premises.

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that
suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No
attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person
must be taken and be provided to the police In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a
detailed note shall be made in the incident log.

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the
premises.

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on
during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person
being ejected.

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the

venue.

Page 10 of 15



160

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue.

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot.

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or
refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without
explanation.

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff
employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the
premises.

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the
cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings
in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music
Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises.

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the
premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident

log.

380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the
premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary.
Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and
regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff.

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants
or any other staff employed at the premises.

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-
entry to the premises.

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.
Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers
stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in
such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents.

385 That towards the end of trade on each day announcements will be made via the premises' PA system
requesting that customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner and reminding customer that
they cannot take drinks outside of the premises.

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises.

387 That patrons will be requested to leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner.

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be
encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner

when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such

Page 11 of 15



161

behaviour.

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable
transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi
controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member
and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their
taxi.

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and
shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities.

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of
any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers
whilst they move away from the premises.

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional
materials, including the premises' website.

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats /
possessions to customers.

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made
available to customers on request.

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701" as submitted on application for this licence
shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence.

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted
opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on
these days.

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external
areas shall remain closed.

426 That customers must be at least 21 years old to gain entry to the premises.

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises
between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs.

Page 12 of 15



162

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol
request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol,
provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid
photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and

any Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card.
4Al That a register of refused sales of alcohol shall be maintained at the premises and shall include the time
and date of any refused sale of alcohol, the reason the sale was refused and the name of the member of
staff who refused the sale. The register shall be clearly and legibly marked on the front cover as a register of
refused sales, with the address of the premises and with the name and address of the licence holder. The
register shall be made immediately available for inspection at the premises to council or police officers on
request.

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if

a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area.

Page 13 of 15



163

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

793 That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol or the operation of the premises under this licence shall be
trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 and trained in respect of the full terms and
conditions of this licence. Records pertaining to such training shall be kept and be accessible at the
premises at all times and will be updated every six months. The training records shall include the trainee's
name (in block capitals), the trainer's name (in block capitals), the signature of the trainee, the signature of
the trainer, the date(s) of training, a basic summary of what the training included and a declaration that the
training has been received. The training records shall be made immediately available to officers of the police
and / or the council upon request.

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the

running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place.

Page 14 of 15



164

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached
Licence No. 851424

Plan No. 01
Plan Date 11.12.13

Page 15 of 15



165
APPENDIX D

Licensing Unit induction checklist for new licensees / management.

Premises Name & address: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, SE1 5BA
Licensee: Erico Entertainment Limited
DPS: Alfred Mansaray

1. INTRODUCTION

* Who Licensing Unit are
* Why meeting is being held — to ensure every licensee / DPS is fully aware of his / her responsibilities from the

onset
2. THE LICENCE

Introduce the licence document & the special & standard licence conditions
How long the licence lasts & what happens when it is time for renewal
What must be done if the licensee decides to alter the premises

Other circumstances in which a variation application may be necessary

INSPECTIONS

e

Reason for inspections and why conducted without warning and during performance

Risk assessment

Will conduct additional inspections where problems found and complaints made

Explain inspections aim to help but that persistent and serious safety failures will result in action

The potential consequences of licence contravention — formal caution / legal proceedings / licence revocation

4. ASSISTANCE

« Emphasise that if the licensee has any problems he should contact the office and discuss
e Leave calling cards

Officer(s) Attending: (Sign)

(Print) Wesley McArthur

Person(s) Present:

(Sign)

(Print)

Date of Meeting: 8 July 2016



166
Licensing Authority copy B699

CLOSURE NOTICE - SECTION 19 CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND POLICE ACT 2001
Date of the Closure Notice:' ./ " [/~ TimeServed: . ... .. ‘. ‘. e N
Authority issuing Notice: Metropolitan Police Service

Name and rank tHe NOLICE: ... .o YA VY bt . T VA E e e

Signature: . | ,

Name (if applicable) and address of the affected premises:

Alleged unauthorised use of the premises (section 19 (6)(a))

The officer serving this notice is satisfied that the above premises are being, or within the last 24
hours have been, used for the unauthorised sale of alcohol for consumption on, or in the vicinity of
the premises. The specific details of the alleged use are:

Grounds upon which the person serving the Notice was satisfied of the existence of such
unauthorised use:

Steps that may be taken to end the alleged unauthorised use of the premises, or to prevent it
from re-occurring (section 19 (6) (c))

)

Third party consideration (section 19.4)
Are there any other persons occupying the premises who need to be informed of this notice?

Yes/No (details).! .1 .
If yes they must be issued with a copy of this form

Effect of section 20, Application for closure order.

A failure to take remedial action to prevent further or continued unauthorised use may lead to an
application being made to a Magistrates court for a closure order under section 21 Criminal Justice
and Police Act 2001.

The Person (if applicable) on whom the closure notice has been served:
Name.... S N G M e T I et o W S
Signature. .

Date

MP 9113



167



Licensing Authd@Bcopy B699
CLOSURE NOTICE - SECTION 19 CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND POLICE ACT 2001
Date of the Closure Notice: .. 1, 60 Wbl Time Served:
Authority issuing Notice: Metropolitan Police Service

Name and rank enofice: . ). > L OINMUN

Signature: .

Name (if applicable) and address of the affected premises:

Alleged unauthorised use of the premises (section 19 (6)(a))

The officer serving this notice is satisfied that the above premises are being, or within the last 24
hours have been, used for the unauthorised sale of alcohol for consumption on, or in the vicinity of
the premises. The specific details of the alleged use are:

Grounds upon which the person serving the Notice was satisfied of the existence of such
unauthorised use:

Steps that may be taken to end the alleged unauthorised use of the premises, or to prevent it
from re-occurring (section 19 (6) (c))

Third party consideration (section 19.4)
Are there any other persons occupying the premises who need to be informed of this notice?

YesiNo (aotails ).kl &L . IS s
If yes they must be issued with a copy of this form

Effect of section 20, Application for closuie order.
A failure to take remedial action to prevent further or continued unauthorised use may lead to an
application being made to a Magistrates court for a closure order under section 21 Criminal Justice

and Police Act 2001.

The Person (if applicable) on whom the closure notice has been served:

Name

signature [T

Date .



169



170



171



172

4. Simple cautions become spent immediately they are administered. This means that you do
not need to disclose a simple caution when asked unless you are seeking work in an
occupation that is listed in the Exceptions Order to the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974
such as working with children and vulnerable aduits or for other excepled purposes such as
seeking o obtain certain licences. Police Cautions will also be disclosed under Disclosure
and Barring Service (DBS) standard and enhanced checks. Further mformatlon can be
obtained from the DBS.

5. The DBS maintains the lists of those barred from working with children and vulnerable
groups, including adults.- A simple caution may be taken into account by the DBS when
reaching a decision about the suitability of persons to work with children and aduits.
Accepting-a simple caution for certain offences may lead to the offender’s inclusion on such a
list which will prevent them from working in a regulated post with children and vulnerable
groups. Further information should be obtained from the DBS.

6. If the offence(s) involve a victim or victims they might still take civi[. action or bring a private
prosecution against you. The Council may provide your details to the victims if this is
necessary for legal action to take place.

7. Countries requiring foreign nationals fo obtain entry visas may require applicants to declare
simple cautions on their application forms or at interview. Other country’s immigration rules
fmay mean that'a person who has received a simple caution is refused entry as though they
have a criminal conviction. The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 only applies within the
UK which means simple cautions, even if spent, may still need to be disclosed fo some
countries in some circumstances. This will vary from country to country and may apply to
people who want to emigrate permanently or those who simply want to visit for short term
purposes, such as on business, for a holiday or to study. For specific information on what an
individual may be required to disclose, the relevant embassy of the country of fravel should
be contacted.

Further information relating to certain cautions

If this caution relates to the sale of age restricted products (ARPs) or services please note that
further covert test purchases will be attempted by the Gouncil at your business. This means we
will send in underage, or young loaking, volunteers to attempt to buy ARPs or services. Such test
purchasing may be covertly observed and reccrded. You should alse advise all sales staff of this.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Social Regeneration, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London,
SE1 2QH

Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Web5|te www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment 8 Social Regeneration - Deborah Collins

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373




173



174

Request to Authorise the Instigation of Legal Proceedings /

Ora Sim‘ple Caution

CASE London Borough of Southwark V Mr Eric Doe

Location ID 9232

PART A:

1.

Alleged Offence(s) including statute details

Licensable activities were carried on at the premises without authorisation
contrary to Section 136(1) (a) and (b) of The Licensing Act 2003.

A person commits an offence if -

he carries on or attempts to. carry on a licensable activity on or from any
premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation; or
knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on.

Place and Date of Offence

Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London,
SE1 5BA ‘

2 September 2017 at-00:20hrs

19 November 2017 at 01:51hrs

14:November 2047 at:00:55hrs:

The alleged activities taking place at the premises were contrary to Section 136
(1) (a) and (b) of the Licensing Act 2003 which states that:

A person commits an affence if;

(a) He carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any
premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation; or

(b) Knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on

Offender(s)
Mr Eric Doe — Premises Licence Holder (Person in charge)
Offence date - 2 September 2017 at 00:20hrs

19 November 2017 at 01:51hrs’

11 November 2017 at 00:55hrs

Printed 26/04/2018 Page 1 0f 8

CL1




175



176

Live Music - Indoors

Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
"Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04;00
Sunday 22:00-01:00
Recorded Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04.00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Performance of Dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 0400
Friday 22:00-04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 0400
Sunday 22:00-01:00
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00-02;00
Thursday 22:00-04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04.00
Sunday 22:00 - 01.00
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00
Thursday 23;00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04.00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises
Wednesday 23:00-02:00
Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
=Saturday- 23:00-.04:00
Sunday 23:00-01:00

On the 28 September 2017 a warning letter was sent to the operator of the premises Mr Eric Doe in
relation to breaches of his premises licence following a visit to the premises on the 2 September 2017.

On the 19 November 2017 a Section 19 Closure Notice under the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001
was issued to Mr Eric Doe by night time economy police officers carrying out an inspection of his

premises.

On the 12 December 2017 a warning letter was sent to the premises licence holder in relation to

breaches of the premises licence following a visit to the premises on the 11 November 2017.

On the 18 December 2017 a variation application was determined at licensing sub - committee to refuse
a variation application to extend them permitted licensable hours and to add electronic shisha smoking at
the premises. The Licensing Sub — Commitiee resolved to allow some amendment to the conditions on
the premises licence in relation to SIA staffing. -

A letter of alleged offence was sent to the premises licence holder Mr Eric Doe on the 28 September
2017 alleging offences at his premises and inviting him in to attend a PACE interview.

Printed 26/04/2018 ' Page 3 of 8 CL1




177

On the 14 February 2018 Mr Eric Doe attended offices at Southwark Council on 160 Tooley Street,
London, SE1 2QH. Under PACE interview conditions Mr Eric Doe was asked about the offences which
were witnessed taking place at his premises. Mr Eric Doe admitted that all the offences put to him had
occurred at his premises. Mr Eric Doe confirmed that as Premises Licence Holder he took full managerial
responsibility for allowing these offences to take place at his premises.

2 Brief Summary

On the 2 September 2017 at 00:20hrs council officers undertook an mspectlon to determine
whether the licensable activities at your premises were carried out in accordance wath the
premises licence issued in respect of your premises.

In the course of the inspection officers witnessed the below breaches of the premises licence
issued in respect of your premises; :

The clock on your CCTV within your premises was three minutes slow which is a breach of
Condition 288 of your premises licence which states;

That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full- working order. The CCTV system
will record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a
clear facial image of all persons that enter the venue. All publlc areas will be covered by the
CCTV system including the bar and smoking areas.

No accommodatlon limit had been set or was in use at the premises. Only one counting device
{to count customers ‘in’) was being used at the premises. No ‘out’ clicker was being used in
conjunction with the ‘in’ clicker, so there was no way to ascertain an accurate tally of customers

at the premises.
This was in breach of Condition 307 of your premises licence which stafes;

That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises
shall be made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the
premises shall be responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and
shall use counting devices to ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the
accommodation limit of the premises has been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in,
one out' policy. Staff at the premises hadn’t undertaken a recognised training scheme in regards

to the sale of alcohol.
| This was a breach of Condition 344 of your premises licence which states;
That ell staff concerned in the sale or supply of intoxicating liquor shall undertake a recognised

training scheme for such duties. Records of such training should be kept at the premises and
made available for inspection to police, council or other authorised officers on request.

Beverages were witnessed being consumed in the smoking area.

This was a breach of Condition 345 of your premises licence which states;

That no beverages will be consumed in the smoking area. Patrons will be encouraged to leave
this area as soon as practicable. At least one member of SIA staff will be situated in the smoking
area at all times the premises are in operation.

Acoustic seals, brushes & self closers were not installed on refevant doors.

il

This was a breach of Condition 349 of your premises licence which states;

Printed 26/04/2018 Page 4 of 8 ‘ CL1




178

That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be
installed to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound

{ escape from the premises.

Drinks were being permitted outside (in the smoking area).

This was a breach of Condition 353 of your premises licence which states;

That no dfinks éhall be permitted outside at any time. |

There was no dispersal lpolicy in pl'ace at the premises.

| This was a breach of Condition 357 of your premises licence which states:

That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises,
with all staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal

Policy shall be kept at the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be
made available to the council or police on request. :

No pre-opening security checks had been undeﬁaken or logged at your premises.
This was a breach of Condition 379 of your premises licence which states;

That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity
that the premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in
the incident '

log.

Not all promotional material identified the location of car parks in the area or other travel facilities
This was a breach of Condition 392 of your premises licence which states;

‘That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all
promotional materials, including the premises' website.

There was no refusal register available at your premises.
This was a breach of Condition 4A1 of your premises licence which states:

That a register of refused sales of alcohol shall be maintained at the premises and shall include
the time and date of any refused sale of alcohol, the reason the sale was refused and the name
~of the member of staff who refused the sale. The register shall be clearly and legibly marked on
the front cover as a register of refused sales, with the address of the premises and. with the
name and address of the licence holder. The register shall be made immediately available for
inspection at the premises to council or police officers on request.

No staff training records were available in respect of the Licensing Act 2003 or the terms and
conditions of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises. '

This was a breach of Condition 793 of your premises licence which states;
That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol or the operation of the premises under this licence

shall be trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 and trained in respect of
the full terms and conditions of this licence. Records pertaining to such training shall be kept and

be accessible at the premises at all times and will be updated every six months.

Printed 26/04/2018 Page 5 of 8 CL1




179

The training records shall include the trainee's name (in block capitals), the trainer's name .(in
block capitals), the signature of the trainee, the signature of the trainer, the date(s) of training, a
basic summary of what the training included and a declaration that the training has been
received. The training records shall be made immediately available to officers of the police and /
or the council upon request.

On the 19 November 2017 at 01:51hrs Metropolitain Police officers visited your premises to
carry out a routine licensing inspection. In the course of the inspection officers witnssed
breaches of your prmeises licence. '

‘When officers entered your premises they witnsssed patrons within your premsies wearing hats.
This was a breach of Condition 373 of your premises licence which states;
That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue.

Officers all requested to see footage from the CCTV system installed at your premises. Officers
| were advised that CCTV footage for 31 days could not be shown as the premises had changed
over its hard - drive. ' '

This was a breach of Condition 289 of your premises licence which states;

All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made
immediately available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request. '

On Friday 11 November 2017 at 00:55hrs council officers visited your premises to undertake
an inspection of your premises and witnessed only three SIA staff working within your premises.

This was a breach of Condition 341 of your premises licence which states;

That a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises, one of
whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will be employed each
night that the premises are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the stated |
opening time of 22:00. At least two will be provided with, and will use, electronic search wands
in respect of the search of all persons who wish to enter the premises. This includes all DJ's
and associated staff and their equipment. '

Officers undertook a check of the. ID scanning system in operation at the premises and noted
that patrons and staff entering into the premises were not being scanned through the 1D
scanning system required to be in place and in operation at the premises.

This was a breach of Condition 342 of your premises licence which states;

That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall
be installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing
information about banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both
passports and ID cards and be able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable
standard. The system will be in operation at all times after 22:00 when the premises are in
operation and will be used to record the details of all persons entering the premises including
staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the premises will not be
permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and/or if the person's details are

already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system.

Printed 26/04/2018 Page 6 of 8 CL1




180

Officers also requested to see footage from the CCTV system installed at the premises. At the
time of the inspection no staff were able to gain access to the CCTV system and did not know
how to operate the CCTV system within the premises.

This was a Breach of Condition 289 which reads;

All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made
immediately available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request.

At the time of the inspection officers requested to know the approximate numbers of patrons
within the premises. It was noted that comprehensive records were not available detailing
patrons entering into the premises. :

‘This was a breach of Condition 307 which reads;

That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises
shall be made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the
premises shall be responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and
shall use counting devices to ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the
accommodation fimit of the premises has been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in,
one out' policy.

In the course of the inspection officers requested to see staff training records and were advised
that these could not be provided:;

This was a breach of Condition 793 which states;

That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol or the operation of the premises under this licence
shall be trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 and trained in respect of
the full terms and conditions of this licence. Records pertaining fo such training shall be kept
and be accessible at the premises at all times and will be updated every six months. The
training records shall include the trainee's name (in block capitals), the trainer's name (in block
capitals), the signature of the trainee, the signature of the trainer, the date(s) of training, a basic
summary of what the training included and a declaration that the training. has been received.
The training records shall be made immediately available to officers of the police and/or the
council upon request.

Mr Eric Doe has shown remorse for his actions and has accepted that changes are required at his
premises. The licensing unit have been informed that Mr Eric Doe proposes that he will no longer leave
day to day management control of the premises to his Designated Premises Supervisor. Mr Eric Doe has
confirmed that when the premises is operational he will be at the premises. .

| Mr Eric Doé has accepted full responsibility for the offences which have been committed at his premises.

Discussion has taken place with Mr Eric Doe and he has been advised that should further offences or
breaches of his premises licence be witnessed at the premises, the licensing unit would need to consider
if instigating legal proceedings would be appropriate. '

Mr Eric Doe has been informed that in this particular case the officer recommendation will be for a Simple
Caution and he has indicated a willingness to accept the caution. Mr Eric Doe has been advised that in
the event of a similar offence re-occurring at the premises and a decision to prosecute taken, this offence
would be cited as a first offence. :

Printed 26/04/2018 Page 7of 8 CL1




181

3 Other Matters (including brief details of special circumstances and/or previous convictions)

A licensing inspection was carried out at the premises on the 14 Aprit 2018. Officers carried out a full
licensing inspection and the premises was found to be compliant. A compliance letter was issued to the

Premises Licence Holder on the 14 April 2018.

4 Conclusions

Mr Eric Doe has admitted to the offence of breach of licensing conditions — Contrary to Section 136 (1)(a)
and (b) of the Licensing Act 2003 at his premises when he had active control of the premises as the
Premises Licence Holder. ' ‘ ' :

5 Recommendations .

Taking into consideration that Mr Eric Doe has admitted the offence, and now implemented measures to
ensure that breaches of his premises licence conditions do not occur again.

Under thése circumstances it seems contrary to the public good to proceed to prosecution and incur the
loss of officer time and expenses in doing so, when in this case a simple caution would seem to provide

an expedited conclusion.

| recommend that a Simple Caution is offered to Mr Eric Doe for the offences witnessed at the Club 701
on the 2 September 2017 at 00:20hrs, 19 November 2017 at 01:51hrs & 11 November 2017

at 00:55hrs.

Printed 26/04/2018 o Page 8 of 8 L1




182

METROPOLITAN ERere
POLICE Licensing Authority Copy
Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003
Venue Name: .. > L 4 o it B REF: (CAD/CRIS etc.)
Address: ..
.. Date: LB L J 1S, Time: L2108

Details of person in charge at the relevant time: |10 . O3 0800 L WAV L R,

DPS [\J*Personal Licence Holder []
Summary of alleged offences identified

[_|section 57(4) Failure to secure premises licence or a certified copy at the premises or to prominently display a
summary of the Licence.

D Section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises licence or a certified copy.

D Section 109 (4) Failure to secure that a copy of the femporary Event Notice (TEN) is prominently displayed at the
p
premises or secure that a copy of the TEN is in the custody of an appropriate person.

[ ] section 109 (8) Failure to produce a TEN to a police officer.
[_]Section 135 (4) Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer.

[ +Section 136 (1) Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise and in
accordance with an authorisatation or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be carried on. (Sec19 issued Y [ No [7] )

[ Tsection 137 (1) Exposing alcohol for retail without an authorisation. (Sec19 issued Y []No &)
[“Tsection 138 (1) Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale. (Sec19 issued Y [ No (W)
[_]section 140 (1) Knowingly allowing disorderly conduct on a licensed premises.

[_Isection 141 (1) Knowingly selling or attempting or allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk.

L] Section 144 (1) Knowingly keeping or allowing non duty paid goods or unlawfully imported goods to be kept on
premises.

[_] Section 145 (1) Allowing an unaccompanied child on a premises (used primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol).

[_]Section 146 (1) Selling alcohol to an individual aged under 18.

)

)
[ |section 147 (1) Knowingly allowing the sale of alcohol to an individual under 18.
[ |section 153 (1) knowingly allowing an individual under 18 to make a an unsupervised sale of alcohol.
)

[ ]section 179 (4) Intentionally obstructing any authorised person exercising a power of entry under section 179.

Be ils of alleged offence(s) including relevant Cad and Crime report details:

\ < § '

p— ¢

I acknowledge receipt of this form: (venue) .

The purpose of this notice is to inform you that the failure to comply with the Licensing Act 2003 may result in the
police initiating criminal proceedings against the DPS, premises licence holder, or both. This notice may also be
used in evidence to support a review of the premises licence pursuant to section 51 Licensing Act 2003 and/or an
application for a closure order under section 20 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001



183



184



185

Section 138 of the Licensing Act 2003 — Keeping
Alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale.

On the 18" February 2019, Mr Mansaray attended
our office for an interciew under caution where the
allegations were put to him. Mr Mansaray made a full
and frank admission has therefore accepted the
offence as his responsibility.

Ministry of Justice guidance on simple cautions (issued 8™ April 2013)

Please read the guidance below and the attached declaration. Make sure you

understand it before you sign. You may seek independent legal advice before you

accept the caution. Some of these points are applicable to cautions issued by the
~Police and will not be relevant to this matter.

1.

A simple caution is an admission of guilt to committing an offence and forms part
of an offender’s criminal record. A record will be retained by the Council for
future use. It may also be disclosed in a court in any future proceedings.

If after the simple caution has been administered, new evidence comes to light
suggesting that the offence(s) committed are more serious, a prosecution may
still be brought. ‘

A simple caution may be disclosed to a current or prospective employer in certain
circumstances. Separate guidance governs the disclosure of criminal record
information

Simple cautions become spent immediately they are administered. This means
that you do not need to disclose a simple caution when asked unless you are
seeking work in an occupation that is listed in the Exceptions Order to the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 such as working with children and
vulnerable adults or for other excepted purposes such as seeking to obtain
certain licences. Police Cautions will also be disclosed under Disclosure and
Barring Service (DBS) standard and enhanced checks. Further information can
be obtained from the DBS. '

The DBS maintains the lists of those barred from working with children and
vulnerable groups, including adults. A simple caution may be taken into account
by the DBS when reaching a decision about the suitability of persons to work with
children and adults. Accepting a simple caution for certain offences may lead to
the offender’s inclusion on such a list which will prevent them from working in a
regulated post with children and vulnerable groups. Further information should be
obtained from the DBS. ‘

If the offence(s) involve a victim or victims they might still take civil action or bring
a private prosecution against you. The Council may provide your details to the
victims if this is necessary for legal action to take place.

Countries requiring foreign nationals to obtain entry visas may require applicants
to declare simple cautions on their application forms or at interview. Other
country's immigration rules may mean that a person who has received a simple

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 2, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Colling _ _

Register to vote, Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373




186



187



188

caution is refused entry as though they have a criminal conviction. The
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 only applies within the UK which means
simple cautions, even if spent, may still need to be disclosed to some countries in
some circumstances. This will vary from country to country and may apply to
people who want to emigrate permanently or those who simply want to visit for
short term purposes, such as on business, for a holiday or to study. For specific
information on what an individual may be required to disclose, the relevant
embassy of the country of travel should be contacted.

Further information relating to certain cautions

If this caution relates to the sale of age restricted products (ARPs) or services please
note that further covert test purchases will be attempted by the Council at your
business. This means we will send in underage, or young looking, volunteers to
attempt to buy ARPs or services. Such test purchasing may be coverfly observed
and recorded. You should also advise all sales staff of this.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 2, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Caollins

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373




189

Licensing Unit induction checklist for new licensees / management.

. INTRODUCTION

Who staff are.
Why meeting is being held — to ensure every licensee is fully aware of his /
her responsibilities from the onset

THE LICENCE

Introduce the licence document & the Annexes.

Explain the mandatory conditions in Annex 1.

Explain the special conditions in Annex 2 and 3.

Give details of what happens if the conditions are breached.

Explain about responsible authorities or interested parties, what there role
is and how the can call a review. Give full details of what is involved with a
review and what the outcomes can be. _

Explain that there is an annual maintenance fee to be paid for the licence.
What must be done if the licensee decides to alter the premises '
Other circumstances in which a variation application may be necessary
Explain in detail about when you need to apply for a variation, what is
involved and what the procedure is. Also about varying the dps.

Advise them that if they leave about surrendered the licence and the

. consequences for the licensee and the dps if they leave without

surrendered the licence.

Door Supervisors requirements that must be SIA registered.
Drugs Misuse, drug policy.

Challenge 21, suitable identification.

Covert inspections by police, licensing and trading standards.
Noise nuisance. '

INSPECTIONS

Reason for inspections and why conducted without warning and during
performance

Early inspection(s) conducted and thereafter risk-assessed. Give details
of what we look for and what documents we will need to see. Also the
outcome if we find things wrong — what happens next?




190



191 APPENDIX E



192



193



194

PROTECTIVE MARKING

On Thursday the 31* October at approximately 03:15 Police were called to the above venue following
reports of a fight inside the premises.

A male victim was idendified in the smoking area at the rear of the club, he was unconscious and
bleeding from the head.

On initial investigation it would appear the victim has been attacked by a number of suspects and
struck over the head with a metal bar or section of a shisha pipe.

He remained unconscious and was placed in an induced coma before being transferred to Kings
College Hospital.

The premsies appears to have been operating in breach of their premises licence, no ID scan system
was in place when the premises were in operation under the premises licence.

The lack of ID scan has had a detrimental impact on the initial investigation and the timely
identification of suspects involved in a serious assault.

It would also appear that the premises were operating beyond the terminal hour for licensable
activities.

I am of the opinion that action is required to prevent further crime and disorder and to protect the
public, the standard review procedure is not appropriate on this occasion due to the time involved.

Signature

Signature:

Retention Period: 7 years
MP 147/12



195



196



197

NOTICE OF DECISION
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 7 November 2019.

LICENSING ACT 2003: SECTION 53A: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors,
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA

This was a hearing to consider if it is appropriate to take interim steps pursuant to
section 53B of the Licensing Act 2003, to promote the licensing objectives upon
receipt of an application on 5 November 2019 by the Metropolitan Police Service,
for a summary review of the premises licence relating to an incident that occurred in
the early hours of 31 October 2019.

Decision

That the premises licence in respect of Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors,
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA be suspended with immediate effect as an
interim step to promote the licensing objectives, pending the determination of the
review application at a full hearing, to be held on 28 November 2019. The sub-
committee urge the parties to investigate and provide evidence at the full hearing of
the timings both of the incident and CCTV footage and the operation of the ID
scanning system in the days leading up to and following the incident.

Reasons

The sub-committee was satisfied on the evidence that a serious assault had taken
place on the premises and had been contributed to by multiple breaches of
premises licence conditions. In particular, either the premises should have been
closed before the incident took place or the police should have been called much
earlier, the premises should not have been operating in circumstances where the ID
scanner was not working, no drinks or glassware should have been in the area
where the incident occurred and no patrons should have been wearing hats or
hoods.

The sub-committee considered that the suspension was necessary and
proportionate to promote the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and
disorder. The sub-committee considered that other measures short of this were
insufficient given the seriousness of the incident, the breaches of licence conditions
on this occasion, and the previous operating history of the premises.

Appeal rights

There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates' Court against the licensing authority's
decision at this stage.

The premises licence holder may make representation against any interim steps

imposed and a hearing to consider the representation will be held within 48 hours of
receipt of the representation.

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 7 NOVEMBER 2019



198

The holder of the premises licence may only make further representations if there

has been a material change in circumstances since the authority made its
determination

Any representation should be in writing and cannot be received outside of normal
office hours.

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Law and Democracy

Date: 7 November 2019

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 7 NOVEMBER 2019



199

NOTICE OF DECISION
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 28 NOVEMBER 2019

LICENSING ACT 2003: SECTION 53A: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOORS, 516
OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA

1. Decision

That the council’s licensing sub-committee, having considered an application made under
section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 by the Metropolitan Police Service for the review of the
premises licence in respect of Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road,
London SE1 5BA and having had regard to all relevant representations decided to suspend
the licence for a period of three months, to remove Alfred Manseray as the designated
premises supervisor and to modify the conditions of the licence as follows:

1.  That the premises will be closed on Wednesdays.

2.  That the measures set out in the licensing compliance plan attached to the premises
licence as annex 5 shall be implemented in full prior to the reopening of the premises.

3.  That there shall be no shisha smoking equipment on the premises at any time.
4.  That all security staff at the premises shall be supplied by an SIA approved contractor.

5.  That condition 288 of the licence shall be amended by the addition of the following: “The
premises shall not be open at any time when the CCTV is not operating correctly.”

6. That condition 342 of the license shall be reworded as follows:

“That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the
Police shall be installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable
of sharing information about banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram
on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be able to identify fake or forged ID
documents to a reasonable standard. The system must be operating correctly at all
times when the premises are open and will be used to record the details of all persons
entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their
assistants. Entry to the premises will not be permitted without the production of the
relevant ID document and / or if the person's details are already stored on the system
and they are identified using a biometric identification system.”

7. That Eric Doe shall play no part in the day-to-day management or operation of the
premises.

2. Reasons

The licensing sub-committee heard from the representative of the Metropolitan Police Service,
the applicant for the review, who referred to his previous representations (considered at the
interim steps hearing on 7" November 2019) and to his further witness statement dated 22"
November 2019, in which he exhibits CCTV stills from the night of the incident showing the
licence holder Eric Doe behind the bar in the outside shisha area where the assault occurred.
In his view, this undermined Mr Doe’s assertion that the incident had been the fault of others,
in particular the designated premises supervisor, who had let him down. Mr Doe had been in

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION —28 NOVEMBER 2019



200

that area of the premises himself that night, yet had allowed multiple breaches of licence
conditions to occur. It was clarified that the CCTV appeared to be 1 hour behind actual time,
so that the incident had occurred after 3.00 a.m. by which time the premises should have
been closed. In the view of the police, Mr Doe had shown a disregard for the licensing
objectives and they had no confidence that he could manage the premises safely in future.
The licence should therefore be revoked. If the sub-committee did not agree with that, the
licence should be suspended for 3 months, the designated premises supervisor changed and
an SIA approved contract team appointed.

The sub-committee heard from the representative of the licensing authority, who referred to
written representations submitted on her behalf. These traced the chronology of previous
interventions by licensing officers attempting to secure compliance at the premises. It was
clear that despite three separate licensing induction visits breaches of licence conditions had
continued to occur, eventually leading to police cautions being issued for licensing offences.
She urged the sub-committee to revoke the licence or, at the least, suspend the licence for 3
months while all the remedial measures proposed by the licence holder were put in place.

The representative of the licence holder entirely accepted that a serious incident had
occurred. However, the sub-committee had to distinguish between a history of long-running
minor non-compliance at the premises and this serious incident of violence, which was a one-
off and could not in itself justify revocation of the licence, particularly where — as here — it was
possible for the premises to be run in future in a compliant way. The proposal was for Mr Doe
to play no further part in managing the premises. A new designated premises supervisor had
been identified. A comprehensive licensing compliance plan had been devised and would be
implemented. The premises could cease trading on a Wednesday, as this had attracted an
unfamiliar crowd. There would be no shisha smoking henceforth. The premises would be
closed if either the CCTV or ID scanning system were not working. A 6 week suspension was
volunteered, which would allow time for the new regime to bed in.

The sub-committee took account of the fact that a serious assault had taken place on the
premises which had been caused or contributed to by multiple breaches of premises licence
conditions. The premises should have been closed before the incident took place, the ID
scanner was not working, no drinks or glassware should have been in the shisha area and no
patrons should have been allowed to wear hats or hoods.

Revocation was considered, but on balance the sub-committee took the view that a 3 month
suspension of the licence, the removal of the designated premises supervisor and the
additional conditions set out above would be sufficient in this case to promote the licensing
objectives, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder. The sub-committee considered
that other measures short of suspension were insufficient given the seriousness of the
incident, the multiple breaches of licence conditions and the previous operating history of the
premises.

The sub-committee noted with approval the applicant’s willingness to eliminate single-use
plastics in glasses and straws.

In reaching its decision, the sub-committee had regard both to the revised guidance and to its
own statement of licensing policy, and considered that its decision was appropriate and
proportionate in order to promote the licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of crime
and disorder.

Appeal rights
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION —28 NOVEMBER 2019



201

This decision is open to appeal by either

a) The applicant for the review

b)  The premises licence holder

c) Any other person who made relevant representations in relation to the application

Such appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices’
clerk for the Magistrates’ Court for the area within the period of 21 days beginning with the day
on which the appellant was notified by this licensing authority of the decision.

This decision does not have effect until either

a) The end of the period for appealing against this decision; or
b) In the event of any notice of appeal being given, until the appeal is disposed of.

Review of interim steps pending appeal

At the conclusion of the review hearing the licensing sub-committee reviewed the interim
steps to determine which interim steps were appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives, pursuant to section 53D of the Licensing Act 2003. The sub-committee concluded
that these interim steps were appropriate:

o To suspend the premises licence.

The interim steps are open to appeal by:

a) The chief officer of police for the police area in which the premises is situated; or
b)  The holder of the premises licence

Such appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices’
clerk for the Magistrates Court for the area within the period of 21 days beginning with the day
on which the appellant was notified by this licensing authority of the decision.

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Law and Democracy

Date: 28 November, 2019.

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION —28 NOVEMBER 2019



Club 701 — Complaints

APPENDIX F

activity

rdate refno catg ioff | unit Notes
27/01/2020 | 918418 | L70 Lic General Enquiry WM | LIC Southwark Licensing
04/03/2022 | 972192 | L72 Public nuisance RK | LIC Southwark Licensing
04/03/2022 | 972228 | L72 Public nuisance RK | LIC Southwark Licensing
03/05/2022 | 975874 | L72 Public nuisance RK | LIC Southwark Licensing
30/12/2022 | 991433 | L72 Public nuisance RK | LIC Southwark Licensing
12/06/2023 | AO0979 | L72 Public nuisance SK | LIC Southwark Licensing
21/08/2023 | A05514 | NO5 People Noise - Adjacent | CH | NTT Noise Team
to Licensed Premises
16/01/2024 | A14022 | L73 Unlicensed Premises / SK | LIC Southwark Licensing

c0¢



203

APPENDIX G
CLUB 701 - NTE Visits
adate desc officer | adtext
18/01/2020 | 00:55 NTE FC 18/ 1/2020 00:55 FRC closed.
Visit
14/02/2020 | 23:38 NTE FC 14/ 2/2020 23:38 FRCno activity all shut.
Visit
11/01/2020 | 00:01 NTE FC Closed.
Visit
12/01/2020 | 02:05 NTE FC Closed.
Visit
31/01/2020 | 23:00 NTE AH Premises closed.
Visit
02/02/2020 | 00:40 NTE AH Premises closed.
Visit
07/02/2020 | 23:00 NTE CJ Visit to the premises with Ken Andrews, the premises was
Visit closed ATOV.K-Che was open but quiet. Action: Append to
APP
08/02/2020 | 00:35 NTE CJ Visit to the premises with Ken Andrews, the premises was
Visit closed nomovement in or out. | waited around for 20
minutes and no one enteredor left the premises. Action:
Append to APP.
21/02/2020 | 23:30 NTE AH Premises closed.
Visit
28/02/2020 | 00:18 NTE RK Compliance Visit with Adam Burchett & PC Maria
Visit O’Mahoney premisesclosed and non — operational.
08/03/2020 | 01:32 NTE CJ Visit to the premises with Ketchi, to check the premises
Visit were closed.ATOV the premises were quiet and
closed.Action: Append to APP
14/03/2020 | 00:43 NTE RK Compliance visit with Ken Andrews (Principal Health &
Visit Safety Officer)to check if premises was closed due to
licence suspension from reviewhearing.Premises closed
and non — operational ATOV.
24/10/2020 | 23:06 NTE CJ Premises closed ATOV
Visit
25/10/2020 | 22:32 NTE CJ Premises closed ATOV
Visit
01/11/2020 | 23:01 NTE CJ Premises closed ATOV
Visit
09/02/2020 | 01:58 NTE CJ Visit to the premises with Roy Fielding and Jonathan
Visit Ducker, thepremises was closed ATOV, no movement in or
out of the premises lightswere of and the area directly
outside the premises was quiet. Action:Append to APP
23/02/2020 | 01:05 NTE FC Closed no activity.
Visit
24/06/2023 | 00:55hrs RM 00:55hrs No BBQ. Visited Kent Lounge with the owner and
NTE Visit it was notopen and had not been open all night due to re-

decoration work beingunder taken... it smelt very strongly
of new paint.Visited Club 701 again with owner and went
into the basement to viewthe CCTV. The system seems to
have a huge storage now and has muchmore than 31 days
that can be viewed... in fact there was footageavailable
going back to the beginning of May.




204

26/09/2020 | 22:10 NTE FC 26/ 9/2020 22:00 FRCpremises open, lots of students
Visit leaving some sort of party tonight.Called Charlie Jerrom as
the premises licence was suspended for lastfew months
surprised to see them open. Charlie said they
haverecently been allowed to open again. watched
customers gather outsideand not leaving quickly poor
social distancing group of 50 youths.
01/11/2020 | 22:50 NTE FC 1/11/2020 22:50 FRCclosed shutters down lights on, a
Visit group of people on the corner oficelands waiting for taxi.
08/04/2022 | 22:48 NTE RK Premises closed and non-operational ATOV.
Visit
15/04/2022 | 00:21 NTE RK Premises closed and non-operational ATOV.
Visit
22/04/2022 | 23:57 NTE RK Premises closed and non-operational ATOV.
Visit
13/05/2022 | 23:42 NTE RK Visit to premises with Farhad Chowdhury (Principal Health
Visit & SafetyEnvironmental Health Officer).Premises
operational with X2 SIA at entrance searching X4
patronsbefore entering the premises. No sound escape
from premises fromfront or side of premises ATOV.No ASB
witnessed in the immediate vicinity of the premises.
12/01/2024 | NTE Visit SK Drove past the Location of the Club at around 23:30 No

Issues withParking, Case to be closed and reopened if we
receive anothercomplaint of a similiar nature




CLUB 701 TENs

APPENIDIX H

refno start_date | end_date |times personal | max sale of | for reg | late night late | police | ept | desc1
lic no alcohol | consump | ent | refreshment | ten | obj obj
holder people
875157 | 01/08/2021 | 02/08/2021 | 22:00 - 05:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes No | No No
Premises
875462 | 12/09/2021 | 13/09/2021 | 01:00AM - Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
04:00AM Premises
876222 | 05/12/2021 | 06/12/2021 | 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
876351 | 19/12/2021 | 20/12/2021 | 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 265 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
876418 | 02/01/2022 | 03/01/2022 | 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
877084 | 03/04/2022 | 04/04/2022 | 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
877201 | 18/04/2022 | 19/04/2022 | 22:00 - 04:00 Yes 380 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
877507 | 22/05/2022 | 23/05/2022 | 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
877948 | 17/07/2022 | 18/07/2022 | 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
878194 | 24/08/2022 | 25/08/2022 | 22:00 - 04:00 Yes 175 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
878214 | 29/08/2022 | 30/08/2022 | 22:00 - 04:00 Yes 200 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No Yes | EPT OBJECTION
Premises LATE TEN
880302 | 30/05/2023 | 30/05/2023 | 00: 05-- 04:00 Yes 200 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No | Less than five
Premises days notice
rejected
880634 | 19/07/2023 | 20/07/2023 | 21:00 - 02:00 Yes 140 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
880779 | 02/08/2023 | 03/08/2023 | 21:00 - 03:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
880831 | 12/08/2023 | 13/08/2023 | 04:00 -- 05:00 AM | Yes 350 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
each day Premises
880865 | 16/08/2023 | 17/08/2023 | 22:00 -- 03:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises

G0Z



880917 | 28/08/2023 | 29/08/2023 | 23:00 - 05:00 Yes 300 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
880961 | 30/08/2023 | 31/08/2023 | 22:00 -- 03:00 Yes 300 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No | rejected no 24hr
Premises gap between tens.
881128 | 20/09/2023 | 21/09/2023 | 22:00 - 03:00 Yes 300 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
881256 | 11/10/2023 | 12/10/2023 | 21:00 -- 03:00 Yes 300 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
881333 | 22/10/2023 | 23/10/2023 | 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 275 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
881433 | 01/11/2023 | 02/11/2023 | 21:00 -- 03:00 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes No | No No
Premises
881819 | 06/12/2023 | 07/12/2023 | 21:00 - 03:30 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
881941 | 20/12/2023 | 21/12/2023 | 10:00 -- 03:30 Yes 250 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
881987 | 26/12/2023 | 28/12/2023 | 26/12 10:00 - Yes 300 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
04:00 Premises
27/12 10:00 -
03:30
882040 | 10/01/2024 | 11/01/2024 | 22:00 -- 03:00 Yes 200 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No
Premises
882103 | 17/01/2024 | 18/01/2024 | 10:00 - 03:30 Yes 200 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No | rejected less than
Premises 5 days notice
882181 | 24/01/2024 | 25/01/2024 | 22:00 -- 03:30 Yes 200 | Yes On Yes | Yes Yes | No No

Premises

90¢



207
APPENDIX |

From: Heron, Andrew <Andrew.Heron@southwark.gov.uk>

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2024 12:31 PM

Cc: Allday, Debra <debra.allday@southwark.gov.uk>; Tucker, Matt
<Matt. Tucker@southwark.gov.uk>

Subject: Club 701 - Notice of Decision

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find attached a copy of the Notice of Decision from the Hearing.

Regards,

Andrew Heron

Pronouns: He/Him

Team Leader - Licensing

London Borough of Southwark

Regulatory Services — Environment, Neighbourhoods and Growth
020 7525 5767

Address: Licensing Unit, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard: 020 7525 5000
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk



http://www.southwark.gov.uk/

208

5 ouﬂ"‘m\(K
/m
southwark.gov.uk
NOTICE OF DECISION

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE =19 JANUARY 2024

SECTION 53A LICENSING ACT 2003: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOORS,
516 OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA

1. Decision

That as an interim step to promote the licensing objectives, pending the determination of the
review application in respect of the premises known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors,
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA at the full hearing, to be held on 8 February 2024 , the
licence be suspended.

2. Reasons
TO FOLLOW

3. Appeal Rights

There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court against the licensing authority’s decision at
this stage.

The premises licence holder may make representation against any interim steps imposed and a
hearing to consider the representation will be held within 48 hours of receipt of the
representation. The holder of the premises licence may only make further representations if
there has been a material change in circumstances since the authority made its determination.
Any representation should be in writing and cannot be received outside of normal office hours.
Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Assistant Chief Executive — Governance and

Assurance

Date: 19 January 2024

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 19 JANUARY 2024



209

From: Tucker, Matt

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 5:32 PM

Subject: Club 701 Expedited Review Notice of Decision
Importance: High

Dear Sirs — please find attached.

Kind regards

Matt Tucker
Principal Licensing Officer
London Borough of Southwark

T. 02075 251848
M. 07842 322466
E. matt.tucker@southwark.gov.uk

Please note — | work Wednesdays and Thursdays. Any urgent queries outside
this time should be sent to licensing@southwark.gov.uk.

Address: Licensing Unit, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard: 020 7525 5000
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk



mailto:matt.tucker@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@southwark.gov.uk
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/

210

southwark.gov.uk

NOTICE OF DECISION
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE -19 JANUARY 2024

SECTION 53A LICENSING ACT 2003: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOORS,
516 OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA

1. Decision

That as an interim step to promote the licensing objectives, pending the determination of the full
review application in respect of the premises known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors,
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA at the full hearing, to be held on 8 February 2024, the
licence be suspended.

2. Reasons

This was an application made by the Metropolitan Police Service for a summary review under
Section 53A Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the premises known as Club 701, Basement and
Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Rd, London SE1 5BA and to decide, whether, it was appropriate
to take interim steps pending the determination of the full application for review under Section
53C of the Licensing Act 2003.

The licensing sub-committee heard from the Metropolitan Police Service, who advised that a
Superintendent certified, that in their opinion, the premises were associated with serious crime,
serious disorder or both, on 17 January 2024. An application was therefore, submitted for a summary
review of the premises licence issued in respect of Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old
Kent Road, London SE1 5BA. The application concerned an allegation of a serious incident that
took place between 02:15 hours and 02:45 hours on 2 January 2024, when the premises should
have been closed, detailed in the crime report number 3001447/24.

Pursuant to regulation 14(2) of The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2003, the
members of the sub-committee heard evidence from the police. This was done in the absence
of all other members of the public, including representatives from the premises, as it was
considered the public interest in doing so outweighed the public interest in that part of the hearing
taking place in publicly. Further, as at the time of the sub-committee, no arrests had been made,
and the premature disclosure of the details to the representatives for the premises, could
jeopardise the on-going investigation. The police requested that, as an interim step, to suspend
this premises licence pending the outcome of a full review on 8 February 2024.

The licensing Sub-Committee then heard from the designated premises supervisor (DPS) who
confirmed that the premises was open to the public for ticketed event on 1 into 2 January 2024,

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 19 JANUARY 2024



211

and there was no temporary event notice for the event, which was on a Tuesday. However, the
DPS was genuinely surprised that a serious crime had taken place, because he had been at the
premises himself that night. He stated that it was not busy, with no more than 50 patrons in the
premises. It was therefore decided to close at 02:30 hours, with all patrons out of the premises
by 03:00 hours. The DPS was unable to comment any further than this, particularly how a
potential future incident could be avoided, because the premises had not been made party as to
what the allegation(s) was/were.

The DPS stated that he had inspected the CCTV footage from that night, but he had observed
nothing untoward. Furthermore, no complaint was made had been made from any person
concerning the events of that night and there was a loyal, long term, team of eight SIA officers
and three stewards working that night, none of whom had observed anything that could
resembling serious crime or serious disorder.

The DPS also accepted he was personally responsible that no TEN was in place for the event.
He, however, stated that he did not know that the premises was not authorised to open, stating
that he had never been inducted about it. He stated that, when required, TENs were ordinarily
submitted and it was not worth the risk to operate without one. If there had been any doubt, staff
would have approached him to ensure that the TEN was in place, but nobody ever informed him.
He further added that the conditions of the licence were already complicated. Internationally, 1
January was considered a bank holiday and for that reason, the DPS thought that the premises
was permitted to open.

It was explained to the DPS that, the premises licence permitted the premises to remain open
longer on New Year's day morning, but there was nothing in the premises licence that permitted
opening on 1 January 2024 after 05:00 hours and, therefore, should not have been opened that
evening or on 2 January 2024. This was provided for in condition 396 on the premises licence.

It was also noted, by members, that the event had been advertised on the Internet in advance
and was ticketed. The DPS accepted this, but stated that the event was a New Year's Day party,
that was meant to run until 02:00-03:00 hours. The Chair of the sub-committee stated that this
was at odds with the event being advertised as admission until 04:00 hours. The DPS attempted
to explain that this was a ‘promoter thing’, stating that he never planned to open that late because
he knew people were tired and the promoter was aware of this.

The licensing sub-committee then heard from the owner of the premises, who since 2019, had
a very restricted role in the premises following condition 840 being placed on the licence. The
owner stated that he was out of the country on 1and 2 January 2024. The concerns from the
police, were only brought to his attention on 18 January.

Since that time, he had been told that there had been only 50 patrons at the premises, he had
met with his staff, including the SIA door staff and no-one was aware of any incident that may
have happened. He had also viewed the CCTV, but there was nothing to show of any serious
crime as indicated on the police. It was unfair to close the premises, potentially for months, due
to an alleged offence which would have a devastating impact on staff and the business.

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 19 JANUARY 2024



212

The licensing sub-committee was satisfied because the premises was open when it was not
permitted to be, serious crime and/or serious disorder had taken place. The premises has history
of operating without the necessary permissions in place as detailed in the operating history set
out in the agenda.

The premises was also subject to a summary review in 2019 following an incident when the
premises was operating without the correct authorisation in place, whether by way of a premises
licence or TEN.

The police also informed the sub-committee that on or around 3 January 2024 credible
information had been received by the police that members of a gang would be attending the
premises and committing serious violence, although, in respect of this, the premises did not open
voluntarily.

Although the DPS stated that he was an experienced DPS and had held a personal licence since
2016, he contradicted himself in his verbal submission, his explanation for not submitting a TENs
was poor and he had demonstrated that he did not have a full understanding with the terms of
the premise licence.

The sub-committee concluded that the suspension was necessary and proportionate to promote
the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and disorder and no other modifications to the
premises licence would be appropriate at this time. This was due to the seriousness of the
incident, the breaches of licence conditions on this occasion, and the previous operating history
of the premises.

3. Appeal rights

There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court against the licensing authority’s decision at
this stage.

The premises licence holder may make representation against any interim steps imposed and a
hearing to consider the representation will be held within 48 hours of receipt of the
representation. The holder of the premises licence may only make further representations if
there has been a material change in circumstances since the authority made its determination.
Any representation should be in writing and cannot be received outside of normal office hours.
Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Assistant Chief Executive — Governance and

Assurance

Date: 23 January 2024

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 19 JANUARY 2024



213

APPENDIX J
To: From: Date:
Licensing Unit Wesley McArthur 23 January 2024
wesley.mcarthur@southwark.gov.uk
020 7525 5779
(on behalf of the Licensing Unit in its
role as a responsible authority)
Subject: Representation
Act: The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act)
Premises: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London,
SE1 5BA
Ref’: 882199

We support the application for the review of the premises licence, submitted by the
Metropolitan Police Service under The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act), in respect of the
premises known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London,
SE1 5BA.

The grounds for the review in the application are as follows (copied verbatim):

“It is alleged that on the 2nd January 2024 between 0215 and 02.45 a serious crime
was committed inside the above - mentioned licensed premises. Ref 300144 7 /24. |
will provide details of this report if requested by the licensing sub committee.

The investigation into this offence is ongoing, at the time of submitting this report no
arrests have been made.

The current premises licence 870760 permits the premises to be open to the public
Wednesday To Sunday with licensable activities including the sale of alcohol,
regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and dancing.

There is no provision that permits this premises to be open and providing licensable
activities on a Tuesday. There was no other authorisation in place such a temporary
event notice or non standard timings.

The alleged offence took pace in a licensed premises that at the time was operating
without the correct authorisation, by way of a premises licence or a temporary event
notice. This offence would not have occurred had the premises been closed as per the
current authorisation.

In November 2019 there was a serious assault inside the premises, at the time of this
offence the premises was again operating without the correct authorisation and was in
breach of the premises licence conditions. As a result of a summary review the
premises licence was suspended. Following the full review hearing the premises
licence was suspended for a period of tree months and modifications made including
a change of DPS and additional control measures.

In December 2022 the premises was again found to be operating without any
authorisation provided by way of a premises licence or temporary event notice. A
notification of offences was issued by the Police.

On the 3rd January 2024 Police received credible information that and event being
held at Club 701 would be attended 'by individuals associated with gangs and would
commit serious violence. After a number of conversations with the premises licence




214

holder the event was cancelled on voluntary basis although a closure notice was also
issued at the time.

The alleged offence is a very serious one and occurred at a time when the premises
should have been closed. | have no confidence in the management of this venue and
ask that the licensing sub committee suspend the premises licence as an interim
measure pending the outcome of a full premises licence review.”

Our objection relates to the promotion of all of the licensing objectives.

We can confirm that the premises licence issued in respect of the premises does not allow
the premises to operate on Tuesdays, and that at the time of the alleged offence referred to
in this review application, no temporary event notice had been submitted regarding the
premises allowing it to operate on 2 January 2024.

If the alleged offence is substantiated, then it has been facilitated solely by the premises
operating when it should have been shut. This is an absolute failing on behalf of the licensee
and management of the premises and as such, we feel that the premises licence issued in
respect of the premises should be revoked.

A copy of the current premises licence is attached as appendix 1.

In addition to the above, the premises has a long history of being operated in breach of the
premises licence issued in respect of it. This shows that there is a long term and ongoing
inability of the licensee and management team of the premises to operate the premises legally
and responsibly, and thus further underlines the need to revoke the premises licence issued
in respect of the premises.

We have no confidence in the ability of the licensee or premises’ management to operate the
premises in accordance with the license objectives, and indeed it has been proven that the
premises has previously been operated with little regard to promoting the licensing objectives.

The premises was subject to a prior summary review regarding a serious incident that took
place at the premises. At the hearing to determine the review, the licensing sub-committee
gave the licensee a chance to rectify previous problems regarding the operation of the
premises when the licensing sub-committee chose to suspend the premises licence, rather
than revoke the licence. The new issue of non-compliance regarding the Licensing Act 2003
described in this review application shows that the licensee has scant regard for the previous
leniency of the licensing sub-committee, and therefore the most robust approach is now
required.

We contend that allowing the premises to continue to operate would pose a significant risk to
the public. The prior history of non-compliance regarding the Licensing Act 2003, and other
legislation, should be taken into account and is detailed below.

Prior history of nhon-compliance

1. A premises licence was issued in respect of the premises to Erico Entertainment
Limited on 19 February 2016.

2. On 8 July 2016 a licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the premises. At
the induction the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, as were the role



215

and remit of the Licensing Unit. A copy of an induction checklist signed by the DPS is
attached in Appendix 2.

3. On the 25 of July 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service visited the premises and
observed breaches of licence conditions 376 and 841. A witness statement pertaining
to these breaches is attached in Appendix 2.

4. On 13 August 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under
section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding alleged breaches of
licence conditions 297, 341, 342 and 297. A copy of the closure notice is attached in
Appendix 2.

5. On 10 September 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under
section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding alleged breaches of
licence conditions 289, 341 and 342. A copy of the closure notice, and associated
witness statements, are attached in Appendix 2.

6. On 23 October 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under
section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding an alleged breach of
licence condition 359. A copy of the closure notice, and associated witness statements,
are attached in Appendix 2.

7. On 26 November 2016 a second licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of
the premises. At the induction the terms and conditions of the licence were explained,
as were the role and remit of the Licensing Unit. A copy of an induction checklist signed
by the DPS is attached in Appendix 2.

8. On 2 September 2017 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken. The
premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 288, 307, 344, 345,
349, 353, 357, 379, 392, 4Al & 793 of the premises licence issued in respect of the
premises. Warning letters pertaining to this inspection is attached in Appendix 2.

9. On 11 November 2017 a licensing re-inspection of the premises was undertaken. The
premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 289, 307, 341, 342,
364, 377 and 793. A warning letter pertaining to this inspection is attached in Appendix
2.

10.0n 19 November 2017 the Metropolitan Police Service visited the premises. The
premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 289 and 373 of the
premises licence issued in respect of the premises. A witness statement pertaining to
this visit is attached in Appendix 2.

11.0n 6 July 2018 Mr Eric Doe, the sole director of the company that holds the premises
licence issued in respect of the premises, accepted a simple caution regarding
offences under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 2 September
2017 and 11 and 19 November 2017. A copy of the caution is attached in Appendix 2.

12.0n 29 July the Metropolitan Police Service visited the premises and observed a breach
of licence condition 359. A witness statement pertaining to this breach is attached in
Appendix 2.

13.0n 28 August 2018 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a Notification of Alleged
Offence under the Licensing Act 2003 relating to the unauthorised operation of the



216

premises on 28 August 2018. Copies of the notification, and a related witness
statement, are attached in Appendix 2.

14.0n 13 April 2019 a licensing enforcement officer visited the premises and observed
breaches of licence conditions 309 and 357. A warning letter pertaining to these
breaches is attached in Appendix 2.

15.0n 11 June 2019 the DPS of the premises accepted a simple caution regarding
offences under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 28 August
2018. A copy of the caution is attached in Appendix 2.

16.0n 11 June 2019 a third licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the
premises. At the induction the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, as
were the role and remit of the Licensing Unit. A copy of an induction checklist signed
by the DPS is attached in Appendix 2.

17.0n 5 November 2019 the Metropolitan Police Service applied to this licensing authority
for the summary review of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises
known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1
5BA. In the review application the Metropolitan Police Service suggested that, as an
interim step prior to the full review hearing to take place on 28 November 2019, the
premises licence issued in respect of the premises should be suspended until the full
review hearing of 28 November 2019.

18.An expedited review hearing was held on 7 November 2019 to decide whether to
implement the interim step suggested by the Metropolitan Police Service in their
summary review application of 5 November 2019. The licensing sub-committee
decided to implement the interim step suggested by the Metropolitan Police Service
and suspended the premises licence until the full review hearing was to be held on 28
November 2019. A copy of the Notice of Decision pertaining to the expedited review
hearing of 7 November 2019 is included in Appendix 3.

19. At the full review hearing of 28 November 2019 the licensing subcommittee decided to
suspend the premises licence for a period of three months (the maximum
suspension period), to remove Alfred Manseray as the designated premises
supervisor of the premises and to modify the conditions of the licence. A copy of the
Notice of Decision pertaining to the full review hearing of 28 November 2019 is
included in Appendix 3.

20.0n 17 January 2024 the Metropolitan Police Service applied to this licensing authority
for the summary review of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises
known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1
5BA. In the review application the Metropolitan Police Service suggested that, as an
interim step prior to the full review hearing to take place on 8 February 2024, the
premises licence issued in respect of the premises should be suspended until the full
review hearing of 8 February 2024.

21.An expedited review hearing was held on 19 January 2024 to decide whether to
implement the interim step suggested by the Metropolitan Police Service in their
summary review application of 17 January 2024. The licensing sub-committee decided
to implement the interim step suggested by the Metropolitan Police Service and
suspended the premises licence until the full review hearing is to be held on 8 February



217

2024. A copy of the Notice of Decision pertaining to the expedited review hearing of
19 January 2024 is included in Appendix 3.

Complaints

In addition to the above, the Licensing Unit has received the following complaints regarding
the operation of the premises (see table 1 below).

Table 1:

Complaint
reference

Date received

Source

Details

861784

30 August 2018

Local resident 1

Noise nuisance

875217

09 April 2018

Local Councillor

Noise nuisance,
Anti-social
behaviour, crime &
disorder, no control
of customers and
illegal parking by
customers

895682

19 February 2019

Local resident 2

Noise nuisance,
Anti-social

behaviour, crime &
disorder, no control
of customers and
illegal parking by
customers

897694

28 March 2019

Local resident 2

Noise nuisance

898663

10 April 2019

Local resident 2

Noise nuisance

909002

27 August 2019

Local resident 2

Noise nuisance,
Anti-social

behaviour, crime &
disorder, no control
of customers and
illegal parking by
customers

910414

16 September 2019

Local resident 2

Noise nuisance and
ilegal parking by
customers

918418

27 January 2020

Local resident 2

Noise nuisance

972192

04 March 2020

Council Noise officer

Advisory email
stating that the
Noise and Nuisance
Team had received
3 complaints from 3
different
complainants
regarding noise
nuisance (local
residents 3, 4 & 5)
and that the officer
had witnessed loud
music emanating




218

from the premises
which had been
turned down by the
time he was able to
attend the residents’

premises.
972228 04 March 2020 Local resident 2 Noise nuisance
975874 03 May 2022 Local resident 6 Noise nuisance
C/A00979 12 June 2023 Anonymous Large crowd outside
complaint the premises

standing up to 3
persons deep in the

road, partially
blocking traffic and
blocking the
pavement

C/A14022 16 January 2024 Police Premises operating
without an

authorisation under
the Licensing Act
2003

Although the complaints are unsubstantiated, we contend that the complaints are indicative
of the operation of the premises causing residual problems in the locale, and that the
complaints provide further reason to revoke the premises licence issued in respect of the
premises.

Please note that ‘unsubstantiated’ simply means that we were not able to investigate the
complaints at the time we received them. We received the complaints after the alleged
problems had occurred. It means that we cannot verify whether the alleged incidents detailed
in the complaints occurred, not that they did not occur.

We say that the imposition of further licence conditions would not be appropriate. The
premises licence already has a very comprehensive set of conditions, which the licensee and
premises’ management have failed to comply with numerous times previously. There is no
indication that imposing further, or more robust conditions, will increase the likelihood of the
licensing objectives being met.

We say that a change of management will not be sufficient because this has been imposed
by the licensing sub-committee before. As per the Notice of Decision in appendix 3 relating
to a licensing sub-committee hearing of 28 November 2019, the licensing sub-committee
removed the then DPS from the premises. The licensing sub-committee also imposed a
condition stipulating that Mr Eric Doe*, who is the director of the company that holds the
premises licence issued in respect of the premises, ceases to have any part in the day-to-day
management or operation of the premises.

A suspension of the premises licence is not sufficient, because a suspension was previously
imposed by the licensing sub-committee at the same hearing of 28 November 2019 referred
to above.

Taking into account the seriousness of the alleged offence regarding this review application,
the long history of non-compliance in respect of the premises licence issued in respect of the
premises, the previous enforcement action that has had to be undertaken regarding the



219

premises and the history of residual complaints, we reiterate our request that the licensing
sub-committee revokes the premises licence issued in respect of the premises.

*NB: please note that regarding the previous summary review in respect of Club 701 the
licensing sub-committee issued a Notice of Decision that included the following condition:

e “That Eric Doe shall play no part in the day-to-day management or operation of the
premises.”

The condition was mistakenly left off the premises licence issued subsequent to the NoD.
A copy of the NoD was sent to Mr Doe at both of his known email addresses, and also to his
solicitor (see email message attached as Appendix 4), therefore Mr Doe would have been

aware of the condition, the fact that it is missing from the issued premises licence
notwithstanding.

Yours sincerely,

Wesley McArthur
Principal Enforcement Officer



Appendix 1 220

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Regulatory Services
Licensing Unit

Hub 1, 3rd Floor
PO Box 64529
London. SE1P 5LX

Premises licence number | 870760

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Club 701
Basement and Ground Floors
516 Old Kent Road

Post town Post code
London SE1 5BA

Telephone number

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Plays - Indoors

Films - Indoors

Live Music - Indoors

Recorded Music - Indoors

Performance of Dance - Indoors

Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The opening hours of the premises. For any non standard timings see Annex 2

Wednesday 22:00 - 03:00

Thursday 22:00 - 05:00
Friday 22:00 - 05:00
Saturday 22:00 - 05:00
Sunday 22:00 - 02:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence

Plays - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00

Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00

Sunday 22:00 - 01:00




221

Films - Indoors

Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Live Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Recorded Music - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Performance of Dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors
Wednesday 22:00 - 02:00
Thursday 22:00 - 04:00
Friday 22:00 - 04:00
Saturday 22:00 - 04:00
Sunday 22:00 - 01:00
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00
Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises
Wednesday 23:00 - 02:00
Thursday 23:00 - 04:00
Friday 23:00 - 04:00
Saturday 23:00 - 04:00
Sunday 23:00 - 01:00

Page 2 of 17




222

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence
Erico Entertainment Limited

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
09977040

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

George Omozejele

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence No.:

Authority.:

Licence Issue date: 19/03/2020

Head of Regulatory Services
Hub 1, 3rd Floor

PO Box 64529

London, SE1P 5LX

020 7525 5748
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Page 3 of 17




223

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal
Licence is suspended.

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who
holds a Personal Licence.

102 The admission of children to films given under this licence must be restricted in accordance with the
recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification or of the licensing authority itself.

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals
to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public
or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase
and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person
is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where
it is reasonably available.

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

Page 4 of 17



224

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

(a) a holographic mark; or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

489 The responsible person shall ensure that -

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint;

(ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the
customer is made aware that these measures are available,

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979;

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula

P=D+ (DxV),

where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(i) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence:

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be

Page 5 of 17



225

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually
given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax;

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 6 of 17



226

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during
licensed entertainment.

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will
record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial
image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the
bar and smoking areas. The premises shall not be open at any time when the CCTV is not operating
correctly.

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately
available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request.

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use
at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation.

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as
soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is
practicable to do so.

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the
premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once
completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed
on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire.
305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting that patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to
neighbours.

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be
made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be
responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to
ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has
been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy.

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of
volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the amplification
system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most
exposed noise sensitive premises.

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music
is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises will be
gradually increased until the premises are fully lit.

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating

liquor is supplied.

Page 7 of 17



227

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is
trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving
footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers.

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be
installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about
banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be
able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system must be operating
correctly at all times when the premises are open and will be used to record the details of all persons
entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the
premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's
details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system.

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one
member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve
data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers.

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light
and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened.

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be
permitted in the public areas of the venue.

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as
soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book.
This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on
request.

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed
to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from the
premises.

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound
escape from the premises.

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen
extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the
external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise
sensitive premises.

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time.

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time.

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen
and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside.

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all

times by door supervisors

Page 8 of 17



228

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur
between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs.

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all
staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at
the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or
police on request.

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises' closing hours.

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after
02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose
of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises.
362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst
working at the premises.

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft.

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the
following occurrences at the premises:

* Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour

* Violence

« Calls to the police or fire brigade

* Abuse of staff and / or customers

* Ejections of people from the premises

* Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade

* Refused sales of alcohol

» Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises

* Any other relevant incidents

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each
incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of
the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises
at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to
officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request.

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by
customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises.

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the
search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club.

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry.

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be

requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises.

Page 9 of 17



229

Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at
the premises.

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that
suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No
attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person
must be taken and be provided to the police In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a
detailed note shall be made in the incident log.

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the
premises.

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on
during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person
being ejected.

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the
venue.

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue.

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot.

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or
refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without
explanation.

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff
employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the
premises.

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the
cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings
in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music
Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises.

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the
premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident log.

380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the
premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary.
Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and
regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff.

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants
or any other staff employed at the premises.

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-

entry to the premises.

Page 10 of 17



230

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.
Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers
stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises.

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in
such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents.

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises.

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be
encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner
when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such
behaviour.

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable
transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi
controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member
and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their
taxi.

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and
shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities.

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of
any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers’) and the monitoring of customers
whilst they move away from the premises.

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional
materials, including the premises' website.

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats /
possessions to customers.

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made
available to customers on request.

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701" as submitted on application for this licence
shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence.

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted
opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on
these days.

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external
areas shall remain closed.

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises
between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs.

Page 11 of 17



231

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol
request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol,
provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid
photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and any
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card.

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if
a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area.

Page 12 of 17



232

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the
running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place.

841 That a minimum of 3 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises if the premises
open before 00:00 hours, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will be
employed each night that the premises are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the stated
opening time of 22:00; after 00:00 hours, a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be
employed, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. At least two will be
provided with, and will use, electronic search wands. The electronic search wands shall be used at all times
that the premises are open in respect of the search of all persons who wish to enter the premises. This
includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment

842 That the premises will be closed on Wednesdays.

843 That the measures set out in the licensing compliance plan submitted by the premises licence holder
shall be implemented in full prior to the reopening of the premises.

Licensing Compliance Plan

The proposal is in five parts; (1) set up the policies and procedures,(2) provide staff training, (3) conduct
regular licensing audits to measure performance and provide due diligence evidence, (4) to provide ongoing
advice, support and to review any incidents / issues that arise & (5) conclusions.

1. Policies and Procedures

I. A qualified licensing consultant shall undertake a full review of the operation of the premises and produce
a comprehensive licensing Operational Manual which would contain licensing policies and procedures. The
manual would demonstrate best practice in all areas. It would also form part of induction for new members of
staff and the ongoing training of existing staff.

II. The Operational Manual will set out the premises minimum operating standards and the policies and
procedures to be followed by all staff.

[ll. The Operational Manual shall be a 'living' document and will be reviewed regularly to ensure current best
practice and that any changes at the premises or to licensing laws are addressed.

IV. The Operational Manual shall include, but not be limited to, the following policies and procedures.

» Customer Vetting and Terms of Entry

* Young People

» Searching and Seizure of Prohibited ltems

» Preventing and Dealing with Intoxication

* Drugs

» Crime Prevention and Intervention

* Guest Welfare

* Ejections

« Security Roles, Responsibilities and Code of Conduct

Page 13 of 17



233

* Security Code of Conduct

* Dealing with Serious Incidents

» Sexual Assaults

+ Crime Scene Preservation

* Theft Prevention

» Staff Behaviour and Code of Conduct

» Events & Private Hire

» Management of Outside & Dispersal

» Smoking

* Incident Reporting & Due Diligence Records

* CCTV, Body Worn Cameras and Identity Scanning Systems

2. Staff Training

V. All serving staff will participate in the RASPFLO on-line training course (Responsible Alcohol Sales and
Promoting the Four Licensing Objectives -www.raspflo.co.uk). This is specifically aimed at serving staff, with
a focus on the practicalities of their work role and responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003.

VI. Each member of staff will complete RASPFLO training every year with a six month refresher session.
VII. A written record will be kept of all staff training and be available for inspection by the statutory
authorities.

VIIIl. The RASPFLO course covers the following areas:

Unit 1 - An Introduction to the Licensing Act 2003

» Understanding the importance of compliance and protecting your Licence.

* The requirements for having a Licence

* The difference between a personal and a premises Licence

» Mandatory and venue specific conditions

* The penalties for breaching conditions

Unit 2 - The Four Licensing Objectives

» The importance of promoting the objectives at all times

* The meaning and significance of each objective

* Learning methods to promote the objectives.

Unit 3 — Intoxication

» The dangers intoxication poses, the requirements of the law and the tools to deal with the issue effectively.
* The effects of alcohol on the body

* How to identify and deal with intoxicated guests

» The best methods to prevent intoxication.

Unit 4 — Age

* The law in relation to children

* How to check IDs

Page 14 of 17



234

* Recognising valid forms of ID

* Identifying invalid IDs.

Unit 5 - Crime Scene Preservation

* When a crime scene should be preserved

* Actions to take following a serious incident

* How to ensure the preservation of a crime scene.

Unit 6 - Factors that Affect Drinking Behaviour

*» The factors that affect irresponsible alcohol consumption

* How to promote a safe and responsible environment

* How to positively influence a responsible and safe drinking culture.

IX. All managers, and staff involved in a supervisory role, will undergo RASPFLO managers training, and
advanced version of the course.

X. The managers' version of RASPFLO also includes the six units in the staff course and also covers the
following areas:

* Closure Powers

* Preventing Drug Use / Dealing

* Crime Prevention and Intervention

* Guest Welfare

* Ejections

* Conflict Management

* Dealing with Serious Incidents

* Incident Reporting

+ Daily Due Diligence Records

XI. A qualified licensing consultant shall also be supplementary bespoke training for staff and managers on
the Operational Manual. This training will use the incident of 31st October 2019 as an example of the
dangers that can arise as well as the lessons learnt and procedures implemented to prevent further issues
following that incident.

3. Licensing Audits

XIl. Comprehensive licensing audits of the premises would be conducted by a qualified licensing consultant
to ensure compliance with the Licensing Act 2003, the promotion of the four licensing objectives and any
specific conditions attached to the premises licence.

XIIl. The audits will measure the success and effectiveness of operational procedures and aim to build a
body of positive due diligence evidence for the premises. They also serve as a management tool; giving
confidence that the premises is compliant and acts as an early warning system if issues are identified.
XIV. The audits would cover the following areas:

* Licences and Signage

* Licence Compliance

Page 15 of 17



235

* Door Supervisors

* Outside Management

* Fire Safety

* Record Keeping

* Internal Management

* Toilets

* CCTV & ID Scanning Equipment

XV. The audits would be conducted twice a month for the first 6 months after the premises re-opens.

XVI. The audits would be unannounced and be carried out whilst the venue was trading at peak times.

4. Ongoing Support

XVII. A qualified licensing consultant shall regularly re-evaluate the compliance regime at the premises,
taking into account shifting circumstances, changes in legislation, best practice and current guidance from
the authorities.

XVIII. A qualified licensing consultant shall review all incident reports and provide an assessment of the
incident, giving recommendations, advice and support as applicable. This may include reviewing CCTV,
writing additional policies / action plans and providing additional staff training plans.

XIX. A qualified licensing consultant shall provide record books regarding licensing due diligence compliance
(refusals, clicker counts, pre-opening checks etc.). The record books shall provide a comprehensive system
that is simple to use.

5. Conclusions

XX. The measures detailed in this plan have proven highly effective and successful at many busy late
licensed clubs and bars.

XXI. The compliance plan requires a clear commitment from the leadership of the business. The licensee
has assured the licensing sub-committee that the licensee is fully committed to implementing and following
the compliance plan.

844 That there shall be no shisha smoking equipment on the premises at any time.

845 That all security staff at the premises shall be supplied by an SIA approved contractor.

Page 16 of 17



236

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached
Licence No. 870760

Plan No. 01
Plan Date 11.12.13

Page 17 of 17



237

Appendix 2



238



239

Licensing Authority copy B699
CLOSURE NOTICE - SECTION 19 CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND POLICE ACT 2001
Date of the Closure Notice: ... .. ... .. Time Served:

Authority issuing Notice: Metropolitan Police Service

Name and rank he notice: o ‘ | X, M e et

Signature:

Name (if applicable) and address of the affected premises:

Alleged unauthorised use of the premises (section 19 (6)(a))

The officer serving this notice is satisfied that the above premises are being, or within the last 24
hours have been, used for the unauthorised sale of alcohol for consumption on, or in the vicinity of
the premises. The specific details of the alleged use are:

Grounds upon which the person serving the Notice was satisfied of the existence of such
unauthorised use:

Steps that may be taken to end the alleged unauthorised use of the premises, or to prevent it
from re-occurring (section 19 (6) (c))

Third party consideration (section 19.4)
Are there any other persons occupying the premises who need to be informed of this notice?

Yes/No (details).LA\ 1 052
It yes they must be issued with a copy of this form

Effect of section 20, Application for closure order.
A failure to take remedial action to prevent further or continued unauthorised use may lead to an
application being made to a Magistrates court for a closure order under section 21 Criminal Justice

and Police Act 2001.

The Person (if applicable) on whom the closure notice has been served:
L, (510 (I - o i Y O i vty AR W W O g b OO L.
e T L] (e A O o N

30 B ) e . e e A S el

MP 91/13



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



Licensing 24ifiority copy B699
CLOSURE NOTICE - SECTION 19 CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND POLICE ACT 2001

Date of the Closure Notice: Time Served:
Authority issuing Notice: Metropolitan Police Service

Name and rank of person making the notice:

Signature:

Name (if appl ress ot the affected premises:

Alleged unauthorised use of the premises (section 19 (6)(a))

The officer serving this notice is satisfied that the above premises are being, or within the last 24
hours have been, used for the unauthorised sale of alcohol for consumption on, or in the vicinity of
the premises. The specific details of the alleged use are:

Grounds upon which the person serving the Notice was satisfied of the existence of such
unauthorised use:

Steps that may be taken to end the alleged unauthorised use of the premises, or to prevent it
from re-occurring (section 19 (6) (c))

Third party consideration (section 19.4)
Are there any other persons occupying the premises who need to be informed of this notice?

Yes/No (details)
If yes they must be issued with a copy of this form

Effect of section 20, Application for closure order.
A failure to take remedial action to prevent further or continued unauthorised use may lead to an
application being made to a Magistrates court for a closure order under section 21 Criminal Justice

and Police Act 2001.

The Person (if applicable) on whom the closure notice has been served:

Name . , . ;
Sigr]atll"‘e— SIS e A R

Date..



248



249



250



251

Council
Eric Doe Licensing Unit
Club 701 Direct Line: 020 7525 5779
Ground Floor Direct Fax: 020 7525 5705
516 Old Kent Our ref: INU 077789
Road London
SE1 5BA

28 September 2017

Dear Eric,
RE: THE LICENSING ACT 2003 — WARNING LETTER

(Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London, SE1 5BA)

On 2 September 2017 at 00:20 hours council officers undertook an inspection to determine
whether the licensable activities at the above premises were carried out in accordance with
premises licence issued in respect of the premises.

In addition to the above, the Officers also considered ‘risk assessment’ criteria that would
help determine the frequency of future inspections to your premises.

During the inspection the officers witnessed the following:

1. Breach of licence condition 288: The clock on the CCTV was three minutes slow. For
evidential purposes please ensure that the time shown is accurate.

2. Breach of condition 307: No accommodation limit had been set or was in use at the
premises. Only one counting device (to count customers ‘in’) was being used at the
premises. Unless an ‘out’ clicker is used in conjunction with the ‘in’ clicker, there is no way
to ascertain an accurate tally of customers at the premises, however it is noted that during
the inspection the premises was very under occupied.

3. Breach of condition 344: Staff at the premises hadn’t undertaken a recognised training
scheme in regards to the sale of alcohol. You may wish to consider making relevant staff
undertake the BIIAB Level 1 Award in Responsible Alcohol Retailing (QCF) qualification.
More information is available via: https://www.biiab.org/qualifications/licensed-
hospitality/biiab-level-1-award-in-responsible-alcohol-retailing-qcf/

4. Breach of condition 345: Beverages were being consumed in the smoking area.

5. Breach of condition 349: Acoustic seals, brushes & self closers were not installed on all
relevant doors.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins



252

6. Breach of condition 353: Drinks were being permitted outside (in the smoking area).

7. Beach of condition 357: There was no dispersal policy in place at the premises. A written
dispersal policy should be devised and be kept at the premises. All relevant staff should be
trained in respect of the policy. The policy should include (but not necessarily be limited to)
the following:

« Details as to how customer / staff egress at the premises shall be managed to minimise
causing nuisance.

« Details of public transport in the vicinity and how customers will be advised in respect
of it.

« Details of the management of taxis to and from the premises.
- Details of the management of any 'winding down' period at the premises.

« Details of the use of security and stewarding in respect of managing customer
dispersal from the premises.

» Details of any cloakroom facility at the premises and how it is managed.
- Details of road safety in respect of customers leaving the premises.
« Details of the management of ejections from the premises.

« Details of how refuse / waste in the local vicinity arising through the operation of the
premises will be cleared up (e.g. flyer clean up, post event clean up).

8. Beach of condition 379: No pre-opening security checks had been undertaken or logged.

9. Beach of condition 392: Not all promotional material identified the location of car parks in
the area or other travel facilities (see flyer attached).

10. Beach of condition 4A1: There was no refusal register available (however it is noted that
an ID scanning system was in use at the premises).

11. Beach of condition 793: No staff training records were available in respect of the
Licensing Act 2003 or the terms and conditions of the premises licence issued in respect of
the premises.

In addition to the above please be mindful of the following conditions: 303 (requiring the
submission of ‘696’ forms for external promoters) and 383 (requiring that all promoters
hiring the premises are suitably qualified). These conditions were not an issue during the
inspection as an internal promotion was being undertaken, but please bare them in mind
should any external promoter be used at the premises. Please also ensure that the
premises licence summary is displayed in the bar area and not kept in your files.

Each of the matters listed above potentially constitutes a breach of the licence issued by
the Council under the Licensing Act 2003.

You must ensure that licensable activities and hours of operation are in accordance
with those listed on your premises licence. You must also ensure that the conditions
attached to your licence are adhered to. A further visit will be made to check on
these matters.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins



253

If compliance is not achieved the Council may take formal action that may affect your
license or lead to a prosecution. A person found guilty of an offence under the above
section is liable on summary conviction to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 6 months
or to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

| hope this warning will ensure that compliance is achieved and no further action will be
required.

Thank you in anticipation of your co-operation. Should you wish to discuss this matter with
a Licensing Enforcement Officer Please contact us by email at licensing@southwark.gov.uk
or by telephone on 020 7525 5779 between the hours of 9.00 and 17.00, Monday to Friday.
Alternatively you can write or visit us at the address below.

Yours sincerely,

Wesley McArthur
Licensing Enforcement Officer
wesley.mcarthur@southwark.gov.uk

cc Erico Entertainment Limited, licensee

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins



254

CO ENTERTAINMENT LTD

PRESENTS

< n

' W -
C -l < - \

— — ~ — =
. >
- — —— e ~ ]

« -Op - & -

«

516 OLD KENT ROAD
LONDON SE1 SBA

10.00PM - 4.00AM

(LAST ENTRY 2AM)

o= B

£10 IN ADVANCE, MORE AT THE DOOR

LS
e,
2 N\ /] ) \ MY R P M

EVERY LAST SATURDAY OF THE MONTH  pestieo



255

Council

Erico Entertainment Limited Licensing Unit

Direct Line: 020 7525 5779
Direct Fax: 020 7525 5705
Our ref: INU 077789

28 September 2017

Dear Sirs,
RE: THE LICENSING ACT 2003 — WARNING LETTER

(Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London, SE1 5BA)

On 2 September 2017 at 00:20 hours council officers undertook an inspection to determine
whether the licensable activities at the above premises were carried out in accordance with
premises licence issued in respect of the premises.

In addition to the above, the Officers also considered ‘risk assessment’ criteria that would
help determine the frequency of future inspections to your premises.

During the inspection the officers withessed the following:

1. Breach of licence condition 288: The clock on the CCTV was three minutes slow. For
evidential purposes please ensure that the time shown is accurate.

2. Breach of condition 307: No accommodation limit had been set or was in use at the
premises. Only one counting device (to count customers ‘in’) was being used at the
premises. Unless an ‘out’ clicker is used in conjunction with the ‘in’ clicker, there is no way
to ascertain an accurate tally of customers at the premises, however it is noted that during
the inspection the premises was very under occupied.

3. Breach of condition 344: Staff at the premises hadn’t undertaken a recognised training
scheme in regards to the sale of alcohol. You may wish to consider making relevant staff
undertake the BIIAB Level 1 Award in Responsible Alcohol Retailing (QCF) qualification.
More information is available via: https://www.biiab.org/qualifications/licensed-
hospitality/biiab-level-1-award-in-responsible-alcohol-retailing-qcf/

4. Breach of condition 345: Beverages were being consumed in the smoking area.

5. Breach of condition 349: Acoustic seals, brushes & self closers were not installed on all
relevant doors.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins



256

6. Breach of condition 353: Drinks were being permitted outside (in the smoking area).

7. Beach of condition 357: There was no dispersal policy in place at the premises. A written
dispersal policy should be devised and be kept at the premises. All relevant staff should be
trained in respect of the policy. The policy should include (but not necessarily be limited to)
the following:

« Details as to how customer / staff egress at the premises shall be managed to minimise
causing nuisance.

« Details of public transport in the vicinity and how customers will be advised in respect
of it.

» Details of the management of taxis to and from the premises.
- Details of the management of any 'winding down' period at the premises.

« Details of the use of security and stewarding in respect of managing customer
dispersal from the premises.

» Details of any cloakroom facility at the premises and how it is managed.
- Details of road safety in respect of customers leaving the premises.
« Details of the management of ejections from the premises.

« Details of how refuse / waste in the local vicinity arising through the operation of the
premises will be cleared up (e.g. flyer clean up, post event clean up).

8. Beach of condition 379: No pre-opening security checks had been undertaken or logged.

9. Beach of condition 392: Not all promotional material identified the location of car parks in
the area or other travel facilities (see flyer attached).

10.Beach of condition 4A1: There was no refusal register available (however it is noted that
an ID scanning system was in use at the premises).

11. Beach of condition 793: No staff training records were available in respect of the
Licensing Act 2003 or the terms and conditions of the premises licence issued in respect of
the premises.

In addition to the above please be mindful of the following conditions: 303 (requiring the
submission of ‘696’ forms for external promoters) and 383 (requiring that all promoters
hiring the premises are suitably qualified). These conditions were not an issue during the
inspection as an internal promotion was being undertaken, but please bare them in mind
should any external promoter be used at the premises. Please also ensure that the
premises licence summary is displayed in the bar area and not kept in your files.

Each of the matters listed above potentially constitutes a breach of the licence issued by
the Council under the Licensing Act 2003.

You must ensure that licensable activities and hours of operation are in accordance
with those listed on your premises licence. You must also ensure that the conditions
attached to your licence are adhered to. A further visit will be made to check on
these matters.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins



257

If compliance is not achieved the Council may take formal action that may affect your
license or lead to a prosecution. A person found guilty of an offence under the above
section is liable on summary conviction to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 6 months
or to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

| hope this warning will ensure that compliance is achieved and no further action will be
required.

Thank you in anticipation of your co-operation. Should you wish to discuss this matter with
a Licensing Enforcement Officer Please contact us by email at licensing@southwark.gov.uk
or by telephone on 020 7525 5779 between the hours of 9.00 and 17.00, Monday to Friday.
Alternatively you can write or visit us at the address below.

Yours sincerely,

Wesley McArthur
Licensing Enforcement Officer
wesley.mcarthur@southwark.gov.uk

cc Eric Doe, Manager

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins



258

g|Ub 701  And Ground Licensing Unit
asement And Groun Direct Line:
Floors Direct Fax:

516 Old Kent Road rectrax
London

SE1 5BA

12 December 2017

Dear Mr Eric Doe

RE: THE LICENSING ACT 2003 — WARNING LETTER
(Club 701, Basement And Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London,
SE1 5BA)

On 11 November 2017 at 00:55 Licensing Enforcement Officers and Metropolitan
Police Officers carried out an inspection to determine whether the licensable
activities at the above premises were carried out in accordance with your
authorisation.

In addition to the above, the Officers also considered ‘risk assessment’ criteria
that would help determine the frequency of future inspections to your premises.

During the inspection the officers witnessed the following:

1. Breach of condition 289- All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of
thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately available for inspection to
officers of the Police and the Council on request. There was no member of
staff available to access CCTV until owner of business was called and
arrived on site.

2. Breach of condition 307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in
respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be made aware of the
accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall
be responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded
and shall use counting devices to ensure that the accommodation limit is not
exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has been reached
the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy. There was no member
of staff available that was able to give an accurate number of patrons
present at time of visit.

3. Breach of condition 342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to
the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be installed and maintained at
Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment & Social Regeneration - Deborah Collins
Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 75257373

Council



259

the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about
banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both
passports and ID cards and be able to identify fake or forged ID documents
to a reasonable standard. The system will be in operation at all times after
22:00 when the premises are in operation and will be used to record the
details of all persons entering the premises including staff, members of the
public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the premises will not be
permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and/or if the
person's details are already stored on the system and they are identified
using a biometric identification system. When | requested to see how
many persons had been scanned in to the system, the staff were only
able to show 4 male persons despite there being approximately 20
persons in the premises including female staff and patrons. Staff could
not tell me why this was the case.

4,

Each of the matters listed above potentially constitutes a breach of the licence
issued by the Council under the Licensing Act 2003.

You must ensure that licensable activities and hours of operation are in
accordance with those listed on your premises licence. You must also ensure
that the conditions attached to your licence are adhered to. A further visit will be
made to check on these matters.

If compliance is not achieved the Council may take formal action that may affect
your license or lead to a prosecution. A person found guilty of an offence under
the above section is liable on summary conviction to imprisonment for a term not
exceeding 6 months or to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

| hope this warning will ensure that compliance is achieved and no further action
will be required.

Thank you in anticipation of your co-operation. Should you wish to discuss this
matter with a Licensing Enforcement Officer Please contact us by email at
licensing@southwark.gov.uk or by telephone on between the hours of 9.00 and
17.00, Monday to Friday. Alternatively you can write or visit us at the above
address.

Yours sincerely,

c.c P.C.lan Clements/ P.C. Graham White
Southwark Police Licensing Office
SE1

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment & Social Regeneration - Deborah Collins

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 75257373



260



261



262

SOUTHWARK COUNCIL
SIMPLE CAUTION (INDIVIDUAL)

CASE REFERENCE: _

OFFENDER’S SURNAME: | DOE

FORENAME(S): ERIC
NATIONAL INSURANCE No. | Insert:
OCCUPATION: PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER

ADDRESS:

DATE OF BIRTH:

2 September 2017
DATE OF OFFENCE(S): 19 November 2017
: 11 November 2017
PLACE OF OFFENCE(S): CLUB 701, 516 OLD KENT ROAD
LONDON '
SE1 5BA _
BRIEF CIRCUMSTANCES 2 September 2017 at 00:20hrs
OF OFFENCE(S): 19 November 2017 at 01:51hrs

11 November 2017 at 00:55hrs

Breach of licensing conditions

This matter potentially constitutes a breach of the
licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003 by this
Council in respect of the above named premises.

Relevant offence breach:
Section 136 (1) (a) and (b) of the Licensing Act 2003

Ministry of Justice guidance on simple cautions (issued 8" April 2013)

Please read the guidance below and the attached declaration. Make sure you understand it
before you sign. You may seek independent legal advice before you accept the caution. Some of
these points are applicable to cautions issued by the Police and will not be relevant to this matter.

1. A simple caution is an admission of guilt to committing an offence and forms part of an
offender's criminal record. A record will be retained by the Council for future use. It may aiso
be disclosed in a court in any future proceedings.

2. If after the simple caution has been administered, new evidence comes to light suggesting
that the offence(s) committed are more serious, a prosecution may still be brought.

3. A simple caution may be disclosed fc a current or prospective employer in certain
circumstances. Separate guidance governs the disclosure of criminal record information

Licensing Unit - Environment & Social Regeneration, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London,

SE1-2QH ' '

Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment & Social Regeneration - Deborah Collins

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information; 020 7525 7373




263

4. Simple cautions become spent immediately they are administered. This means that you do
not need to disclose a simple caution when asked unless you are seeking work in an
occupation that is listed in the Exceptions Order to the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974
such as working with children and vulnerable aduits or for other excepled purposes such as
seeking o obtain certain licences. Police Cautions will also be disclosed under Disclosure
and Barring Service (DBS) standard and enhanced checks. Further mformatlon can he
obtained from the DBS.

5. The DBS maintains the lists of those barred from working with children and vulnerable
groups, including adults.- A simple caution may be taken into account by the DBS when
reaching a decision about the suitability of persons to work with children and aduits.
Accepting-a simple caution for certain offences may lead to the offender's inclusion on such a
list which will prevent them from working in a regulated post with children and vulnerable
groups. Further information should be obtained from the DBS. ‘

6. If the offence(s) involve a victim or victims they might still take civi[. action or bring a private
prosecution against you. The Council may provide your details to the victims if this is
necessary for legal action to take place.

7. Countries requiring foreign nationals to obtain entry visas may require applicants tc declare
simple cautions on their application forms or at interview. Other country’s immigration rules
fmay mean that'a person who has received a simple caution is refused entry as though they
have a criminal conviction. The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 only applies within the
UK which means simple cautions, even if spent, may still need to he disclosed to some
countries in some circumstances. This will vary from country fo counfry and may apply to
people who want to emigrate permanently or those who simply want to visit for short term
purposes, such as on business, for a holiday or to study. For specific information on what an
individual may be required to disclose, the relevant embassy of the country of travel should
he contacted.

Further information relating to certain cautions

If this caution relates to the sale of age restricted products (ARPs) or services please note that
further covert test purchases will be attempted by the Gouncil at your business. This means we
will send in underage, or young looking, volunteers to attempt to buy ARPs or services. Such test
purchasing may be covertly observed and reccrded. You should also advise all sales staff of this.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Social Regeneration, Hub 1, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London,
SE1 2QH

Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Web5|te www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment 8 Social Regeneration - Deborah Collins

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373




264



265



266

METROPOLITAN Fagkioie
POLICE Licensing Authority Copy
Notification of alleged offences under the Licensing Act 2003
Venue Name: |.. U ; . REF; (CAD/CRIS etc.)
Address: ...
..Date: L.y e f 15 Time

Details of person in charge at the relevant time: & do . Cii kel
Crsea | 0] £ 12 lj “Personal Licence Holder EI
Summary of alleged offences identified

|| Section 57(4) Failure to secure premises licence or a certified copy at the premises or to prominently display a
summary of the Licence.

[ |Section 57 (7) Failure to produce a premises licence or a certified copy.

[Isection 109 (4) Failure to secure that a copy of the Temporary Event Notice (TEN) is prominently displayed at the
premises or secure that a copy of the TEN is in the custody of an appropriate person.

[_]Section 109 (8) Failure to produce a TEN to a police officer.
__]Section 135 (4) Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer.

[ }Section 136 (1) Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise and in |
accordance with an authorisatation or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be carried on. (Sec19 issued Y ] No [])

D Section 137 (1) Exposing alcohol for retail without an authorisation. (Sec19 issued Y [[] No [)
[]section 138 (1) Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthaorised sale. (Sec19 issued Y [JNo[})
D Section 140 (1) Knowingly allowing disorderly conduct on a licensed premises.

[ ] section 141 (1) Knowingly selling or attempting or allowing alcohol to be sold to a person who is drunk.

[] Section 144 (1) Knowingly keeping or allowing non duty paid goods or unlawfully imported goods to be kept on
premises.

D Section 145 (1) Allowing an unaccompanied child on a premises (used primarily or exclusively for the sale of alcohol).
[ ] section 146 (1) Selling alcohol to an individual ged under 18.

[ ]section 147 (1) Knawingly allowing the sale of alcohol to an individual under 18.

[ ]section 153 (1) knowingly allowing an individual under 18 to make a an unsupervised sale of alcohol.

[ ] section 179 (4) Intentionally obstructing any authorised person exercising a power of entry under section 179.

Be ils of zlleged offence(s) including relevant Cad and Crime report details:

Issuing officer:
| acknowledge receipt of this form: (venue) .|

The purpose of this notice is to inform you that the failure to comply with the Licensing Act 2003 may result in the
police initiating criminal proceedings against the DPS, premises licence holder, or both. This notice may also be
used in evidence to support a review of the premises licence pursuant to section 51 Licensing Act 2003 and/or an
application for a closure order under section 20 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001



267



Page 2 of 4

Continuation of Statemnent of ~ Jason ROSE (Police Licensing OfiCer) ..........oovveeveeeooeoooeoooeooeooooooo

area dedicated to licensable activity. | walked the length of the bar in a systematic way. During this time I noticed
the premises wasn't overly busy, approx. 30-40 persons present (Inc Staff) both male and female. The music was
playing and very loud, the premises was dark with flashing lights supporting the music that was being played. It
was clear that those patrons present had drinks either around them or in their hands and there were customers
standing at the bar purchasing alcohol related beverages, this wouid be present on Pc GERRY and Pc DE VIELL
body warn cameras throughout our deployment at the premises. This venue was fully open for business and
carrying out licensable activity namely supply of alcohol and regulated entertainment. | did not see any food for
sale or being eaten at the time of entry. Due to the time of the visit clearly being close to opening time, | could did
detect any high levels of intoxication.

I viewed the part B on the bar wall and instantly identified a potential issue with the licensing hours as neither
Monday nor Tuesday were displayed on the licence. The main points relating to our visit were shown as:

Opening hours:
Wednesday 22:00 to 03:00
Thursday. 22:00 to 05:00
Friday 22:00 to 05:00
Saturday 22:00 to 05:00
Sunday 22:00 to 02:00

Granted licensable activities:

Entertainment similar to live/recorded music - indoors
Wednesday 22:00 to 02:00

Thursday 22:00 to 04:00

Friday 22:00 to 04:00

Saturday 22:00 to 04:00

Sunday 22:00 to 01:00

Late night refreshment - indoors
Wednesday 23:00 to 02:00
Thursday 23:00 to 04:00

Friday 23:00 to 04:00

Saturday 23:00 to 04:00

Sunday 23:00 to 01:00

Live music - indoors
Wednesday 22:00 to 02:00
Thursday 22:00 to 04:00
Friday 22:00 to 04:00
Saturday 22:00 fo 04:00
Sunday 22:00 to 01:00

Recorded music - indoors
Wednesday 22:00 to 02:00
Thursday 22:00 to 04:00
Friday 22:00 to 04:00
Saturday 22:00 to 04:00
Sunday 22:00 to 01:00

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises
Wednesday 23:00 to 02:00

Thursday 23:00 to 04:00

Friday 23:00 to 04:00

Saturday 23:00 to 04:00

SIENAMIIE. ot ecesie v Signature witnessed by: ..o

2003(1)




269

hen completed) -

Page 3 of 4

Continuation of Statement of  Jason ROSE {Police Licensing Oficer) .............cooi i

Sunday 23:00 to 01:00

1 asked Mr [’ this was the current licence. He said "yes, | think so, | don't think we have received a
new one”. Due to the music noise in this area of the premises we proceeded through the bar area to the rear hall
way (deepfreeze freezer area) to speak so we could hear one another clearer, both Pc GERRY, Pc DE VIELL
were present with me. | explained o Mr I had concems over the non-licensable hours displayed for
Mondays/Tuesdays on the Part B and asked 0 bring me the full premises licence, he went to the
basement to retrieve this paperwork from a folder. Whilst he was doing this | loaded the licence via my laptop.

As we were waiting, It became apparent we were in the way where we were standing as staff was passing

through so was directed by a female who later introduced herself as the owners wife, a Mrs *
*e a side room that appeared to be a small storage / Kitchen area

beside the deepfreeze hallway. No food was being prepared in this area.

Pc GERRY and | then examined both the electronic copy and Hard copy of the premises licence {that had now
been handed to us by Mr iand it became obvious that NO authorisation was in place relating to the
premises licence for trading on a Monday into a Tuesday. | asked Mr —f there was any other licensing
authorisation in place for this evenings frading such as a club premises cert or [emporary event notice and he
said “No we are covered by the licence” (pointing to the hard copy in front of us).

| then explained to him that there was no authorisation on the licence for Monday / Tuesday and the only
reference to a Bank holiday on the licence was listed as:

396 - That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve the permitted
opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00
on these days.

As | was about to explain it, he said unprompted “yeah 396 | know, our bank holiday opening” which indicated to
me he was aware of the condition. Unfortunately the condition does not cover the venue for the date and time
officers were on scene carrying out their inspection. This particular condition relates to a Sunday PRIOR to a
bank holiday. We were now in the Tuesday morning AFTER the bank holiday Monday. 1 took time to read this
condition word by word to Mr ieveral times and observed it dawning on him that he and the owners
had clearty misread and misunderstood this condition. | then worked through the licence educating him around
the licence.

Again | asked if there was any other form of authority in place for this sessions trading. He confirmed *“NO”. I then
explained without an authority in place offences under the Licensing act were being committed namely:

s136 — Carrying on or attempting to carry on licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise in accordance
with an authorisation or knowingly allowing a licensable activity to be carried on.

s137 - Exposing alcohol for retail without and authorisation
$138 — Keeping Alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale

Mr -stated he understood. At this point MrsMwas called to the store / Kitchen room so it could be
explained to a second person on scene. Once again | xplained the issue to her working through the licence,
showing her the times and conditions on the licence. They both understood the explanation and it was clear they
presumed they were coved under the premises licence issued to Erico Entertainment Limited, ref 860699. This is
however NOT the case.

| was aware that Pc DE VIELL had left the premises to go outside and make contact with the local boroughs Night
duty officer to make them aware of the situation. | then contacted Bronze Licensing (Ps JARRED) and explained
the situation giving him a full update and discussing the matter.

Signature ignature witnessed DY: i e

2003(1)




270



'RESTRICTED (when complete) S

Witness contact details

Hoine address:

.......................................................................................................................................................... Postcode: .o
Home telephone number rrrme s WOTK Elephone nmber e,
Mobile/pager number e, Email address: oo s
Preferred Means 0 COMACE it seees e st s et s s s s stseseseeneee s et et s e s see s s e st eeeee s e ee e

Male / Female{(delete as applicable) Date and place of Birth: ..o eee v ee e et
Former name: ..o Ethnicity Code (16+1): oo Religion/belief:  ........ccoevvvvvevrriinas

Dates of witness DON-AvaTlADIHEY  cocoiicieiiniirm s e r s sre e sh e ere e s e ssare e e e e esn e r bt e ene st et semeeeseneeeeersaness ‘

...................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Witness care
a) Is the witness willing and fikely to attend court? No. If ‘No’, include reason(s) on MG6.

b) What can be done to ensure attendance?

) Does the witness require a Special Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or intimidated witness?
No. If ‘Yes® submit MG2 with file.

d) Does the witness have any specific care needs? No. If “Yes’ what are they? (Disability, heaithcars, chitdcare, teansport, , language dilficulties,
visually impaired, restricted mobility or other cancerns?)

Witness Consent (for witness comnpletion)

a) The criminal justice process and Victitn Personal Statement scheme (victims only) has Yes No
been explained to me

b) I have been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet Yes No

c) I have been given the leaflet ‘Giving a witness statement to police — what happens next?’  Yes No

d) I consent to police having access to my medical record(s) in relation to this matter: Yes No N/A
(obtained in accordance with local practice)

e) I consent to my medical record in relation to this matter being disclosed to the defence: Yes No N/A

i§l] I consent to the statement being disclosed for the purposes of civil proceedings e.g. chiid Yes No

care proceedings, CICA

) The information recorded above will be disclosed to the Witness Service so they can offer
help and support, unless you ask them not to. Tick this box to decline their services:

Signature of WItNESS: Lt Print NAME. oottt rerers
Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult:  .....ocooooveeeeeeeee oo Print 0ame: oo esree s ssennaeenns |
Address and telephone number if dIffErent fIOM ADOVE!  cocoo..vvv oo e b e st e et e st eeeees e s eee !
Statement taken by (print name):  282KD 194898 Jason ROSE.......................... Station:  ROMFORD.........o.vooooveooooeeeoo, l
Time and PIACE StALCIMENE LAKENI  ....vuiececrrreeeesirsessessesssass st s e e eemaeesssasassraeesesass st esesesasseesssesesseesesees et e sesseeeeessesssssosss st ssee e esees

[ 20061071 MG 1I(T) RESTRICTED (when complete)




272

oufhwfk
—

Council

Club 701 . . .
: Licensing Unit
Basement And Ground Direct Line: 02075257529

Floors . _ .
516 Old Kent Road Direct Fax: 020 7525 5735

London
SE1 5BA

24 April 2019

Dear Erico Entertainment Limited

" RE: THE LICENSING ACT 2003 — WARNING LETTER
(Club 701, Basement And Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London,
SE1 5BA)

On 13 April 2019 at 23.20 a Licensing Enforcement Officer carried cut an-
inspection to determine whether the licensable activities at the above premises
were carried out in accordance with your authorisation.

In add'ition to the above, the Officers also considered ‘risk assessment’ criteria
that would help determine the frequency of future inspections to your premises.

During the inspection the officers witnessed the fpl]dwing:

1. That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure
the maximum levels of volume and bass of music, song or speech from
licensed entertainment permitted by the amplification system, does not cause
a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest
or most exposed noise sensitive premlses Contrary to condition 309 on
the premises licence

2. That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at

- the premises, with all staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of
staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at the premises and a copy
of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council
or police on request. Contrary to condition 357 on the premises licence

Each of the matters listed above potentially' constitutes a breach of the licence
issued by the Council under the Licensing Act 2003.

Southwark Council - Regulatory Services, Licensing Team, Hub 1, 3rd FIoor PO Box 64529, SE1P 51X
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk




273



274



275



276

Section 138 of the Licensing Act 2003 — Keeping
Alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale.

On the 18" February 2019, Mr Mansaray attended
our office for an interciew under caution where the
allegations were put to him. Mr Mansaray made a full
and frank admission has therefore accepted the
offence as his responsibility.

Ministry of Justice guidance on simple cautions {issued 8™ April 2013)

Please read the guidance below and the attached declaration. Make sure you

understand it before you sign. You may seek independent legal advice before you

accept the caution. Some of these points are applicable to cautions issued by the
~Police and will not be relevant to this matter.

1.

A simple caution is an admission of guilt to committing an offence and forms part
of an offender’s criminal record. A record will be retained by the Council for
future use. It may also be disclosed in a court in any future proceedings.

If after the simple caution has been administered, new evidence comes to light
suggesting that the offence(s) committed are more serious, a prosecution may
still be brought. ‘

A simple caution may be disclosed to a current or prospective employer in certain
circumstances. Separate guidance governs the disclosure of criminal record
information

Simple cautions become spent immediately they are administered. This means
that you do not need to disclose a simple caution when asked unless you are
seeking work in an occupation that is listed in the Exceptions Order to the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 such as working with children and
vulnerable adults or for other excepted purposes such as seeking to obtain
certain licences. Police Cautions will also be disclosed under Disclosure and
Barring Service (DBS) standard and enhanced checks. Further information can
be obtained from the DBS. '

The DBS maintains the lists of those barred from working with children and
vulnerable groups, including adults. A simple caution may be taken into account
by the DBS when reaching a decision about the suitability of persons to work with
children and adults. Accepting a simple caution for certain offences may lead to
the offender’s inclusion on such a list which will prevent them from working in a
regulated post with children and vulnerable groups. Further information should be
obtained from the DBS. ‘

If the offence(s) involve a victim or victims they might still take civil action or bring
a private prosecution against you. The Council may provide your details to the
victims if this is necessary for legal action to take place.

Countries requiring foreign nationals to obtain entry visas may require applicants
to declare simple cautions on their application forms or at interview. Other
country's immigration rules may mean that a person who has received a simple

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 2, Floar 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Colling _ _

Register to vote, Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373




277



278



279

caution is refused entry as though they have a criminal conviction. The
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 only applies within the UK which means
simple cautions, even if spent, may still need to be disclosed to some countries in
some circumstances. This will vary from country to country and may apply to
people who want to emigrate permanently or those who simply want to visit for
short term purposes, such as on business, for a holiday or to study. For specific
information on what an individual may be required to disclose, the relevant
embassy of the country of travel should be contacted.

Further information relating to certain cautions

If this caution relates to the sale of age restricted products (ARPs) or services please
note that further covert test purchases will be attempted by the Council at your
business. This means we will send in underage, or young looking, volunteers to
attempt to buy ARPs or services. Such test purchasing may be coverfly observed
and recorded. You should also advise all sales staff of this.

Licensing Unit - Environment & Housing, Hub 2, Floor 3, 160 Tooley Street, London, SE1 2QH
Switchboard - 020 7525 5000 Website - www.southwark.gov.uk

Strategic Director Environment & Housing - Deborah Collins

Register to vote. Complete the forms delivered to your home. Information: 020 7525 7373




280



281



Appendix 3 282

M—Ks

southwark.gov.uk

NOTICE OF DECISION
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 7 November 2019.

LICENSING ACT 2003: SECTION 53A: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors,
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA

This was a hearing to consider if it is appropriate to take interim steps pursuant to
section 53B of the Licensing Act 2003, to promote the licensing objectives upon
receipt of an application on 5 November 2019 by the Metropolitan Police Service,
for a summary review of the premises licence relating to an incident that occurred in
the early hours of 31 October 2019.

1. Decision

That the premises licence in respect of Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors,
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA be suspended with immediate effect as an
interim step to promote the licensing objectives, pending the determination of the
review application at a full hearing, to be held on 28 November 2019. The sub-
committee urge the parties to investigate and provide evidence at the full hearing of
the timings both of the incident and CCTV footage and the operation of the ID
scanning system in the days leading up to and following the incident.

2. Reasons

The sub-committee was satisfied on the evidence that a serious assault had taken
place on the premises and had been contributed to by multiple breaches of
premises licence conditions. In particular, either the premises should have been
closed before the incident took place or the police should have been called much
earlier, the premises should not have been operating in circumstances where the ID
scanner was not working, no drinks or glassware should have been in the area
where the incident occurred and no patrons should have been wearing hats or
hoods.

The sub-committee considered that the suspension was necessary and
proportionate to promote the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and
disorder. The sub-committee considered that other measures short of this were
insufficient given the seriousness of the incident, the breaches of licence conditions
on this occasion, and the previous operating history of the premises.

3. Appeal rights

There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates' Court against the licensing authority's
decision at this stage.

The premises licence holder may make representation against any interim steps

imposed and a hearing to consider the representation will be held within 48 hours of
receipt of the representation.

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 7 NOVEMBER 2019



283

The holder of the premises licence may only make further representations if there
has been a material change in circumstances since the authority made its
determination

Any representation should be in writing and cannot be received outside of normal
office hours.

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Law and Democracy

Date: 7 November 2019

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 7 NOVEMBER 2019



284

NOTICE OF DECISION
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 28 NOVEMBER 2019

LICENSING ACT 2003: SECTION 53A: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOORS, 516
OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA

1. Decision

That the council's licensing sub-committee, having considered an application made under
section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 by the Metropolitan Police Service for the review of the
premises licence in respect of Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road,
London SE1 5BA and having had regard to all relevant representations decided to suspend
the licence for a period of three months, to remove Alfred Manseray as the designated
premises supervisor and to modify the conditions of the licence as follows:

1.  That the premises will be closed on Wednesdays.

2.  That the measures set out in the licensing compliance plan attached to the premises
licence as annex 5 shall be implemented in full prior to the reopening of the premises.

3.  That there shall be no shisha smoking equipment on the premises at any time.
4.  That all security staff at the premises shall be supplied by an SIA approved contractor.

5. That condition 288 of the licence shall be amended by the addition of the following: “The
premises shall not be open at any time when the CCTV is not operating correctly.”

6. That condition 342 of the license shall be reworded as follows:

“That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the
Police shall be installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable
of sharing information about banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram
on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be able to identify fake or forged ID
documents to a reasonable standard. The system must be operating correctly at all
times when the premises are open and will be used to record the details of all persons
entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their
assistants. Entry to the premises will not be permitted without the production of the
relevant ID document and / or if the person's details are already stored on the system
and they are identified using a biometric identification system.”

7. That Eric Doe shall play no part in the day-to-day management or operation of the
premises.

2. Reasons

The licensing sub-committee heard from the representative of the Metropolitan Police Service,
the applicant for the review, who referred to his previous representations (considered at the
interim steps hearing on 7" November 2019) and to his further witness statement dated 22"
November 2019, in which he exhibits CCTV stills from the night of the incident showing the
licence holder Eric Doe behind the bar in the outside shisha area where the assault occurred.
In his view, this undermined Mr Doe’s assertion that the incident had been the fault of others,
in particular the designated premises supervisor, who had let him down. Mr Doe had been in

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION —28 NOVEMBER 2019



285

that area of the premises himself that night, yet had allowed multiple breaches of licence
conditions to occur. It was clarified that the CCTV appeared to be 1 hour behind actual time,
so that the incident had occurred after 3.00 a.m. by which time the premises should have
been closed. In the view of the police, Mr Doe had shown a disregard for the licensing
objectives and they had no confidence that he could manage the premises safely in future.
The licence should therefore be revoked. If the sub-committee did not agree with that, the
licence should be suspended for 3 months, the designated premises supervisor changed and
an SIA approved contract team appointed.

The sub-committee heard from the representative of the licensing authority, who referred to
written representations submitted on her behalf. These traced the chronology of previous
interventions by licensing officers attempting to secure compliance at the premises. It was
clear that despite three separate licensing induction visits breaches of licence conditions had
continued to occur, eventually leading to police cautions being issued for licensing offences.
She urged the sub-committee to revoke the licence or, at the least, suspend the licence for 3
months while all the remedial measures proposed by the licence holder were put in place.

The representative of the licence holder entirely accepted that a serious incident had
occurred. However, the sub-committee had to distinguish between a history of long-running
minor non-compliance at the premises and this serious incident of violence, which was a one-
off and could not in itself justify revocation of the licence, particularly where — as here — it was
possible for the premises to be run in future in a compliant way. The proposal was for Mr Doe
to play no further part in managing the premises. A new designated premises supervisor had
been identified. A comprehensive licensing compliance plan had been devised and would be
implemented. The premises could cease trading on a Wednesday, as this had attracted an
unfamiliar crowd. There would be no shisha smoking henceforth. The premises would be
closed if either the CCTV or ID scanning system were not working. A 6 week suspension was
volunteered, which would allow time for the new regime to bed in.

The sub-committee took account of the fact that a serious assault had taken place on the
premises which had been caused or contributed to by multiple breaches of premises licence
conditions. The premises should have been closed before the incident took place, the ID
scanner was not working, no drinks or glassware should have been in the shisha area and no
patrons should have been allowed to wear hats or hoods.

Revocation was considered, but on balance the sub-committee took the view that a 3 month
suspension of the licence, the removal of the designated premises supervisor and the
additional conditions set out above would be sufficient in this case to promote the licensing
objectives, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder. The sub-committee considered
that other measures short of suspension were insufficient given the seriousness of the
incident, the multiple breaches of licence conditions and the previous operating history of the
premises.

The sub-committee noted with approval the applicant’s willingness to eliminate single-use
plastics in glasses and straws.

In reaching its decision, the sub-committee had regard both to the revised guidance and to its
own statement of licensing policy, and considered that its decision was appropriate and
proportionate in order to promote the licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of crime
and disorder.

Appeal rights
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION —28 NOVEMBER 2019



286

This decision is open to appeal by either

a) The applicant for the review

b)  The premises licence holder

c) Any other person who made relevant representations in relation to the application

Such appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices’
clerk for the Magistrates’ Court for the area within the period of 21 days beginning with the day
on which the appellant was notified by this licensing authority of the decision.

This decision does not have effect until either

a) The end of the period for appealing against this decision; or
b) In the event of any notice of appeal being given, until the appeal is disposed of.

Review of interim steps pending appeal

At the conclusion of the review hearing the licensing sub-committee reviewed the interim
steps to determine which interim steps were appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives, pursuant to section 53D of the Licensing Act 2003. The sub-committee concluded
that these interim steps were appropriate:

o To suspend the premises licence.

The interim steps are open to appeal by:

a) The chief officer of police for the police area in which the premises is situated; or
b)  The holder of the premises licence

Such appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices’
clerk for the Magistrates Court for the area within the period of 21 days beginning with the day
on which the appellant was notified by this licensing authority of the decision.

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Law and Democracy

Date: 28 November, 2019.

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION —28 NOVEMBER 2019



287

LS ouﬂ"m(K
/E:UTC?
southwark.gov.uk
NOTICE OF DECISION

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE -19 JANUARY 2024

SECTION 53A LICENSING ACT 2003: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOORS,
516 OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA

1. Decision

That as an interim step to promote the licensing objectives, pending the determination of the
review application in respect of the premises known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors,
516 OIld Kent Road, London SE1 5BA at the full hearing, to be held on 8 February 2024 , the
licence be suspended.

2. Reasons
TO FOLLOW

3. Appeal Rights

There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court against the licensing authority’s decision at
this stage.

The premises licence holder may make representation against any interim steps imposed and a
hearing to consider the representation will be held within 48 hours of receipt of the
representation. The holder of the premises licence may only make further representations if
there has been a material change in circumstances since the authority made its determination.
Any representation should be in writing and cannot be received outside of normal office hours.
Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Assistant Chief Executive — Governance and

Assurance

Date: 19 January 2024

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 19 JANUARY 2024



=  Application for the review of a premises licence - Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London, SE1 5BA (our ref: L1U 870760] - Old Kent R...

DEISREM Acobat O Tell me what you want to do...

N — . Rl Find
gnore % [—4 p < EZ Meeting ; - I= P a% Q [N |
y | <« !I—é I - ﬁOneNote i [ Related = '
b junk~ C#lete Reply Reply Forward EiMore~ | Move oy, . Mark Categorize Follow Translate ) Zoom | Send to
& Al - . [EPAdions Unread > Up~ ¥ ¢ Select~ Onelote
Delete Respond Mave Tags I Editing Zoom | OneNote )
McArthur, Wesley [ear, Jayne; 'Graham.5.White@met.police.uk’; Tan Clements; Welr, Andraw; 'ericol | =ric - 01 04/72/2019

‘t Application for the review of a premises licence - Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London, SE1 5BA (our ref: L1U 870760) - Old Kent Road ward

5
[

Egress Switch: Unprotected v

19.11.28 Club 701 Notice of Decision,pdf _
w | 32 KB

Dear All,
Please find attached the Notice of Decision in respect of the hearing to determine the above application.
Regards,

Wesley McArthur

Principal Enforcement Officer

London Borough of Southwark

E-mail: wesley. mcarthur@southwark.qov.uk

General: licensing@southwark.gov.uk

Phone: 020 7525 5779

Fax: 020 7525 5705

Address: Licensing, Health & Safety, Hub 1, 3rd Floor, 160 Tooley Street, SE1 2QH

hitps:/iwww.southwark.gov.uk/community-safety/let-s-talk-about-women-s-safety

s o : : 18:36
! > > > D)
H L Type here to search | : 22/0172024 e

88¢



JIBYM
e~ uarsam

_# JBYM UI0DY |

ooo.mww.\}“v =3|ed§

...m.m_mo_oEom L mxab_zu Aq passisewsi @m SO sI dew aseq yneyap ayl .\ﬁm_mom pueT Jjo :o_m_m_Ehma ay) ynm paanpoudal si pue 1ybuAdod umoli) 01 10algns si erep xapu| Ansibay pueT
" - ) 1] |

——

LY
LS
Ty

Y

r
e

Bl Sub sta [

L)

&

by

LR
L

EBsgns3

-
J-‘-H\.'.--
I'x
b

g

o
i
b
b
LS
[t
. x\_\_\_\_\ "'L-\__\_\_ ]

—=

asmsiadng

rove St

~Loved

< EIFENs 3

\_E..m e A : i =
:un:n._uhc,m:u ; LUEE " ﬁw\h_ V|
: il ol

#NON 0|[@mey ]
i FE O} |

m..u”_._n_..._ wsmsgelap i — i
0o L ; e F N ]
© RS £ | A

i 8 e __.__.-....| e *_|||I|.r””|,| T ——"

b e ez
Lig ...IIII____ 2IE]5] |PLOSNPU] JW.

= - 1
s S0P XI5 _ =i
T :._r___. urnIaa)] d E =]
L= T T ! _u.__“
i . N | = = _ o __.
o = _ gl
_ - _ #8 |12l
| —/ _ 4] e _.nm __ R aAsno
1 = - A~ uoisiiy =bioasy
_ = § Wi

m:g

“Bic
T

]

i .__...rffm

T N
- B _
T 1
| S ByuET “uu_ | (|
S5aLIsng _ _._-1 |2
. jlebu=g l_ :
| ) _

mo:.mcEO.m_Now mEm:_ _wﬁmgwem_o U:..m Em_:ao_o__.__cggmo_ﬂ.@ i

= IR
_ \ __”.L.J.h.. /__.

5

5
]
e
e

__._
| spom | . “. P W ...__,
= ot ﬂ _ z..r..l.\...--m

I g
1 e
| -
+
1 _ | R = o
l—— .._.L.ql...... |

——

| Y y
| 1 W
__. i \ ..._. vy |
— i | _l.. [ ___ ]
e _ B L S
T o “.__. =R
i g e S
=Y = 6 e
o | 1 _ 4
i il T
1] 1] ]
o ! —

a.. EP\:\\ . N .,eo;:__./ / _
-maezonzﬂ.,_ o<om\.r

SO | B,

;I...I%IIMH-
%ﬂﬂ_r -

WHMW  |
er._._ B0 30 T CM‘\ T E

=y

e FETIOH ._.1_5 g z n
e

= 50 (o G4

- \7 m_.uE -+

- . - S
£ BSNOH BUDiea o
U 6v m . L=

: e asnoH u.wn:Mm_.ﬂ_..

PSonl



This page is intentionally blank.



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24

NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to
Andrew Weir - Tel: 020 7525 7222

Members Officers
Councillor Sunny Lambe 1 Debra Allday, legal team 1
Councillor Sandra Rhule 1 Toyin Calfos, legal team By email
Councillor Kath Whittam 1 Charlotte Precious, legal team By email
Matt Tucker, licensing team By email
Reserve Andrew Heron, licensing team By email
Wesley McArthur, licensing team By email
Councillor Margy Newens 1 P.C. Mark Lynch, Metropolitan By email
Police Service
P.C. lan Clements, Metropolitan By email

Police Service

Andrew Weir, constitutional team 2

Total printed copies: 7

Dated: 30 January 2024




	Agenda
	6 Licensing Act 2003: Peckham Food and Wine, 176 Peckham High Street, London SE15 5EG
	Appendix A: Application
	APPENDIX B - REPS. R.AS_Redacted
	APPENDIX C - NOD
	APPENDIX D - CURRENT LICENCE_Redacted
	APPENDIX E - TENS LOG
	APPENDIX F - NTET LOG
	APPENDIX G -map

	7 Licensing Act 2003: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA
	Appendix A - Current Premises Licence
	Appendix B - Review Application and Certificate
	Appendix C - Previous Premises Licences
	Appendix D - Operating History Documents
	Appendix E - Previous Review Application
	Appendix F - Log of Complaints Received
	Appendix G - NTET Visits
	Appendix H - TEN Applications
	Appendix I - Notice of Decision and Reasons 19 and 23 January 2024
	NOTICE OF DECISION
	LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE –19 JANUARY 2024

	Appendix J - Licensing Representation
	Appendix K - Premises Location Map

	 
	24.02.08 Distribution List




